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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
PART |
Note About Forward-Looking Statements

” ” o ” o " ow T

When used in this Report, the words “anticipatébélieves,” “could,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “expects’ “intends,” “may,” “plans”

“potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “wil 1,” “would” or similar expressions and negatives tifose terms are intended to identify
forward-looking statements. These are statements thaer&édafuture periods and include statements abaufuture results, sources of
revenue, our continued growth, our gross margireket trends, our product development, technoldgiezelopments, the features, benefits
and performance of our current and future produtts, ability of our products to address a varietyrarkets, the anticipated growth of
demand for connectivity worldwide, our growth stgies, future price reductions, our competitivaustaour dependence on our senior
management and our ability to attract and retaiy kersonnel, dependency on and concentration ofimtiibutors, our employee relations,
current and potential litigation, the effects ofugonment regulations, our compliance with laws agglilations, our expected future operating
costs and expenses and expenditure levels forngsaad development, selling, general and admiaiste expenses, fluctuations in operating
results, fluctuations in our stock price, our paymef dividends, our future liquidity and cash ngeour credit facility, future acquisitions of
and investments in complimentary businesses anexiected impact of various accounting policies ands adopted by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board. Forwelooking statements are subject to risks and umadeties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those projected. These risks anceutainties include, but are not limited to, fad@ffecting our quarterly results, our ability
to manage our growth, our ability to sustain orr@ase profitability, demand for our products, otnilay to compete, our ability to rapidly
develop new technology and introduce new prodectsability to safeguard our intellectual propertyends in the networking industry and
fluctuations in general economic conditions, anel isks set forth throughout this Report, includingler Item 1“Business” and under

Item 1A/Risk Factors.” These forward-looking statement&ak only as of the date hereof. Except as requiseldw, we expressly disclaim
any obligation or undertaking to release publiclyyaupdates or revisions to any forward-looking stagénts contained herein to reflect any
change in our expectations with regard thereto wy ahange in events, conditions or circumstancewttich any such statement is based.

This Report also contains estimates and other médion concerning our industry, including marketesand growth rates, which are based on
industry publications, surveys and forecasts, idirlg those generated by Cisco Systems, Inc. Thigniation involves a number of
assumptions and limitations, and you are cautionetto give undue weight to these estimates. Tihdsstry publications, surveys and
forecasts generally indicate that their informatioas been obtained from sources believed to bahieli The industry in which we operate
subject to a high degree of uncertainty and risk tlua variety of factors, including those desatibeder Item 1A. "Risk Factors."

Item 1. Business

Business Overview
Overview

Ubiquiti Networks develops high performance netvilmgktechnology for service providers and entergrisgur technology platforms focus on
delivering highly-advanced and easily deployabletsans that appeal to a global customer base d@erserved and underpenetrated markets.
Our differentiated business model has enabled bssi@k down traditional barriers such as high pebdnd network deployment costs and ¢
solutions with disruptive price-performance chagastics. This differentiated business model, carabiwith our innovative proprietary
technologies, has resulted in an attractive altem#o traditional high touch, high cost providesiowing us to advance the market adoptio
our platforms for ubiquitous connectivity.

We offer a broad and expanding portfolio of netviagkproducts and solutions for service providerd enterprises. Our service provider
product platforms provide carrier-class networkasfructure for fixed wireless broadband, wirelesskhaul systems and routing. Our
enterprise product platforms provide wireless LAlftastructure, video surveillance products, VOIPmds, switches and machine-to-machine
communication components. We believe that our prtedare highly differentiated due to our proprigtsoftware protocol innovation,

firmware expertise, and hardware design capatslifidais differentiation allows our portfolio to nteéhe demanding performance requirement:
of video, voice and data applications at prices &na a fraction of those offered by our competitor

As a core part of our strategy, we have developdifferentiated business model for marketing anlingehigh volumes of carrier and
enterprise-class communications platforms. Ourrtassi model is driven by a large, growing and higimgaged community of service
providers, distributors, value added resellerstesys integrators and corporate IT professionalsghvh
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we refer to as the Ubiquiti Community. The Ubig@ommunity is a critical element of our businesatsgy as it enables us to drive:

* Rapid customer and community driven product devetmmnt. We have an active, loyal community built from oustomers that we
believe is a sustainable competitive advantage.sblttions benefit from the active engagement betwtbe Ubiquiti Community and
our development engineers throughout the produaldpment cycle, which eliminates long and expemsiultistep internal processes
and results in rapid introduction and adoption wf products. This approach significantly reducesdmyvelopment costs and time to
market.

e Scalable sales and marketing modWe do not currently have, nor do we plan to hirdiract sales force, but instead utilize the
Ubiquiti Community to drive market awareness anchded for our products and solutions. This commupitypagated viral marketing
enables us to reach underserved and underpenetnat&dts far more efficiently and cost-effectivétan is possible through traditional
sales models. Leveraging the information transparefithe Internet allows customers to researchluate and validate our solutions
with the Ubiquiti Community and via third party weltes. This allows us to operate a scalable saldsnarketing model and
effectively create awareness of our brand and mtsdiVord of mouth referrals from the Ubiquiti Comnmity generate high quality
leads for our distributors at relatively little ¢os

e Self-sustaining product support.The engaged members of the Ubiquiti Community tenabled us to foster a large, cost efficient,
highly-scalable and, we believe, self-sustainingima@ism for rapid product support and disseminatfanformation.

By reducing the cost of development, sales, margedind support we are able to eliminate tradititmainess model inefficiencies and offer
innovative solutions with disruptive price performea characteristics to our customers.

Our revenues were $595.9 million , $572.5 milliovd &320.8 million in the fiscal years ended Jung2B05 , 2014 and 201 3espectively. W
reported net income of $129.7 million , $176.9 ioiland $80.5 million in the fiscal years endedel@f, 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively.
In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we refer to fiseal years ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2801i8cal 2015 , fiscal 2014 and fiscal
2013, respectively.

Industry Overview

Internet traffic worldwide has grown rapidly in et years, driven by an increase in the numbesefs) increasing mobility of those users anc
high bandwidth applications, such as video, autdimjd-based applications, online gaming and sewdkorking. According to Cisco Visual
Networking Index, global Internet protocol, or tRffic is expected to increase from 59,848 petafyvr PB, per month in 2014 to 167,978
per month in 2019, representing a 23% compoundargrawth rate, or CAGR, over that period. Additdly, it is estimated that there will be
three networked devices per capita connected teetRorks in 2019, up from almost two networked desiper capita in 2014. Wired
networking solutions have traditionally been usedddress increasing consumer and enterprise bdtidmeeds. However, the high initial
capital requirements and ongoing operating cosid@rg market lead times associated with buildind estalling infrastructure for wired
networks has severely limited the widespread depént of these networks in underserved and undetzeee markets. Wireless networks are
emerging as an attractive alternative for addrgssoth the broadband access needs of underserdathderpenetrated markets in both
emerging and developed countries.

Underserved and underpenetrated markeiBhere is a significant market opportunity in betherging and developed economies. In
“unconnected” emerging markets, the lack of antdistaed network infrastructure and the high inilaployment costs associated with
traditional wired network infrastructure build-oltave encouraged adoption of wireless networkifrgétructure. In “under-connected”
markets, bandwidth demand exceeds either the &laitapacity from existing infrastructure or théoadable supply of new infrastructure,
resulting in an attractive market opportunity fdreless systems to bolster connectivity. Additibnale believe there is a large market
opportunity in connected markets serving custorttextswant to deploy reliable, scalable and custablz wireless networks and whose
primary buying criterion is based on price-perfont@ characteristics.

Increasing use of the unlicensed spectrt. In the absence of affordable broadband acce$eilicensed spectrum, the number of users of th
unlicensed RF spectrum has increased for commumnsa¢quipment, as well as consumer devices suchrdiess phones, baby monitors and
microwave ovens. This increasing use of unliced®edpectrum has made providing high quality wirglestworking more challenging due to
increasing congestion in the unlicensed spectrum.Hederal Communications Commission continuesdalate use of unlicensed RF
spectrum. Existing and contemplated regulations affgct the cost and/or effectiveness of produwds tely on access to such unlicensed RF
spectrum.
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Government incentives for broadband accesSovernments around the world are increasinglintakoth regulatory and financial steps to
expand access to broadband networks and increagdetality of advanced broadband services to coressmand businesses.

Challenges facing incumbent solution3.o provide robust wireless networks that meet tteegperformance needs of service providers and
enterprises, vendors of wireless networking sohgimust address the problems facing incumbentignhit

» Poor performance. To deliver high performance, wireless networksodutions need to satisfy diverse performance requénts for
video, voice and data. The challenges of operatiriige unlicensed RF spectrum, including spectromerand interference resulting
from the proliferation of devices, often resultifficulty establishing network connections andeliable or poor performance.
Additionally, the performance and reliability ofisting wireless networking solutions decline rapids the number of subscribers and
range of service delivery increases. Lack of hardvead software integration between products, telcigies and vendor devices can
diminish network performance significantly and e&se the complexity of network management, integrand expansion.

» High cost of ownershif. Existing alternative solutions, such as fibetHe-premises, cable, digital subscriber line, ot. D8orldwide
interoperability for microwave access, or WiMAX, ETand traditional backhaul, provide high capadiigh performance broadband
access; however, these solutions can be extrerostlycand often do not meet the demanding priaéspmance requirements of
underserved markets.

« Complexity. Existing alternative solutions are often diffictd deploy and manage and require skilled empleyedigh cost
consultants to install and operate. In additionstexg enterprise solutions often offer a largeiefgrof features and functionalities that
enterprise customers may find overwhelming or uassary.

e Lack of product support and custorr-driven featuresProduct support and feedback for alternative sepgliwvireless networking
solutions are often costly and ineffective. Exigtimireless solutions are not accompanied by dyng@mtiduct support to assist
customers in efficiently setting up and troubledir@ptheir networks. Additionally, alternative suigps generally lack an effective
mechanism to communicate with their end-users acorporate feedback from usage into product roagdmap

Market opportunity. Existing service provider wireless networkingheclogies have been developed to satisfy the isgrgalemand for
broadband access, support mobility and provid@érormance and reliability demanded by custontdosvever, these existing solutions
based upon wired, satellite or cellular technolsgadten fail to meet the price-performance requeats of fixed wireless networking in
emerging markets, rural markets, or price-sensitiagkets, which in turn has led to low penetratbwireless broadband access and large
populations of unaddressed users in these are#isinvitie enterprise, existing WLAN deployments aften relatively complex and costly,
providing customers with a large number of nonigaltfeatures and functionalities at a high coste@ the growth in Internet connected
devices, and the consumer’s desire for constamtesdivity, there exists growing demand for WLAN @ddns that provide critical features at
significantly lower cost than existing solutions.

Our Solutions

Our products and solutions enable both serviceigeos and enterprises to cost effectively deplayittirastructure for high performance,
scalable and reliable wireless networks. Our wagleetworking solutions offer the following key éts:

» High performance proprietary technology solution Our proprietary products and solutions includentperformance radios, antenn
software, communications protocols and managenoeta that have been designed to deliver carriereauterprise class wireless
broadband access and other services primarilyemuticensed RF spectrum. Our radios and antemréash incorporate our innovative
proprietary technologies and firmware, are desigmadlfield tested to deliver carrier-class netwspkeds, throughput, range and
coverage, while simultaneously meeting the vargiagormance requirements of video, voice and daffid. Our products and
solutions overcome significant performance chakkenguch as dynamic spectrum noise, device intedere@utdoor obstacles and
unpredictable levels of video, voice and data perémce. Importantly, we are able to utilize theduiiti Community to validate the
effectiveness of our end user experience and foauslevelopment efforts on those features and ifmmality that are critical to their
requirements.

»  Price disruptive offering. Our products and solutions have been designeddable service providers and enterprises to defigr
performance to their users at highly disruptive@oints. The deployment and operation of ourtgwla require a fraction of the
capital expenditures, implementation expenses atwlartk maintenance costs of those associated wistireg solutions.
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* Integrated and easy to deploy and manz. Our integrated products and solutions reducedneplexity associated with the installati
management and expansion of wireless networks.iléidich of our product families, products are basefirmware that is built on a
common codebase. This allows us to offer commotufea and functionality and leads to consistenbilisaacross each product
family. The integration between our products isigiesd to enable service providers and enterprsegliver wireless broadband acc
and other services that have high performance ctaistics without significant management, deplogtreosts or upgrade complexity.

e Scalable communit-led approach Purchasing our proprietary products and solutearables immediate access to the Ubiquiti
Community, including current and historical troudileoting and technical information as well as Ipeattices and deployment advice
for our end users. Product support from our Commguisiself-sustaining and scales efficiently, wgttowth and relevance driven by the
size and engagement of our customer base. Thialdealommunity-led approach to customer supportritaries to the lower total cost
of ownership of our products and solutions relatovéncumbent providers. Additionally, our Commuynitrovides an effective channel
for product feedback from our customer base.

We are growing our intellectual property portfahelp protect the development of our proprietftware, hardware and complete solutit
We believe that protecting the innovation and tetbgy underlying our comprehensive wireless netwaylsolutions is key to ensuring our
continued ability to provide customers with diffetiated value

Our Strategy

Our goal is to disrupt the market for communicagioechnology with innovative solutions that providading performance at prices that are a
fraction of those of alternative solutions. Keyreénts of our strategy include the following:

« Continue to deliver high performance characterissiat disruptive price pointsWe intend to expand the market opportunity foviee
providers by continuing to provide products andiSohs with disruptive pric@erformance characteristics. We also intend to recplae
market and displace high-priced alternative sohsdim enterprise markets. We believe that we catasuour disruptive strategy
through our unique business model, focusing orfdatires and functionalities most critical to castos and avoiding the fringe
features, which add both cost and complexity.

» Leverage our technologies and business model iraadnt markets We intend to continue to leverage our technologies$ business
model to target other large and growing marketswheabelieve are ripe for disruption such as videweillance, machine-to-machine
communications, routing and licensed microwave g® backhaul markets. For the enterprise marketntkoduced our enterprise
WLAN product, UniFi, in fiscal 2011 and have exgeged strong adoption by a largely new customes.BA® believe we are well
positioned to gain traction in these new addressatalrkets and will continue to accelerate our imtion in these products. Similarly,
we intend to drive adoption of UniFi Video, ourédBmera management system, UniFi VOIP Phone, ourdfshgowered enterprise
desktop smart phone solution, airFiber, our outducgless backhaul radio platform, EdgeMAX, our adeed routing technology and
mFi, our machine-to-machine communication platform.

e Maintain and extend our technological leadersh. We intend to continue to develop innovative soha for our target markets. We
believe that our continued focus on developing gachnologies with customer-driven feedback fromttbiquiti Community will
allow us to deliver products and solutions withrdiiive price-performance characteristics thatspecifically targeted to our markets.
In addition, we believe our continued innovatiokéy to the value our products and solutions preyahd is a critical component to
achieving user lock-in.

e Continue to grow our powerful user communityWe believe our differentiated business model, pedday the Ubiquiti Community,
provides us with a significant and sustainable ogtitipe advantage over competitors. The Ubiquitir@ounity facilitates streamlined
and efficient product development coupled withghhi efficient sales and distribution model thdbwak us to avoid the costs associ:
with expensive direct and channel organizationg §éif-sustaining product support aspect of theyuibiCommunity simplifies the
deployment process and provides a highly effegtbad-time support system for customers.

« Continue to sell to our existing customend/e plan to continue to provide our customers withhperformance, reliable, and cost-
effective integrated products and solutions. Irtipalar, we believe our use of differentiated piefary protocols and the scalability of
our products position us to grow with our custorrashey build out their networks. Furthermore,imtend to cross-sell
complementary solutions to our existing customieos.example, we
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believe customers of our airMAX solutions can bérsfnificantly from the incremental deploymentafr EdgeMAX and airFiber
products.

Our Technology and Products

We offer products and solutions based on our petgmy technology with disruptive price-performabaracteristics across multiple markets.
Utilizing low cost hardware, consumer chipsets mmbvative software and firmware, we build pricafpemance solutions to address both
service providers and enterprises. In addition,tecihnology allows us to design our products faeeaf manufacture. Our focus on cost
efficiency, robust product design and high perfanoeadrives the development of our technology, petsland solutions.

Technology Platforms
Our current major service provider and carrier gohs include:
Base Station/Backhaul/Customer Premise Equipn“CPE")/Bridge—airMAX

We offer end-to-end solutions that incorporate pnaprietary RF technology, antenna design and fianewechnologies. These technologies
simplify the adoption and use of our products aravige our products and solutions with performadiearacteristics usually found only in the
carrier-class wireless networking solutions andeasignificant performance, reliability, scalalyiland ease-of-use challenges in the unlicense
RF spectrum.

In September 2009, we introduced our airMAX platiovhich includes proprietary protocols developedibywhich contain advanced
technologies for minimizing signal noise. Theseppietary protocols help our products deliver cardlass wireless networking performance
for video, voice and data applications. airMAX Ideto support a wireless network that can scalataireds of clients per base station over
long distances while maintaining low latency anghhihroughput. Unlike most systems using 802.1Adsted protocols, which are primarily
designed for indoor networks, our airMAX systems agroprietary Time Division Multiple Access, dDWA, protocol to manage the sendi
and receiving of data over the network to maxinsizd¢ime efficiency. airMAX incorporates smart poli, which is a feature that improves the
scalability of a wireless network by predicting th@ce and data requirements of an applicatiomgtgiaven time and allocating the required
bandwidth. airMAX also improves scalability by gig priority to active client hardware over idleetlt hardware to reduce perceived latency
on large networks. airMAX provides users with tihdity to seamlessly switch operating frequenciesdal time to overcome noise and
interference due to changes in the operating enwiemt.

A majority of our airMAX products and solutions clverage multiple input multiple output, or MIM@&chnology, which relates to the use of
multiple antennas at both the transmitter and veced improve performance. Most of our radios esgphultiple independent transmitters and
receivers to create independent communication eiamsing the same frequency spectrum. We use eddaray signal processing
techniques to combine our radios’ communicatioranaels into a single, higher data rate channel.approach to MIMO technology
effectively doubles the capacity of our radios wkempared to traditional radios. Each of our stéoraantennas is dual polarized with
radiation patterns that are optimized for MIMO penfiance. Our high performance outdoor antennadesmigned to amplify signal power,
resulting in stronger signals and better link dqyaknd to block noise. Our design produces a bsit@al-to-noise ratio for each channel and
simplified signal processing to combine the chasinghich in turn effectively doubles the throughpfibur antennas, when compared to sii
input single output devices. Our devices suppatibua encryption protocols including: WPA, WPA-TKI®/PA-AES, WPA2, WPA2-TKIP
and WPA2-AES.

Network Routing Platfor—EdgeMAX

In September 2012, we announced EdgeMAX, a disrepiiice-performance software and systems routiaifiogpm. We believe the initial
product, the EdgeRouter Lite, is the world’s fsab-$100 router capable of over 1 million packetsgecond processing performance.
EdgeMAX is powered by our full-featured EdgeOS apieg system that includes advanced QoS, firewdghhamic routing and VPN
functionality. Since the initial launch we haveroduced a full series of routers and switchesdlatess our core markets.

Point-to-point Wireless Backhaul—airFiber

In March 2012, we introduced airFiber, a point-tofp radio system. Components of the airFiber pevdacluding the radio, were designed to
provide low latency with high throughput. Our abEr product uses an integrated split antenna ahobal positioning system to
simultaneously send data packets from each sitieedink. We engineered proprietary communicatiostqcols so that airFiber does not su
from the traditional packet overhead associatel Wii-Fi based standards. In
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February 2015, we introduced airFiber 5X, the faisEiber X radio with full 5GHz global 5GHz bangeration. We believe the airFiber family
of products offers a compelling alternative to witeackhaul as airFiber is not easily susceptibleattdalism, copper theft, and fiber optic
damage because only the endpoints need to be deainféiber does not require physical infrastruetsuch as laying cable or fiber, and by
utilizing unlicensed spectrum, customers achiegaificantly faster deployment.

Our current major enterprise solutions include:

Enterprise WLAUniFi

In January 2011, we released our UniFi Enterprisé&VBystem, which is a scalable Wi-Fi solutiontthrecludes Wi-Fi certified hardware with
a software based management controller, targetiteggrise customers. UniFi hardware utilizes MIM®@Hnology, works with 802.11a/b/g/n
and ac standards and uses a single cable forrdatntission and power-over-Ethernet. Unlike otmemprise Wi-Fi systems that utilize a
costly hardware Wi-Fi switch, UniFi uses a virtaahtroller that allows for on-site management onote management through the cloud,
allowing customers to deploy UniFi in both indooidaoutdoor applications. Each UniFi access pointtlmmanaged centrally with the UniFi
Controller software, which we provide free of ctar@he UniFi Controller enables enterprise WLAN @agers to centrally configure and
administer a UniFi network and individual accesmfsowithout any special training and through secagcess from any web browser. The
UniFi platform provides automatic UniFi access paiaetection, firmware updates, real-time statug) toading, advanced security options and
“zero handoff roaming”, our proprietary innovatifar seamless roaming for mobile devices.

Video Surveillance—UniFi Video

In August 2011, we introduced our line of UniFi ¥@H.264 megapixel IP cameras and our UniFi Videnagement software controller. The
H.264 cameras use a single cable for data trangmiaad power-over-Ethernet. UniFi Video, our maeragnt controller software, can be usec
to manage multiple UniFi Video H.264 IP camerasvall as manage digital video recorder devices. Uiileo software is available for
download at no cost on our website and only manbidpéguiti Network camera devices. Similar to ounet network management products,
UniFi Video can be accessed securely from any welvéer, provides detailed statistical reporting addanced analytics and provides a
management console with multiple views, versatilimera settings and customizable event recordindgitidnally, in April 2015 we

introduced our UniFi Video Micro product, a smaidoor video wireless camera that provides 720predolution at 30 frames per second.
The UniFi Video web interface is accessible on @28 Android tablets and phones.

UniFi VOIP Phone

In July 2014, we released our UniFi VOIP Phoneswéted by Android™ , the UniFi® VolP Phones are enterprise desktop smartpt
designed to integrate into the UniFi Enterpriset&ys Touchscreen comes standard on all modelsaengbrovisioned through the Un
Controller.

UniFi Switch

Managed by the Unikd Controller software, UniFi Switches deliver perfamnce, switching, and PoE+ support for enterpridevorks. Thi
UniFi Switches can power UniFi AP's, UniFi Videor@aras and UniFi VOIP Phones.

Machine-To-Machine Communication—mFi

In June 2012, we announced availability of mFi,akhincludes hardware sensors, power devices, andgeaent software that allows dev
to be monitored and controlled remotely via Rii+For example, mFi allows users to manage anditarotineir building temperature and po\
consumption. The management controller softwatP isased and can be accessed from any browselylocdahrough the cloud. mFi softwz
allows management to create rules to control nuosedevices.
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The table below summarizes information about oadpct platforms:

Bands of
Name Target Applications Operation (GHz) MSRP
Service Provider Products
airMAX Base station/Backhaul/CPE/Bridge 0.9/ 2/ 3/ 5/10 $49 - $399
EdgeMAX Routing/Switching N/A $49 - $369
airFiber Wireless Backhaul 5/24 $399 - $3,000()
Enterprise Products
UniFi WLAN 2/5 $69 - $489
UniFi Video IP Video Surveillance N/A $99 - $469
UniFi VolP Desktop Smart Phone N/A $149 - $399
UniFi Switch Switching N/A $39 - $1,025
mFi Machine-To-Machine Communication 2/5 $8 - $99

(1) MSREP listed is for one airFiber unit only, leitypically sold in pairs.

The Ubiquiti Community

We established the Ubiquiti forum, wiki and newsgeto foster a large, growing and engaged onlamaraunity of service providers and
distributors, customers and employees among otfieesUbiquiti Community powers our business modeldeilitating rapid introductions ai
development of customer-oriented products. The WbiGommunity provides best practices, adviceylileshooting and product feedback. It
also acts as a source of product support and dvivelsmarketing.

The following describes the key aspects of ouranable business model that are powered by theuitb@ommunity:

» Rapid customer and commun-driven product developmentWe seek to identify features and products that@rare expected to be,
needed or desired by the majority of customershar product. We rely on the Ubiquiti Communityaasignificant source of requests
for features that we translate into new produchgdend designs.

» Scalable sales and marketing moc. We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to drive marlatareness and demand for our products anc
solutions. This community-propagated viral markgtmables us to reach underserved and underpeuetnairkets far more efficiently
and cost effectively than is possible through tiadal sales models. For example, there have beaty imstances where members of
Ubiquiti Community, who happen to be on online fosunot affiliated with us, have strongly recommehtieat users of other wireless
networking solutions try our products and solutione also hold conferences as an effective wagttoduce and promote our produ
and solutions to the global Ubiquiti Community. example, in 2012 and 2013, we held our Ubiquitirid&onference at locations in
the United States, Brazil, Argentina, Hungary, RaisShina and India.

» Selfsustaining product supportOur service providers and IT professionals, whihesiastically support each other through the
Ubiquiti forum, as well as other blogs and onlimeups, have fostered a large, scalable and, weuaglself-sustaining mechanism for
rapid product support and dissemination of infoioratThe members of the Ubiquiti Community resptmdser questions posted on
our forum in a rapid manner. These responses arertiied by other members of the Ubiquiti Commutdtizelp ensure that the users
are receiving the best possible answers. Top assw@&ommon questions are stored in the Ubiquitivdeks Community Knowledge
Base. In addition, our internal customer suppagtaization provides feedback on critical produstiess, and augments the information
in the Ubiquiti Community.

Research and Development

Our research and development organization is ressiplerfor the design, development and testing ofppaducts. Our engineering team has
deep expertise and experience in networking arehaatdesign, and we have a number of personnelavifstanding experience with netw
architecture and operation. We have developedratrdd to continue to develop our technology in pgirbperating with a relatively flat
reporting structure that relies on individual cdmitors or small development teams to develop,ardtobtain feedback for our products. Our
products and solutions benefit from the active gegaent between the Ubiquiti Community and our nedeand development personnel
throughout the product development cycle, resulitingpid introduction and adoption of new produ@sr research and development
personnel
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evaluate the input from service providers, IT pssfenals and enterprises and respond to their ren®difying our products or developing
new products based on the input received.

As of June 30, 2015, our research and developtaant consisted of 300 full time equivalent emplayéecluding contractors, located in the
United States, Taiwan, China, Lithuania, Polandyiasand elsewhere. Our research and developmematipns work on product development
of new products and new versions of existing preslu@ur research and development expenses weré $iilon , $34.0 million and $21.0
million for fiscal 2015 , fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2D, respectively. We expect that the number ofresearch and development personnel will
continue to increase over time and that our rebeand development expenses will also increase.

Manufacturing and Suppliers

We retain contract manufacturers to manufactunetrobthe quality of and ship our products. We giity utilize contract manufacturers
located in China. Our relationships with contraetnufacturers allow us to conserve working capitaduce manufacturing costs and minimize
delivery lead times while maintaining high prodgaglity and the ability to scale quickly to hanidiereased order volume. We make
substantially all of our purchases from our corttraanufacturers on a purchase order basis. Ovdotigeterm, our contract manufacturers are
not required to manufacture our products for argcse period or in any specific quantity. We exp#at it would take approximately three to
six months to transition manufacturing, qualitylaasice and shipping services to new providers.

Our internal manufacturing organization consistsugiply chain managers, logistics employees anttatiors who supervise the manufacture
of our products at contract manufacturer sitestastiengineers. We rely on our contract manufarcgwaed our internal quality assurance
resources to implement quality assurance prograsigided to achieve high product quality and reliigbWe believe that our low warranty
expenses and product return rate to date refleighalevel of product quality. We tightly integrater research and development efforts with
our supplier selection process. Once product matwiag quality reaches a satisfactory level, wevenfull scale production to the contract
manufacturer site. We also evaluate and utilizerosiuppliers for components from time to time.

We rely on third party components and technologlyuidd and operate our products, and we rely oncoutract manufacturers to obtain the
components, subassemblies and products necessaing fmanufacture of our products. While componants supplies are generally available
from a variety of sources, we and our contract rfeturers currently depend on a single or limitadhber of suppliers for several compone
for our products. We and our contract manufacturgsson purchase orders rather than long-termraotg with these suppliers. The majority
of our product revenues are dependent upon thesal®ducts that incorporate components from Qaralm Atheros, Inc. ("Qualcomm
Atheros"). We are party to a non-exclusive liceageeement with Qualcomm Atheros whereby we liceestain technology that we
incorporate into our products. This agreement aataally renews for successive one year periodsasithe agreement is terminated by
written notice of nonrenewal at least 90 days pieathe end of its then-current term. The Compaagy ot received a termination notice as of
the date of this Report. We depend on this liceggeement to modify and replace firmware that Qaralm Atheros provides with the chipsets
with our proprietary firmware. While our agreemaiitth Qualcomm Atheros remains effective, in accomawith the current terms of the
agreement, either party may terminate the agreemiéimut cause at the end of the annual contrawt.te

We do not stockpile sufficient chipsets to cover time it would take to re-engineer our productestgace the Qualcomm Atheros chipsets
which comprise the raw materials for our produdengs. If we need to seek a suitable second sdiarcQualcomm Atheros in our products,
there can be no assurance that we would be ablect@ssfully source our chipsets on suitable teifrasall. In any event, our use of chipsets
from multiple sources may require us to signifitamodify our designs and manufacturing processesxtommodate these different chipsets

In addition to utilizing contract manufacturers, agsource our logistics warehousing and ordeillfuként functions, which are located
primarily in China, and to a lesser extent, Taiwafe also evaluate and utilize other vendors foiouesr portions of our supply chain from time
to time. Our operations organization consists gpleyees and consultants engaged in the managereut contract manufacturers, new
product introduction activities, logistical suppartd engineering.

Sales and Distribution

Historically, we have not employed a direct satasd, nor do we plan to in the future. We sell praducts and solutions globally to service
providers and enterprises primarily through ouersive network of distributors, and, to a lesséemtx direct customers. During fiscal 2015 ,
we sold our products to over 100 distributors ainelod customers (collectively, “customers”) in 0\ countries. In both fiscal 2014 and fiscal
2013, Flytec Computers Inc. represented 13% of@ugnues.
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No customer accounted for more than 10% of ourmees in fiscal 2015, and in fiscal 2014 and fi&@l3 no customer other than Fly
Computers Inc. accounted for more than 10% of evemues.

A substantial majority of our sales are made ttrihistors outside the United States and we antieiizgat non-U.S. sales will continue to be a
significant portion of our revenues. Sales in Scitterica accounted for 16% , 19% and 21% of ouemees in fiscal 2015 , fiscal 2014 and
fiscal 2013 , respectively. Sales in Europe, thddi# East and Africa accounted for 40% , 43% ,40%b of our revenues in fiscal 2015 , fiscal
2014 and fiscal 2013 , respectively. We do not levevisibility on the location or extent of pursies of our products by individual network
operators and service providers from our distrilgitbhformation regarding financial data by geodgiamreas is set forth in ltem 7 and Item 15
of this Form 10-K. See Note 12 of Notes to Consdéd Financial Statements under Item 15.

Although we publish a manufacturer's suggested paiae, or MSRP, for our products, our distribigdave control of pricing to the ultimate
purchaser. Historically, we have not provided ostributors with any substantial sales trainingrmarketing materials; however, currently, we
are expanding our product education offerings fsiridbutors, as well as increasing marketing supg@ur agreements with our distributors do
not limit their ability to carry products that coetp with ours. Our distribution agreements gengfalve a one year term, subject to automatic
renewal unless cancelled by one of the parties.d@ributors typically provide us with purchaseers for delivery within six weeks, which
we use to forecast future demand and estimateedeisiventory builds.

We have initiated a training program for our distitors and other interested individuals so thag tte educate and train others on the effe
deployment and use of our products and solutiossofAlune 30, 2015 , Ubiquiti had 250 certifiednteas across our various product platforms
with over 9,000 integrators, resellers and othtrésted individuals having completed the certiftcaprocess.

The goal is for those completing the certificatfncess to in turn educate and train service pessidnd enterprise customers on the effective
deployment and use of our products and solutioresoffér the training program to distributors anbestinterested individuals in different
languages throughout the world.

Backlog

Our sales are primarily made through standard @selorders for delivery of products. As we allowtomers to cancel or change orders with
limited advance notice prior to shipment and beeagsne orders remain in backlog due to concernstdbe credit worthiness of the custor
we do not consider backlog to be firm and do ndiele our backlog information is a reliable indizabf our ability to achieve any particular
level of revenue of financial performance.

Competition

The markets for networking solutions for serviceyiders, enterprise WLAN, video surveillance, migawve backhaul and machine+tmachine
communications technology are highly competitivd are influenced by the following competitive fastcamong others:

» total cost of ownership and return on investmeabeisited with the solutior
« simplicity of deployment and use of the solutic

» ability to rapidly develop high performance integihsolutions

» reliability and scalability of the solutior

» market awareness of a particular bri

» ability to provide secure access to wireless neltgy

» ability to offer a suite of products and solutic

« ability to allow centralized management of the tiohs; an

» ability to provide quality product suppc¢

We believe we compete favorably with respect ted¢hfactors. Although we are a recent entrant irvitieo surveillance, microwave backhaul,
routing and machine-to-machine communication matkeé believe our products compete favorably is¢hgroduct categories. We have beel
successful in rapidly developing high performamtegrated solutions because we use individual ibartrs and small, experienced
development teams that focus on the key needsd#raarved and underpenetrated markets. Our prodndtsolutions are designed to mee
price-performance characteristics demanded by wstomers to achieve a strong overall return orr theestment. Our products are designed
to operate in growing networks without degradatioperformance or operational complexity.

12




Table of Contents

In the backhaul market, our competitors include Giamm Networks, Ceragon Networks, DragonWave, Milkiet Mimosa, SAF Tehnika and
Trango. In the CPE market, our competitors inclGaenbium Networks, Mikrotikls, Ruckus Wireless ari+IINK Technologies. In the
antenna market, we primarily compete with PCTELGARTELITE and Radio Waves. In the enterprise WLAMrket, we primarily compete
with Aerohive Networks, Aruba Networks, Ruckus Vs and Cisco. In the video surveillance marketpwmarily compete with Axis
Communications, HIKVISION, Mobotix and Vivotek. the machine-to-machine communications market, ivegsily compete

with AlertMe.com, EnergyHub and Motorola. We expiecreased competition from other establishedemdrging companies if our market
continues to develop and expand. As we enter nerkets® we expect to face competition from incumtsard new market participants.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, &@érk and trade secret laws, as well as confidéptimocedures and contractual restrictic
to establish and protect our proprietary rightseSehlaws, procedures and restrictions provide kamiyed protection and the legal standards
relating to the validity, enforceability and scagfeprotection of intellectual property rights anecertain and still evolving. Furthermore,
effective patent, trademark, copyright and tradeeteprotection may not be available in every couimt which our services and products are
available. We seek patent protection for certaiowfkey concepts, components, protocols, processother inventions.

As of June 30, 2015we had 23 issued patents in the United Statessi®d patents in foreign countries and over Et@ling U.S. and foreic
patent applications. These patent applicationse¢tavarious features embedded in certain of oodyxts, including the integration of
components in a microwave system and certain pagnce improvements to radio receivers, and cetgaimologies in developments. We
have filed, and will continue to file, patent aggliions in the United States and other countriesrevtwve believe there to be a strategic
technological or business reason to do so. Anynpaissued to us now or in the future may be chgd, invalidated or circumvented and may
not provide sufficiently broad protection or mayt poove to be enforceable in actions against atlegi&ingers.

As of June 30, 2015we owned U.S. trademark registrations in Ubiquibiquiti Networks, the U logo, the beam logo, UBMirMAX, airOS,
airFiber, airGateway, airGrid, airPRISM, airViewniBi, mFi, EdgeMAX, InnerFeed, NanoBeam, NanoStgtidanoBridge, PowerBeam,
PowerBridge, Rocket, and a number of trademarkiegans and registrations in the United Statesathdr countries.

We endeavor to enter into agreements with our eyegl® and contractors and with parties with whondwéusiness in order to limit access to
and disclosure of our proprietary information. Vot be certain that the steps we have takerprellent unauthorized use or reverse
engineering of our technology. Moreover, others iinagpendently develop technologies that are coithgetvith ours or that infringe on our
intellectual property. The enforcement of our ilgefual property rights also depends on the suanfessr legal actions against infringers and
counterfeiters, but these actions may not be sefidegven when our rights have been infringed.

Employees

As of June 30, 2015 , we employed 435 full timeiegjent employees, which included 300 in researchd@evelopment, 53 in sales, general
and administrative and 82 in operations. We algmaga a number of consultants. None of our emplogeegepresented by a labor union or
party to a collective bargaining agreement. We ictansour relations with our employees to be good.

Corporate Information

We were incorporated in the State of Californi2@®3 as Pera Networks, Inc. and we commenced otardwoperations in 2005 and changed
our name to Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. at that time June 2010, Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., a Californ@poration, changed its state of
organization to Delaware by merging with and intaiddiiti Networks, Inc., a Delaware corporation. @uecutive offices are located at 2580
Orchard Parkway, San Jose, California 95131, andetephone number is (408) 942-3085. Our websithess is www.ubnt.com. The
information on, or that can be accessed throughyebsite is not part of this Annual Report on FA®AK.

Unless the context requires otherwise, the words™Wus,” “our” “
subsidiaries as a whole.

Company” and “Ubiquiti” refer to Biquiti Networks, Inc. and its
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Financial Information About Geographic Areas

Refer to Note 12 in our Notes to Consolidated FifalrStatements included under Part IV, Item 1 report for financial information abc
our geographic areas.

Available Information

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quart&gports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Forikh 8nd amendments to reports fi
pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Séesifiixchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchangd Age filed with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “SEC"). Such reportisather information filed by the Company with BEC are available free of charge on
the Company'’s website at_http://ir.ubnt.com/sen.when such reports are available on the SEC welidite public may read and copy any
materials filed by the Company with the SEC at$i#C’s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, NBnRd580, Washington, DC 20549.
The public may obtain information on the operatidnthe Public Reference Room by calling the SEC-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains
an Internet site that contains reports, proxy aforination statements and other information regaydsuers that file electronically with the
SEC at_www.sec.govThe contents of these websites are not incorpdiiato this filing. Further, the Company’s referes to the URLSs for
these websites are intended to be inactive texéfi@tiences only.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This Report contains forward-looking statements &na subject to risks and uncertainties that coaltse actual results to differ materially
from those projected. These risks and uncertaimmigsade, but are not limited to, the risk factees forth below. These risks and uncertainties
are not the only ones we face. If any event reladdtiese known or unknown risks or uncertaintisally occurs, our business prospects,
results of operation, and financial condition cobddmaterially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

Fluctuations in our operating results could causkda market price of our common stock to decline.

Our quarterly operating results fluctuate signifitta due to a variety of factors, many of which atgside of our control and are difficult or
impossible to predict. We expect our operating lteswuill continue to fluctuate. You should not ray our past results as an indication of our
future performance. If our revenues or operatirsglts fall below the expectations of investorseusities analysts, or below any estimates w
may provide to the market, the price of our comralbares would likely decline substantially, whiclukcbhave a material adverse impact on
investor confidence and employee retention. Ourrmomstock has experienced substantial price vityasince our initial public offering. In
addition, the stock market as a whole has expegntajor price and volume fluctuations that haveciéd the stock price of many technolc
companies in ways that may have been unrelatdteetcompanies’ operating performance.

Factors that could cause our operating resultstouk price to fluctuate include:

» varying demand for our products due to the findrania operating condition of our distributors ahdit customers, distributor invent:
management practices and general economic conglition

» shifts in our fulfillment practices including in@sing inventory levels as part of efforts to desecaur delivery lead time
» failure of our suppliers to provide chips or otkemponent:

» failure of our contract manufacturers and suppliensmeet our demar

* success and timing of new product introductionsi®yand our competito

e increased warranty cos

* announcements by us or our competitors regardiodysts, promotions or other transactis

e costs related to legal proceedings or respondimggt@rnment inquirie

» our ability to control and reduce product costs]

» expenses of our entry into new mark

In addition, our business may be subject to sedisprethough our recent growth rates and timirfigoduct introductions may have masked
seasonal changes in demand.
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We have limited visibility into future sales, whighakes it difficult to forecast our future operatqresults.

Because of our limited visibility into end custont'gmand and channel inventory levels, our abititpdcurately forecast our future revenues i
limited. We sell our products and solutions glopédl network operators, service providers and athgimarily through our network of
distributors. We do not employ a direct sales fo8ales to our distributors have accounted foripedirof our revenues. Our distributors do
not make long term purchase commitments to usdambt typically provide us with information aboutarket demand for our products. We
endeavor to obtain information on inventory levaatsl sales data from our distributors. This infoiorahas been generally difficult to obtain

a timely manner, and we cannot always be certainttfe information is reliable. If we over forecdsmand, we may not be able to decrease
our expenses in time to offset any shortfall ineraves. If we under forecast demand, our abilifylfdll sales orders will be compromised and
sales to distributors may be deferred or lost aitiogyr.

We are subject to risks associated with our disttirs’ inventory management practices.

Our distributors purchase and maintain their owrentories of our products, and we do not contreirtmventory management. Distributors
may manage their inventories in a manner that casigaificant fluctuations in their purchases frquarter to quarter, and which may not be ir
alignment with the actual demand of end custormmarstir products. If some distributors decide tochase more of our products than are
required to satisfy their customers’ demand in panticular quarter, because they do not accuré&edcast demand or otherwise, they may
reduce future orders until their inventory leveadalign with their customers’ demand. If some disttors decide to purchase less of our
products than are required to satisfy their custshimand in any particular quarter, because tleegot accurately forecast demand or
otherwise, sales of our products may be deferrddsbaltogether.

If our forecasts of future sales are inaccurate, wigay manufacture too many or not enough produc

We may over or under forecast our customers’ acteaiand for our products or the actual mix of aadpcts that they will ultimately
demand. If we over-forecast demand, we may buitex inventory which could materially adverselyeffour operating results. If we under-
forecast demand, we may miss opportunities foissabel may impair our customer relationships, wiimhld materially adversely affect our
operating results.

The lead times that we face for the procuremegbaiponents and subsequent manufacturing of ouuptedre usually much longer than the
lead time from our customers’ orders to the expmkdtdivery date. This increases the risk that wg manufacture too many or not enough
products in any given period.

We may decide to increase or maintain higher levelsnventory.

With the use of third party logistics and warehaggproviders, we may decide to increase or mairtejher levels of inventory of finished
products or components, which may expose us teaterrisk of carrying excess or obsolete inventbgacisions to increase or maintain hic
inventory levels are typically based upon uncerfaiacasts or other assumptions. If the assumptianshich we base these decisions turn ou
to be incorrect, our financial performance coultfesuand we could be required to write-off the vahf excess products or components
inventory.

We rely on a limited number of distributors, and @hges in our relationships with our distributors ahanges within our distributors may
disrupt our sales.

Although we have a large number of distributoraumerous countries who sell our products, a limitechber of these distributors represent a
significant portion of our sales. One or more of major distributors may suffer from a declinelieir financial condition, decrease in demand
from their customers, or a decline in other aspefttheir business which could impair their abilitypurchase and resell our products. Any
distributor may also cease doing business witht asatime with little or no notice. The terminatiof a relationship with a major distributor,
either by us or by the distributor, could resulaitemporary or permanent loss of revenues. Wernmtke successful in finding other suitable
distributors on satisfactory terms, or at all, #imd could adversely affect our ability to selldertain geographic markets or to certain network
operators and service providers.

We may not be able to enhance our products to keape with technological and market developments levluiffering competitive prices.

The market for our wireless broadband networkingigment is emerging and is characterized by raggtiriological change, evolving industry
standards, frequent new product introductions &dt product life cycles. Our ability to keep paeehis market depends upon our ability to
enhance our current products, and continue to dp\aatd introduce new products rapidly and at coitiyeiprices. Our ability to compete
successfully will depend in large measure on otlitalo maintain a technically skilled developmetd engineering staff, to successfully
innovate, and to adapt to technological changesadmdnces in the industry. Development and deligehedules for our products are difficult
to predict. We may fail to introduce
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new versions of our products in a timely fashidmdw releases of our products are delayed, otrilglisors may curtail their efforts to market
and promote our products and our users may switcorpeting products.

The markets in which we compete are highly compe¢it

The networking, enterprise WLAN, video surveillanaéreless backhaul and machine-to-machine comnatinits markets in which we
primarily compete are highly competitive and arftuenced by competitive factors including:

e our ability to rapidly develop and introduce newthperformance integrated solutic

» the price and total cost of ownership and returineastment associated with the solutis
» the simplicity of deployment and use of the solusi

» the reliability and scalability of the solutio

» the market awareness of a particular br

e our ability to provide secure access to wirelegs/aeks;

» our ability to offer a suite of products and sajut

e our ability to allow centralized management of sloéutions; an

* our ability to provide quality product suppi

New entrants seeking to gain market share by intring) new technology and new products may also nitakere difficult for us to sell ou
products, and could create increased pricing prestuaddition, broadband equipment providersystesn integrators may also offer wireless
broadband infrastructure equipment for free oras @f a bundled offering, which could force ugeduce our prices or change our selling
model to remain competitive.

If there is a shift in the market such that netwoplerators and service providers begin to use dlnsévork solutions that only operate with
other equipment from the same vendor, we couldapee a significant decline in sales because oadtyxts would not be interoperable.

We expect competition to continuously intensifyoffser established and new companies introduce medupts in the same markets that we
serve or intend to enter, as these markets comageli@ur business will suffer if we do not maintaur competitiveness.

A number of our current or potential competitors ke longer operating histories, greater brand recdgpn, larger customer bases ar
significantly greater resources than we ¢

As we move into new markets for different typegqfiipment, our brand may not be as well-known esritbents in those markets. Potential
customers may prefer to purchase from their exjstumppliers rather than a new supplier, regardiépsoduct performance or features. We
expect increased competition from other establigmetlemerging companies if our market continuatet@lop and expand. As we enter new
markets, we expect to face competition from incumtlaed new market participants.

Many of these companies have significantly grefit@ncial, technical and other resources than wartbare better positioned to acquire and
offer complementary products and technologies.

Industry consolidation and other arrangements ancongpetitors may adversely affect our competitigsrigecause it may be more difficult to
compete with entities that have access to theirbioed resources. These combinations may also affstomers’ perceptions regarding the
viability of companies our size and, consequeraffect their willingness to purchase our products.

The complexity of our products could result in unfeseen delays or expenses caused by undetectedtdefebugs.

Our products may contain defects and bugs whenalreintroduced, or as new versions are releasechde focused, and intend to focus in
the future, on getting our new products to marketkly. Due to our rapid product introductions, &t and bugs that may be contained in ou
products may not yet have manifested. We havedmést experienced, and may in the future experjedefects and bugs. If any of our
products contain material defects or bugs, or blahility, quality or compatibility problems, weaw not be able to promptly or successfully
correct these problems. The existence of defedtsigs in our products may damage our reputatiordésrdpt our sales. If any of these
problems are not found until after we have commeémmmmercial production and distribution of a newduct, we may be required to incur
additional development costs, repair or replaceroesis and claims.
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Security vulnerabilities in our products, servicasd systems could lead to reduced revenues anandaigainst us

The quality and performance of some of our prodantsservices may depend upon their ability to st@thd cyber attacks. Third parties may
develop and deploy viruses, worms and other malicenftware programs, some of which may be desigmattack our products, systems, or
networks. Some of our products and services algalve the storage and transmission of users' aggbmers' proprietary information which
may be the target of cyber attacks. Hardware afid/iae that we produce or procure from third partiéso may contain defects in manufac
or design, including bugs and other problems, whimild compromise their ability to withstand cylbéacks.

We may have experienced cyber attacks in the aadtmay experience cyber attacks in the futurea Assult, unauthorized parties may have
obtained, and may in the future obtain, accessiteystems, data or our users' or customers' Gatasecurity measures may also be breache
due to employee error, malfeasance, or otherwisied Parties may also attempt to induce employessts, or customers to disclose sensitive
information in order to gain access to our datawrusers' or customers' data. Any such breacimauthorized access could result in
significant legal and financial exposure, damageuoreputation, and a loss of confidence in tleeisty of our products and services. Because
the techniques used to obtain unauthorized acdesdle or degrade service, or sabotage systemgelieequently, and often are not
recognized until launched against a target, we bgaynable to anticipate these techniques or toemeht adequate preventative measures.

The costs to us to eliminate or alleviate secunitinerabilities can be significant, and our effddsaddress these problems may not be
successful and could result in interruptions, delagssation of service and loss of existing oemtidl customers that may impede our sales,
manufacturing, distribution or other critical furmts, as well as potential liability to the compaife risk that these types of events could
seriously harm our business is likely to increaseva expand the web-based products and services¢haifer.

We may be unable to anticipate or fail to adequatalitigate against increasingly sophisticated metlsao engage in illegal or fraudulent
activities against us.

Despite any defensive measures we take to maneggtho our business, our risk and exposure gethwtters remain heightened because o
among other things, the evolving nature of suchatw in light of advances in computer capabilitiessy discoveries in the field of
cryptography, new and sophisticated methods usexdiimynals including phishing, social engineeringother illicit acts, or other events or
developments that we may be unable to anticipafaildio adequately mitigate. In June 2015, we deieed that we were the victim of crimil
fraud known to law enforcement authorities as bessre-mail compromise fraud which involved emplayggersonation and fraudulent
requests targeting our finance department. Thalfrasulted in transfers of funds aggregating $4tilifon held by a Company subsidiary
incorporated in Hong Kong to other overseas aceoheld by third parties, of which we have recove$@d. million . As a result, we have
recorded a charge of $39.1 million in the fourtlager of 2015, including additional expenses cdimgjof professional service fees associatec
with the fraud loss. The ultimate amount of thesladll depend, in part, on the Company's successdavering the funds. The Company may
not be successful in obtaining any insurance cgeefar this loss. While we do not expect the fremtiave a material impact on our business,
we have borne, and will continue to bear additiengienses in connection with the remediation améstigation of the fraud.

Our business and prospects depend on the strenf@iibuo brand.

Maintaining and enhancing our brand is criticatkpanding our base of distributors and end custendaintaining and enhancing our brand
will depend largely on our ability to continue tewetlop and provide products and solutions thatesdthe price-performance characteristics
sought by end customers and the users of our pt®dnd services, particularly in developing markeltigch comprise a significant part of our
business. If we fail to promote, maintain and protaur brand successfully, our ability to sustaid @xpand our business and enter new me
will suffer.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide our gimeers with valuable feedback that is importantdnir research and development
processes

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide ragidd substantive feedback on the functionality dfettveness of our products. The
insights, problems and suggestions raised by thguitbCommunity enable our engineers to quicklgalwe issues with our existing products
and improve functionality in subsequent productasks. If the members of the Ubiquiti Communityesmerbecome less engaged or otherwist
ceased providing valuable, timely feedback, owsrimtl research and development costs and our eimeatket could increase, which could
cause us to incur additional expenses or make roglupts less attractive to customers.
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We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to generate awaess of, and demand for, our products.

We believe a significant portion of our growth tatel has been driven by the diverse and activelgaged Ubiquiti Community, and our
business model is predicated on the assumptiorthtatibiquiti Community will continue to providedbe benefits. We do not have a direct
sales force and we engage in limited marketing ediperes. Although the Ubiquiti Community is centi@the success of our business, the
interactions within the Ubiquiti Community, and peipation levels, are largely outside of our cohtAny negative information about us or
products in the Ubiquiti Community, whether or petified, could quickly and materially decrease ttemand for our products.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide netvkooperators and service providers with supportiwstall, operate and maintain our
products.

We rely on the Ubiquiti Community to provide asarate and other information to network operatorssardice providers for the installation,
operation and maintenance of our products. Becaes#o not generate or control all of the informatpyovided through the Ubiquiti
Community, inaccurate information regarding theafliation, operation and maintenance of our proglaould be promulgated through forum
postings by members of the Ubiquiti Community.

Although we moderate and review many forum postiogearn of reported problems and assess the aocof advice provided by the
Ubiquiti Community, we may not devote sufficiemh# or resources to adequately monitor the qualitytaquiti Community information.

Inaccurate information in the Ubiquiti Communityubd lead to poor customer experiences or dissatisfawith our products, which could
negatively impact our reputation and diminish cales.

We may fail to effectively manage the challenges@sated with our growth.

Over the past several years we have expanded camithwe to expand, our product offerings, the nundfeustomers we sell to, our transac
volumes, the number of our facilities, and the namdif contract manufacturers that we utilize todarme our products. Failure to effectively
manage the increased complexity associated wishetkpansion, particularly in light of our lean mgement structure, would make it difficult
to conduct our business, fulfill customer ordersj pursue our strategies. We may also need teasercosts to add personnel, upgrade or
replace our existing reporting systems, as wellmggove our business processes and controls asili of these changes. If we fail to
effectively manage any of these challenges we csuifér inefficiencies, errors and disruptions ur business, which in turn would adversely
affect our operating results.

We rely on a limited number of contract manufactueeto produce our products.

We retain contract manufacturers, located primanilZhina, to manufacture our products. Any sigmifit change in our relationship with these
manufacturers could have a material adverse effecur business, operating results and financiadlition. Our reliance on contract
manufacturers for manufacturing our products casemt significant risks to us because, among ¢tieys, we do not have direct control over
their activities. We significantly depend upon contract manufacturers to:

» assure the quality of our produ

e manage capacity during periods of volatile dem

» qualify appropriate component suppli

* ensure adequate supplies of components and ma;

» deliver finished products at agreed upon pricessahedules; ar

» safeguard materials and finished go
The ability and willingness of our contract manuémers to perform is largely outside our control.
We believe that our orders may not represent armmabf®rtion of our contract manufacturers’ totatlers and, as a result, fulfilling our orders
may not be a priority in the event our contract ofanoturers are constrained in their capacity. ¥f ahour contract manufacturers experiences

problems in its manufacturing operations, or iflwee to change or add additional contract manufeictuour ability to ship products to our
customers would be impaired.

We rely upon a limited number of suppliers, ancciin be costly and time consuming to use compondémsh other suppliers.

We purchase components, directly or through outraohmanufacturers, from third parties that areessary for the manufacture of our
products. Shortages in the supply of componentghar supply disruptions may not be predictedrimetto design-in different components or
qualify other suppliers. Shortages or supply disams may also increase the prices of
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components due to market conditions. While manypmmments are generally available from a varietyoafrses, we and our contract
manufacturers currently depend on a single or &ichitumber of suppliers for several components dopooducts. For example, we currently
rely upon Qualcomm Atheros as a single-source gipgl certain components for some of our produantsl a disruption in the supply of those
components would significantly disrupt our business

We and our contract manufacturers generally relghmrt-term purchase orders rather than long-temmtracts with the suppliers of
components for our products. As a result, eveoifijgonents are available, we and our contract matwrgrs may not be able to procure
sufficient components at reasonable prices to luildproducts in a timely manner. We may, therefbesunable to meet customer demand fo
our products, which would have a material adveffgeton our business, operating results and firgucondition.

Not paying cash dividends to our stockholders, epurchasing shares of our common stock pursuanbta previously announced stoc
repurchase program, could cause the market price dor common stock to decline.

Our payment of cash dividends will be subject tapag other things, our financial position and resaf operations, available cash and cash
flow, capital requirements, and other factors. Ehasd other factors may also affect the continnatip or activity under, our previously
announced stock repurchase program. Failure ta@@sty dividends could cause the market price otommon stock to decline. The
discontinuance of, or lack of activity under, oueyiously announced stock repurchase program adstiresult in a lower market price of our
common stock.

A general global economic downturn may negativeljeat our customers and their ability to purchasemproducts. A downturn ma’
decrease our revenues and increase our costs ang merease credit risk with our customers and impaar ability to collect account
receivable and recognize revenue.

Since the middle of 2008, there has been global@oé uncertainty, including reduced economic gilgweduced confidence in financial
markets, bank failure and credit availability comse Disruptions in the financial markets have had may continue to have an adverse effec
on the U.S. and world economies, which could adhgrand materially impact business spending patteFightening of credit in financial
markets could adversely affect the ability of oustomers and suppliers to obtain financing for ificemt purchases and operations and could
result in a decrease in or cancellation of orderoér products.

Economic downturns may exacerbate some of the otler that affect our business, results of openatiand financial condition. A tighter
credit market for consumer, business, and senvioeger spending may have several adverse effextsiding reduced demand for our
products, increased price competition or deferroépurchases and orders by our customers. Additififects may include increased demand
for customer finance, difficulties in collection afcounts receivable and increased risk of couatsrailures.

Risks Related to Our International Operations

Our business is susceptible to risks associateth wjierations outside of the United States.

We have operations in China, Lithuania, Polandwaai, United States and elsewhere. We also selstadlaitors in numerous countries
throughout the world. Our operations outside oflimited States subject us to risks that we genedalinot face in the United States. These
include:

» the burdens of complying with a wide varietyfafeign laws and regulations, and the risks of nompliance
» fluctuations in currency exchange ra

» increasing labor costs, especially in Ch

« difficulties in managing the geographically remp&rsonne

» the complexities of foreign tax systems and chamg#seir tax rates and ruls

» limited protection and enforcement regimes forllatgual property rights in some countr

* increased financial accounting and reporting busderd complexity; ar

» political, social and economic instability in sojoesdictions

If any of these risks were to come to fruitioncduld negatively affect our business outside thagddnStates and, consequently, our operating
results. Additionally, operating in markets outsitie United States requires significant managemgention and financial resources. We
cannot be certain that the investment and additi@saurces required to establish, acquire or natiegoperations in other countries will
produce desired levels of revenues or profitability
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Our third party logistics and warehousing provideirs China and elsewhere may fail to safeguard anctarately manage and report our
inventory.

We use third party logistics and warehousing prersdocated in China to fulfill the majority of oworldwide sales. We also rely on our third
party logistics and warehousing providers to safieduand manage and report on the status of odupt® at their warehouse and in transit.
These service providers may fail to safeguard ooduyscts, fail to accurately segregate and repariroeentory, or fail to manage and track the
delivery of our products, which could have a matesdverse effect on our operating results andfirz condition.

To the extent that we develop some of our own mattiiring capacity, we will be subject to variousks associated with such activities.

We invested in developing our own manufacturingacéty to support our product development and pypiog. To the extent that we may
invest in and expand these manufacturing capads)iind increasingly rely upon such activitieswileface increased risks associated with:

» bearing the fixed costs of these activil

« directly procuring components and mater

» regulatory and other compliance requirem

e exposure to casualty loss and other disrupt

e quality control

* labor relations; ar

» our limited experience in operating manufacturiagilfties

Since these activities would be conducted in Chsoaye of these risks may be more significant dubddess predictable legal and political
environment.

Our business may be negatively affected by politeeents and foreign policy responses.

Geopolitical uncertainties and events could caaseadje or disruption to international commerce &edytobal economy, and thus could have
a material adverse effect on us, our supplierssiing providers, manufacturing vendors and custsiecluding our channel partners. Char

in commodity prices may also cause political uraiaty, and increase currency volatility that cafeetfeconomic activity. The foreign policies
of governments may be volatile, and may resulapid changes to import and export requirementgpmsclassifications, tariffs, trade
sanctions and embargoes that may prevent us friaringf products or providing services to particldatities or markets or may create delays
and inefficiencies in our supply chain. For examplaitical unrests and uncertainties in Easterrofe and Middle East may lead to
disruptions in commerce in those regions, which ldi@u turn impact our sales to those regions. Farrtiore, if the U.S. government imposes
new sanctions against certain countries or entisiesh sanctions could sufficiently restrict ouiligbto market and sell our products and may
materially adversely affect our results of openagio

Our ability to introduce new products and suppomioexisting products depends on our ability to mayegeographically dispersed research
and development teams.

Significant parts of our research and developmpetations are conducted in geographically dispeisslities. Our success depends on the
effectiveness of our research and developmentitesvWe must successfully manage these geogralphitispersed teams in order to meet
our objectives for new product introduction, prodgeality and product support. It can be diffiddteffectively manage geographically
dispersed research and development teams. If Wie féd so, we could incur unexpected costs oneila product development.

Our contract manufacturers, logistics centers andrtain administrative and research and developmepgrations are located in areas like
to be subject to natural disasters.

The manufacturing or shipping of our products a onmore facilities may be disrupted because amufacturing and logistics contractors
all located in southern China. Our principal exeaubffices are located in California. The riskseafithquakes, extreme storms and other
natural disasters in these geographic areas ardicgt. Any disruption resulting from these evenbuld cause significant delays in product
development or shipments of our products until veeadble to shift our development, manufacturingpgistics centers from the affected
contractor to another vendor, or shift the affe@dthinistrative or research and development aig#/to another location.
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Risks Related to Intellectual Property

We have limited ability to obtain and enforce inkettual property rights, and may fail to effectiyebbtain and enforce such rights.

Our success can depend significantly upon ourlattielal property rights. We rely on a combinatidmpatent, copyright, trademark, trade se
laws, and contractual rights to establish, mainsaid protect these intellectual property rightsphivhich afford only limited protection. Our
patent rights, and the prospective rights sougbuinpending patent applications, may not be megmiror provide us with any commercial
advantage and they could be opposed, contestednorented or designed around by our competitokeateclared invalid or unenforceable in
legal proceedings. In addition, patents may nasfeed from any of our current or future patentligppons. Any failure of our patents or ott
intellectual property rights to adequately protmaet technology might make it easier for our contpedito offer similar products or
technologies.

Confidentiality agreements with our employees,n&zes, independent contractors and others mayffaotieely prevent disclosure of our tra
secrets, and may not provide an adequate remetig ievent of unauthorized use or disclosure otraate secrets. We may also fail or have
failed to obtain such agreements from such perdaego administrative oversights or other reasons.

Monitoring unauthorized use of our intellectual peaty is difficult and costly. Unauthorized useoofr intellectual property, such as the
production of counterfeits of our products, andutharized registration and use of our trademarkthivg parties, is a matter of ongoing
concern. The steps we have taken may not prevenithiorized use of our intellectual property. We rfalto detect infringements of, or take
appropriate steps to enforce, our intellectual priyprights. Our competitors might independentlyalep similar technology without infringir
our intellectual property rights. Our inability failure to effectively protect our intellectual prerty could reduce the value of our technology
and could impair our ability to compete. Any indtgibr failure by us to meaningfully protect outetiectual property could result in
competitors offering products that incorporate mast technologically advanced features.

We have initiated and may continue to initiate lggaceedings to enforce our intellectual propeigits. Litigation, whether we are a plaintiff
or a defendant, can be expensive and time-consymmag place our intellectual property at risk oirlgeinvalidated or narrowed in scope, and
may divert the efforts of our technical staff andmagerial personnel.

Enforcement of our intellectual property rights abad, particularly in China and South America, isited.

The intellectual property protection and enforcetmegimes in certain countries outside the Unittde5S are generally not as comprehensi

in the United States, and may not adequately proigcintellectual property. The legal regimes tialgito the recognition and enforcement of
intellectual property rights in China and South Aite are particularly limited. Legal proceedingstdorce our intellectual property in these
jurisdictions may progress slowly, during which éimfringement may continue largely unimpeded. Goes that have relatively inefficie
intellectual property protection and enforcemegimes represent a significant portion of the denfandur products. These factors may make
it more challenging for us to enforce our intelleadtproperty rights against infringement. The imeément of our intellectual property rights,
particularly in these jurisdictions, may materigiigrm our business in these markets and elsewlgardbcing our sales, and diluting our br

or reputation.

Our contract manufacturers may not respect our ifieetual property, and may produce products thangpete with ours.

Our contract manufacturers operate in China, whegrosecution of intellectual property infringerhand trade secret theft is more difficult
than in the United States. In the past, our cohtranufacturers, their affiliates, their other cusers or their suppliers have attempted to
participate in efforts to misappropriate our irgetlial property and trade secrets to manufactureraducts for themselves or others without
our knowledge. Even if the agreements with our mamtmanufacturers, and applicable laws, prohiigtrt from misusing our intellectual
property and trade secrets, we may be unsuccéssfdnitoring and enforcing our intellectual profyerights against them. We have in the
past, and continue to discover, counterfeit goadsdisold as our products or as other brands.

We operate in an industry with extensive intelleatyproperty litigation.

Our commercial success depends in part upon usancbmponent suppliers not infringing intellectpaebperty rights owned by others, and
being able to resolve intellectual property claimthout major financial expenditures. Our key come@ot suppliers are often targets of
intellectual property claims, and we are subjeal#&ims as well.

There are numerous patents and patent applicatidhe United States and other countries relatingommunications technologies. It can be

difficult or impossible to conduct meaningful sdas for patents relating to our technologies, @pproach third parties to seek a license to
their patents. Even extensive searches for patieatsnay be relevant to our products
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may not uncover all relevant patents and patentcgipns. We cannot determine with certainty wieethny existing or future third party
intellectual property rights would require us ttealour technologies, obtain licenses or ceasaicesttivities.

We have received, and may in the future receiamd from third parties asserting intellectual gndyp infringement and other related claims.
As our revenues grow and our profile increasesfrifguency and significance of these claims mayeiase. Whether or not there is merit to a
given claim, it can be time consuming and costlgefend against, and could:

» adversely affect our relationships with our currentuture users, customers and suppl
e cause delays or stoppages in the shipment of @giupts

» cause us to modify or redesign our prodt

» divert managemerd’attention and resourc

e subject us to significant damages or settlem

* require us to enter into costly licensing agreeisiem

e require us to cease offering certain of our prosloctservice:

Some of our competitors may have substantiallytgraasources than we do and may be able to subtaitosts of complex intellectual
property litigation to a greater degree and fogkmperiods of time than we could. In additiongpatholding companies and other third-party
non-practicing entities that focus on extractingalties and settlements by enforcing patent righdy target our component suppliers,
manufacturers, us, our distributors, members ofsalgs channels, our network operators and sepviséders, or other purchasers of our
products. These companies typically have littl@@product revenues and therefore our patents mmyde little or no deterrence against such
companies filing patent infringement lawsuits agamur component suppliers, manufacturers, usdistributors, members of our sales
channels, network operators and service provigersther purchasers of our products.

In addition to liability for monetary damages agsins or, in certain circumstances, our networkafees and service providers, we may be
prohibited from developing, commercializing or dooing to provide certain of our products unlessols&ain licenses from the holders of the
patents or other intellectual property rights. Vdarmot assure you that we will be able to obtainsmgh licenses on commercially reasonable
terms, or at all. If we do not obtain licenses, business, operating results and financial conditiould be materially affected and we could,
example, be required to cease offering our producke required to materially alter our producthjal could involve substantial costs and
time to develop.

The production of counterfeit versions of our prodts may reduce our sales levels and damage our fran

We have in the past and continue to discover cofgit&ersions of our products. Although we havestasteps to combat counterfeiting, it is
difficult or impossible to detect or prevent alsiances of counterfeiting. Particularly if the diyabf counterfeit products is poor, damage cc
be done to our brand. Combating counterfeitingfficdlt and expensive, and may not be successipecially in countries that have a
relatively weak legal regime for the protectionimttllectual property.

We use open source software in our products thatyrsabject source code to public release or requiseto re-engineer our products.

We use open source software in certain of our prsand may use more open source software irutheet

There have been claims challenging the ownershigpftfvare against companies that use open soufivease in the development of their
products. We could become subject to claims reggrttie ownership of what we believe to be our pedary software.

Usage of open source software can also lead toegnesks than the use of third party commercidtveare, since open source licensors
generally do not provide warranties or controlagin of the software.

Some open source licenses contain requirementsisked make available and license the source coded modifications or derivative works
that they create based upon the open source seftifave combine our proprietary software with openirce software we could, in some
circumstances, be required to release our propyistaurce code publicly or license such source ardenfavorable terms or at no cost. That
could significantly diminish the value of some afr@roducts and negatively affect our business.
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Risks Related to Our Management and Structure

We may lose the services of our founder and ChigkEutive Officer, Robert J. Pera, or other key pensel.

Our success and future growth depend on the skitisking relationships and continued services afraanagement team, and in particular ou
founder and Chief Executive Officer, Robert J. P€nar future performance may also depend on olityato retain other key personnel. We
do not maintain any significant key person insueawtth regard to any of our personnel.

Our business model relies in part on leanly stafifediependent and efficient research and developteams. Our research and development
teams are organized around small groups or ind@idantributors for a given platform, and therétite overlap in knowledge and
responsibilities. In the event that we are unabletain the services of any key contributors, vay ime unable to bring our products or product
improvements to market in a timely manner, if tcilie to disruption in our development activities.

Our future success also depends on our abilityttad, retain and motivate skilled personnel. &lbur employees work for us on an at will
basis. Competition for personnel is intense inntb®vorking equipment industry, particularly for pens with specialized experience in areas
such as antenna design and radio frequency equtpihere are unable to attract and retain the nemgspersonnel our business could be
materially adversely affected.

We may fail to manage our growth effectively andvééop and implement appropriate control systems.

We have substantially expanded our business anatiqes in recent periods, including increaseh@riumber of our distributors, contract
manufacturers, headcount locations and facilifiésés rapid expansion places a significant straimenmanagerial, administrative, and
operational resources. Our business model refteotslecision to operate with streamlined infradtices with lower support and administrative
headcount. That may increase the risks associdathdnanaging our growth, and we may not have siefficinternal resources to adapt or
respond to unexpected challenges and compliancéreatents.

Our profitability may decline as we expand into ngoduct areas.

We receive a substantial majority of our revenuesfthe sale of outdoor wireless networking equipimas we expand into other products
and services, such as enterprise WLAN, video sllaneie equipment, wireless backhaul and machinedchine communications, we may not
be able to compete effectively with existing manetticipants and may not be able to realize atipesieturn on the investment we have made
in these products or services. Entering these rntarkay result in increased product developmentscasid our new products may have
extended time to market relative to our currentprts. If our introduction of a new product is satcessful, or if we are not able to achieve
the revenues or margins we expect, our operatisigteemay be harmed and we may not recover oumgtatevelopment and marketing
expenditures.

We may also be required to add a direct sales famdecustomer support personnel to market and stippw or existing products, which
would cause us to experience substantially lowedypcet margins or increase our operating expensading a direct sales force or customer
support personnel could reduce our operating incangemay not be successful.

Our operating expenses are increasing as we makgeexlitures to enhance and expand our operations.

Over the past several years, we have increaseexpenditure on infrastructure to support our apsitéd growth and as a result of our being a
public company. We are continuing to make signiftdavestments in information systems, hiring madeninistrative personnel, using more
professional services and expanding our operatiatside the United States. We intend to make amtgitiinvestments in systems and
personnel and continue to expand our operatiosggport anticipated growth in our business. Assaltewe expect our operating expenses to
increase.

In addition, we may need in the future to builditrect sales force to market and sell our producisrovide additional resources or cooperative
funds to our distributors. Such changes to ourtiexjsales model would likely result in higher sedl general and administrative expenses as
percentage of our revenues.

Compliance with conflict mineral disclosure requineents will create additional compliance cost and ynareate reputational challenges.

Pursuant to Section 1502 of the Dodd-Frank ActtéthStates publicly-traded companies are requoeatisclose use or potential use of certair
minerals and their derivatives, including tantaldim, gold and tungsten, that are mined from thenDeratic Republic of Congo and adjoining
countries and deemed conflict minerals.

These requirements necessitate due diligence etfodssess whether such minerals are used irradugis in order to make the relevant
required annual disclosures. There are, and wjlbhgoing costs associated with complying with ¢heescent
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disclosure requirements, including diligence tcedmine the sources of those minerals that may bé asnecessary to the production of our
products. We may face reputational challengesdbiald impact future sales if we determine thataierbf our products contain minerals not
determined to be conflict free or if we are unableerify with sufficient accuracy the origins df eonflict minerals used in our products.

We rely on third party software and services to dot our enterprise resource planning, financialamhning and analysis, and financial
reporting.

We currently use NetSuite and other software amdcsss to conduct our order management and finhpoieesses. The availability of this
service is essential to the management of our basirAs we expand our operations, we expect faaiidditional systems and service
providers that may also be essential to managindpasiness. Although the systems and servicesmbaiequire are typically available from a
number of providers, it is time consuming and gosilqualify and implement these relationships.

Our ability to manage our business would suffemi& or more of our providers suffer an interrupiiotheir business, or experience delays,
disruptions or quality control problems in theireogtions, or we have to change or add additioretesys and services. We may not be able to
control the quality of the systems and servicesaeeive from third party service providers, whichuld impair our financial reporting and m
negatively impact our operating results and finahcondition.

Our debt levels could adversely affect our abilityraise additional capital to fund our operatiora limit our ability to react to changes in
our industry or the economy.

As of June 30, 2015, our balance outstanding uodeexisting term loan and credit facility was $@willion . In the future we may need to
raise additional capital to fund our growth andragienal goals. If additional financing is not aabie when required or on acceptable terms,
we may not be able to expand our business, dewlephance our products, take advantage of busopgestunities or respond to competit
pressures, which could result in lower revenuesraddce the competitiveness of our products.

In addition, any potential debt level increasedadave important consequences, including:

e requiring a substantial portion of cash flows froperations to be dedicated to the payment of gral@nd interest on our indebtedne
thereby reducing our ability to use our cash fléavéund our operations and capital expenditured,@mrsue business opportunities;

» increasing our vulnerability to general industryl@tonomic condition
« limiting our ability to make strategic acquisitis or causing us to make nsinategic divestiture

» limiting our ability to obtain additional finaimg for working capital, capital expenditures, dsbtvice requirements, acquisitions and
general corporate or other purposes; and

» limiting our ability to adjust to changing matlenditions and placing us at a competitive disaage compared to competitors who
are less highly leveraged or have access to maitata

If we are unable to integrate future acquisitionsiscessfully, our operating results and prospectsikcbbe harmed

We may make acquisitions to improve or expand oodyct offerings. Our future acquisition strategyl depend on our ability to identify,
negotiate, complete and integrate acquisitionss@&tiansactions involve numerous risks, including:

» difficulties in integrating and managing the og@ns, technologies and products of the compaméeacquire, particularly in light of
our lean organizational structure;

« diversion of our managemestattention from normal daily operation of our Imesis
» our inability to maintain the key business relasibips and the brand equity of the businesses warag
» our inability to retain key personnel of the acqdibusiness, particularly in light of the demanesplace on individual contributo

e uncertainty of entry into markets in which wevbdimited or no prior experience and in which catifors have stronger market
positions;

» our dependence on unfamiliar affiliates and pagméthe companies we acqu

» insufficient revenues to offset our increased egperassociated with acquisitic

» our responsibility for the liabilities of the busises we acquire, including those which we mayntitipate; an

e our inability to maintain internal standards, coigr procedures and policies, particularly in lighbur lean organizational structt
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We may be unable to secure the equity or debt igndecessary to finance future acquisitions ondelrat are acceptable to us. Completing
acquisitions could consume significant amountsashc If we finance acquisitions by issuing equitganvertible debt securities, our existing
stockholders will likely experience dilution, arfdrie finance future acquisitions with debt fundimge will incur interest expense and may h
to comply with covenants and secure that debt abtig with our assets.

Our Chief Executive Officer has control over key @sion making as a result of his control of a major of our voting stock.

Robert J. Pera, our founder, Chairman, and Chiefcitive Officer, is able to exercise voting rightgh respect to a majority of the voti
power of our outstanding stock and therefore hasathility to control the outcome of matters subeditto our stockholders for appro
including the election of directors and any mergensolidation, or sale of all or substantially @fllour assets. This concentrated control ¢
delay, defer, or prevent a change of control, ntrergensolidation, or sale of all or substantiallyaf our assets that our other stockholi
support, or conversely this concentrated contrallc¢aesult in the consummation of such a transacti@at our other stockholders do
support. This concentrated control could also disgge certain potential investors from acquiring common stock and might harm
trading price of our stock. In addition, Mr. Per@stthe ability to control the management and mstji@tegic investments of our company
result of his position as our Chief Executive Gdfi@and his ability to control the election or re@ment of our directors. In the event of
death, the shares of our stock that Mr. Pera owth®evtransferred to his successors. As a boanshioee and officer, Mr. Pera owes a fiduc
duty to our stockholders and must act in good faitth manner he reasonably believes to be in tisé ihterests of our stockholders. A
stockholder, even a controlling stockholder, Mrni&Pis entitled to vote his shares in his own irgesewhich may not always be in the inter
of our stockholders generally.

Risks Related to Regulatory, Legal and Tax Matters

We are subject to export control and economic s@moes laws in the United States and elsewhere whicluld impair our ability to compete
in international markets and subject us to liab#itif we do not comply with applicable laws.

A substantial majority of our sales are into costioutside of the United States. Sales of ourymrtsdinto certain countries are restricted or
prohibited under U.S. export control and econoraitc§ons laws. In addition, certain of our produntrporate encryption components that
are subject to export control regulations.

In May 2011, we filed a self-disclosure statemeiththe U.S. Commerce Department, Bureau of Ingumtd Security’s (“BIS”) Office of
Export Enforcement (“OEE”) relating a review contketby us regarding certain export transactions f2008 through March 2011 in which
products may have been later sold into Iran bytharties. In June 2011, we also filed a self-disate statement with the U.S. Department of
the Treasury’s Office of Foreign Asset Control (“&EF) regarding these compliance issues. We resallrednatters described in our self-
disclosures with the BIS and OFAC, and have takgmficant steps towards ensuring our complianciwkport control regulations and
embargoes. It is, however, possible that violatimay occur in the future. If violations should ocauthe future, the response of regulators
may be more severe in light of prior compliancecsons.

In addition to U.S. export regulations, variousestbountries regulate the import of certain endoyptechnology and products, and these laws
could limit our ability to distribute our produads our customers’ ability to implement our productshose countries. Changes in our products
or changes in export and import regulations magterdelays in the introduction of our productstimen countries, prevent our customers with
international operations from deploying our proguat, in some cases, prevent the transfer of mdyuts to certain countries altogether. Any
change in export or import regulations or relatgidlation, shift in approach to the enforcemergampe of existing regulations, or change in
the countries, persons or technologies targeteslibly regulations, could negatively impact our abtl sell our products to existing customers
or the ability of our current and potential distribrs, network operators and service providersidaithe United States.

New regulations or changes in existing regulationsated to our products may result in unanticipatédirdens, costs and liabilitie:

Products that involve electromagnetic emissionsabgect to regulation in the United States andother countries in which we do business
the United States, various federal agencies inctuthie Center for Devices and Radiological Healtthe Food and Drug Administration, the
Federal Communications Commission, the OccupatiSagty and Health Administration and various stafencies have promulgated
regulations that concern the use of electromageatissions standards. Member countries of the ElUo#imer countries have enacted similar
standards concerning electrical safety and eleagoratic compatibility and emissions standardsnyf@f our products becomes subject to nev
regulations or if any of our products becomes dSmadly regulated by additional government entitieempliance with such regulations could
become more burdensome, and we may be unablep@shproducts or they may cost substantially niongroduce, which would reduce our
revenues and increase our cost of revenues.
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Government regulations designed to protect persom@vacy may make it difficult for us to sell ourrpducts.

Our products may transmit and store personal indion. The handling of such information is increa$y subject to regulations in numerous
jurisdictions around the world. These regulatiorestgpically intended to protect the privacy andwsy of personal information that
collected, stored and transmitted in or from theegoing jurisdiction. In addition, because varidoieign jurisdictions have different
regulations concerning the storage and transmissgipersonal information, we may face unknown regmients that pose compliance
challenges in new geographic markets that we seekter. Our efforts to protect the privacy of imiation may also fail if our encryption and
security technology is inadequate or fails to ofgees expected. The difficulties in complying wpttivacy and data protection regulations cc
subject us to costs, delayed product launcheslitiab or negative publicity that could impair oability to maintain or expand our operations
into some countries and therefore limit our futgrewth.

Our products rely on the availability of specifimlicensed radio frequency spectrum.

Our products operate in unlicensed radio frequétiRF’) spectrum, which is used by a wide range efides such as cordless phones, baby
monitors, and microwave ovens, and is becomingeasingly crowded. If such spectrum usage contitma@screase through the proliferatior
consumer electronics and products competitive wifts, and others, the resultant higher levelstel and interference in the frequency
bands used by our products could decrease theunggaducts. Our business could be further harmedriently unlicensed RF spectrum
becomes subject to licensing in the United Statedsewhere. Network operators and service prositleat use our products may be unable to
obtain licenses for RF spectrum at reasonable pocat all. Even if the unlicensed spectrum remaimicensed, existing and new governmen
regulations may require we make changes in ourymtsd For example, to provide products for netwapkrators and service providers who
utilize unlicensed RF spectrum, we may be requiodinit their ability to use our products in liceed RF spectrum. The operation of our
products by network operators or service providethe United States or elsewhere in a mannermoompliance with local law could resuli
fines, operational disruption, or harm to our region. In addition, if new spectrums, either liced®r unlicensed, are made available by
government regulatory agencies for broadband véisstemmunication that may disrupt the competitrelscape of our industry and impact
our business.

We could be adversely affected by unfavorable resin litigation.

We may be involved, from time to time, in a variefyclaims, lawsuits, investigations, and procegslirelating to contractual disputes,
intellectual property rights, employment matteegulatory compliance matters and other litigaticatters relating to various claims that arise
in the normal course of business and otherwigzaritbe difficult or impossible to predict the outeof legal proceedings with any degree of
certainty, particularly given that laws may be aguius and factual findings can often be the resfuticomplete evidence, opinions, varying
standards or proof, and extraneous factors. Ifasmaore of the legal proceedings to which we magileecome a party are resolved again
our results of operations and financial conditionld be adversely affected.

We may become subject to warranty claims, prodiatility and product recalls.

We have received, and may in the future receiveramsy or product liability claims that may requirs to make significant expenditures to
defend these claims or pay damage awards. In &t @f a successful warranty claim, we may alsaricosts if we compensate the affected
network operator or service provider. Such clainay mequire a significant amount of time and expangsesolve and defend against, and ¢
also harm our reputation by calling into questioa guality of our products. We also may incur casid expenses relating to a recall of one ol
more of our products. The process of identifyingatked products that have been widely distributey tme lengthy and require significant
resources and we may incur significant replaceroesits, contract damage claims and harm to ouragpnt

Our customers and the users of our products may entpus to indemnify them against claims for intetteial property infringement, defectiy
products and other losse

Our customers, users and other parties may expdotindemnify them for losses incurred in conr@tivith our products, including as a re:
of intellectual property infringement, defectiveoducts, and security vulnerabilities, even if ogrements with them do not require us to
provide this indemnification. In some instancesmay decide to defend and indemnify them, irrespeatf whether we believe that we have
an obligation to do so. The expenses associatddpritviding indemnification can be substantial. iWay also reject demands for
indemnification, which may lead to disputes witbustomer or other party and may negatively impactrelationships with them.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal controls, we may not be able to accurately repmur financial condition or results of
operations or safeguard our assets.

Section 404 of the Sarban@sdey Act requires our management to furnish a remo, and our independent registered public adogrirm to
attest to, the effectiveness of our internal cdrdwer financial reporting. The applicable ruleguie us to
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disclose any material weaknesses in our interrakgbover financial reporting. As of June 30, 20fifanagement determined that the
Company did not maintain an effective control eomiment, attributable to a lack of sufficient, corngoe personnel necessary for effective
financial reporting. This resulted in the lack ohgprehensive and up-to-date accounting policiespandedures, skepticism on the part of key
accounting personnel, internal control trainingdership and adequate communication of roles asmbrsibilities. Growth in the complexity
of the business in fiscal year 2015 without comrmeste growth in the capabilities of the finance andounting organization contributed to
this deficiency.

The Company’s failure to maintain an effective cohénvironment contributed to a second deficieimcthe form of ineffectively designed and
maintained controls required for safeguarding ef@mmpany’s funds and timely detection of impradpansactions in the general ledger.
Specifically, the Company’s disbursement authoiarepolicies were not updated timely for changepénsonnel and positions nor were
authorization requirements clearly stated, inclgdimose for non-routine transactions.

The Company'’s failure to maintain an effective cohénvironment also contributed to a third defig in the form of ineffectively designed
and maintained controls over user access and ttmsgrivileges to modify and post entries to ¢femeral ledger and subsidiary ledgers. In
particular, the scope of user access and transgativileges to the general ledger and subsidiadgérs is not sufficiently restricted to provide
reasonable assurance of effective process andwr@astrols over postings to the general ledger.i#atublly, recent general ledger changes
were completed without due consideration of cotdtanpacts on segregation of duties controls.

These control deficiencies could result in misstegtets of accounts or disclosures that would eagiitran a material misstatement of the
interim or consolidated financial statements thatd not be prevented or detected and, therefoamagement has determined that these
control deficiencies constitute material weaknesdesvever, management has determined that thedorggnaterial weaknesses did not resul
in a material misstatement in the consolidatedniiiel statements as of June 30, 2015. Managemsritdtarmined that the first two material
weaknesses resulted in the Company’s inabilityréw@nt and timely detect the business e-mail comjz® fraud discussed in Note 14 that
caused a material misappropriation of Company ssbketight of these material weaknesses, the CaoyipaChief Executive Officer and

Interim Chief Accounting Officer concluded that tBempany did not maintain effective internal cohtreer financial reporting as of June 30,
2015.

In the event that we fail to remediate these malt@reaknesses in our internal control over findn@porting, investor perceptions of our
company may be adversely affected and could cadselme in the market price of our stock.

Failure to comply with the FCPA and similar laws otd subject us to penalties and other adverse cousnces.

We face significant risks if we fail to comply withe Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA”) of thaited States and other laws that prohibit
improper payments or offers of payment to foreignegnments and their officials and political pasti®y us and other business entities for the
purpose of obtaining or retaining business. In nmfangign countries, particularly in countries withveloping economies, which represent our
principal markets, it may be a local custom thatibesses operating in such countries engage indasspractices that are prohibited by the
FCPA or other laws and regulations. Although weehiavplemented a company policy requiring our emeésyand consultants to comply with
the FCPA and similar laws, there can be no assartrat all of our employees, and agents, as wéll@se companies to which we outsource
certain of our business operations, will not tagioas in violation of our policies, for which weay be ultimately held responsible. Any
violation of FCPA or similar laws could result iav&re criminal or civil sanctions and suspensiodedyarment from U.S. government
contracting, which could have a material and adveffect on our reputation, business, operatinglt®and financial condition.

We may suffer from unfavorable tax law changes, anfavorable government review of our tax returns, changes in our geographic
earnings mix.

We are subject to periodic audits or other revibws$ax authorities in the jurisdictions in which wenduct our activities. Tax authorities could
challenge our assertions with respect to how we ltanducted our business operations as might riesalltlaim for larger tax payments from
us.

In the ordinary course of our business, there ameyninstances where the determination of tax imghos is uncertain. Our calculations of
income taxes may be based on our interpretatioapplfcable tax laws in the jurisdictions in whiete file. The final determination of our
income tax liabilities may be materially differahtin what is reflected in our income tax provisians accruals.

The legislative bodies in many jurisdictions regiyl@onsider proposed legislation that, if adopteslld affect our tax rate in such
jurisdictions, and the carrying value of our dedertax assets or our tax liabilitie
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We conduct operations in multiple jurisdictionsgdaherefore our effective tax rate is influencediy amounts of income and expense
attributed to each such jurisdiction. If such antewmere to change so as to increase the amouots afet income subject to taxation in higher
tax jurisdictions, or if we were to increase ouergiions in jurisdictions assessing relatively leigtax rates, our effective tax rate could be
adversely affected.

If we are required to bring cash into the United&és to meet our future funding requirements, we yrfzave to pay high tax rates or se
other available funds.

We hold the substantial majority of our cash arshaquivalents in accounts of our subsidiariesideitsf the United States, as our business is
largely outside of the United States. Our expeiséise United States could increase faster thaexpect. If our cash held in the United States
became insufficient to meet our future funding iegments in the United States, we may transfer cashthe United States. If we decide to
transfer earnings from our non-U.S. subsidiariehéoUnited States, that could give rise to thedsifjion of potentially significant withholding
taxes by the jurisdictions in which such amountsenearned, and we may incur substantial tax ligslin the United States. In addition, we
may not receive the benefit of offsetting tax ctgdivhich also could adversely impact our effectaserate.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties

Our corporate headquarters are located in San Gadiégrnia consisting of approximately 64,512 sguieet of space, which we lease through
June 30, 2017. Additionally, we lease approxima®3y000 square feet of space in Suzhou, China,lwikibeing leased through June 16, 2(
These facilities house our prototype manufactufaagity in China.

In addition, we also lease facilities around theldiand within the facilities of certain supplids use as research and development facilities,
business development and support offices, warelsaurse logistics centers and test facilities. Tze aind location of these properties change
from time to time based on business requirememtsor research and development and business gewefd and support personnel, we also
have leased offices in Taiwan, China, Lithuaniaylaa Poland, India, the United Kingdom and varitagations within the United States of
America. We believe that our existing propertiesiargood condition and suitable for the conduadwf business.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Information with respect to this item may be foundNote 8 in the Notes Consolidated Financial $tegets included under Part IV, Item 15 of
this report.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant’'s Common Equity, Related Sktwmlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities
Market Information

Our shares of common stock are traded on the NASDA®Dal Select Market under the symbol “UBNT.” Tielowing table shows, for the
periods indicated, the high and low intra-day gadees for our common stock on the NASDAQ GlobdeSeMarket.

Year Ended June 30, 2015

High Low
First Quarter $ 50.0C $ 36.9¢
Second Quarter $ 3792 $ 26.9¢
Third Quarter $ 3297 $ 25.67
Fourth Quarter $ 3426 $ 25.5(

Year Ended June 30, 2014

High Low
First Quarter $ 37.4C $ 17.17
Second Quarter $ 46.8¢ $ 33.61
Third Quarter $ 56.8¢8 $ 37.5(
Fourth Quarter $ 4792 % 30.5(

As of August 17, 2015 , the number of record had#rour common stock was 10. Because most oftwanes are held by brokers and other
institutions on behalf of stockholders, we are uaab estimate the total number of beneficial stamtélers represented by these record holders
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares, for the period betw@etober 14, 2011 (the date of our initial pulbiifering) and June 30, 2015 , the
cumulative total stockholder return for our comnstock, the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQrpater Index. The graph
assumes that $100 was invested on October 14,ia@lr common stock, the NASDAQ Composite Index tr@elNASDAQ Computer Index
and assumes reinvestment of any dividends. Thé& giooe performance on the following graph is netessarily indicative of future stock
price performance. This performance graph shalbeadeemed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 &f 8ecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), or incorporated bgnence into any of our filings under the Secusittet of 1933, as amended, or the
Exchange Act, except as shall be expressly sét fiyrtspecific reference in such filing.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., the NASDAQ Compositelex, and the NASDAQ Computer Index
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*$100 invested on 10/14/11in stock or 9/30/11 in index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending June 30.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

On May 29, 2014, the Board of Directors authorigedo repurchase up to an additional $75.0 milibaur common stock. The share
repurchase program commenced on June 2, 2014.distal 2015 , the company repurchased 1,195 ,A8i®s of its common stock at an
average price per share of $29.02 for an aggregateint of $34.7 million . The share repurchase fanogwvas terminated on June 8, 2015.

On August 4, 2015, the Board of Directors of thenpany approved a $100 million stock repurchasenaragwhich expires on June 30, 2016.
Under the new stock repurchase program, the Compayyrepurchase up to $100 million of its commartist
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Common stock repurchase activity under the shamarchase program during the year ended June 36,284 as follows (in thousands, exc
share and per share amounts):

Total Number Estimated remaining balance

of Shares Average Price available for share
Period Purchased Paid per Share repurchase
April 1, 2015 - April 30, 2015 = $ = $ 60,00(
May 1, 2015 - May 31, 2015 665,71¢ $ 29.5¢ $ 40,28¢
June 1, 2015 - June 30, 2015 — $ = $ 40,28¢
Total 665, 71 $ 29.5¢  $ 40,28¢

Dividends

Dividend Policy

On September 30, 2014, we announced that our Bddddrectors had approved an annual dividend pole declared our first annual
dividend of $0.17 per share on September 30, .ZDid aggregate amount of $15.0 million was pai@atober 28, 2014 to stockholders of
record on October 17, 2014. The Company currerafyrio plans to pay a cash dividend at this tine any time in the foreseeable future.

Special Dividend

On December 14, 2012, we announced that our Bddbitectors had authorized a special cash dividefi0.18 per share for each share of
common stock outstanding on December 24, 2012 agjeegate dividend payment of $15.7 million wasigai December 28, 2012 to
stockholders of record on December 24, 2012. Atyréudetermination with respect to the declaratiod payment of dividends will be at the
discretion of our Board of Directors.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Comensation Plans

Information regarding the securities authorizedisuance under our equity compensation plans edaund under Item 12 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Unregistered Securities Sold During fiscal 2015
We did not sell any unregistered securities dufiscal 2015 .
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected consolidated statement of operatiot€@amprehensive income data for the fiscal yeade@ June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 anc
the consolidated balance sheet data as of JurZ938,and 2014 are derived from our audited conatditifinancial statements included
elsewhere in this report. The selected consolidsti@ment of operations and comprehensive incateefdr the fiscal years ended June 30,
2012 and 2011 and the consolidated balance sheeas@f June 30, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 are defiivadour audited consolidated financial
statements which are not included in this repoigtdtlical results are not necessarily indicativéubfire results and should be read in
conjunction with the section titled “Management's&ussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ares&ts of Operations” and the
consolidated financial statements, related notadosher financial information included in this cep

Years Ended June 30,

In thousands, except per share data 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income Data:

Revenues $ 59594 % 572,46 $ 320,82.  $ 35351 $ 197,87:
Cost of revenue®®@ 333,76( 318,99° 185,48¢ 202,51« 117,06:
Gross profit 262,18 253,46° 135,33« 151,00: 80,81:
Operating expenses:
Research and developm® 54,56¢ 33,96: 20,95 16,69¢ 11,37
Sales, general and administrat®® 21,607 23,56( 21,77t 9,012 7,35¢
Business e-mail compromise ("BEC") fraud loss 39,137 — — — —
Total operating expenses 115,30 57,52. 42,73 25,71 18,73:
Income from operations 146,87 195,94 92,60« 125,29; 62,08(
Interest income (expense) and other, net (1,130 (1,339 (851) (1,269 79
Income before provision for income taxes 145,74¢ 194,61 91,75: 124,02: 62,15¢
Provision for income taxes 16,08t 17,67+ 11,26: 21,43 12,43;
Net income and comprehensive income 129,66: 176,93 80,49( 102,58t 49,72;
Preferred stock cumulative dividend and accretiorost of preferred stock — — — (112,43) (42,06¢)
Less allocation of net income to participating pregd stockholders _ _ _ — (2,789
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhrstdebasic 129,66! 176,93 80,49( (9,842 4,87¢
Undistributed earnings re-allocated to common dtolders — _ — — 102
Net income (loss) attributable to common stockhtdediluted $ 129,66: $ 176,93 $ 80,49( $ 9,84 $ 4,97¢
Net income (loss) per share of common stock:
Basic $ 147 $ 20z $ 091 $ 012 $ 0.0¢
Diluted $ 148 $ 197 $ 08¢ $ 012 % 0.07
Weighted average shares used in computing net ia¢wss) per share of
common stock:
Basic 88,00¢ 87,77 88,31« 83,46( 63,09:
Diluted 89,56¢ 89,71¢ 90,25¢ 83,46( 66,90'
Cash dividends declared per common share $ 017 $ — $ 0.1¢ % — % —
@ Includes stoc-based compensation as follov
Cost of revenues $ 601 $ 59C $ 44 $ 117 $ 3C
Research and development 2,85¢ 2,427 1,43: 542 28t
Sales, general and administrative 1,537 1,89: 1,497 834 637
Total stock-based compensation $ 499 % 490¢ $ 337¢ $ 1,49 % 952
@ Includes purchase commitment termination fee tsvis: $ 550 $ — % — % — % —
® Includes a charge for (gain on reversal of chémgean export compliance
matter as follows: $ — $ 112) $ —  $ —  $ =
@ Includes gain from a trademark coexistence agraeasefollows: $ — % — % — % (1,500 % —
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June 30,

In thousands 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 446,40, $ 347,09 $ 227,82 $ 122,060 $ 76,36
Working capital 511,21: 413,40¢ 224,05: 155,46 90,30:
Total assets 600,57: 476,15: 292,34( 213,73¢ 131,67
Debt — short-term 10,00( — 5,01% 6,96¢ —_
Debt — long-term 87,50( 72,25¢ 71,11¢ 22,62 —
Redeemable convertible preferred stock — _ — — 145,84
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) 422,15 335,26: 147 43 130,95 (53,877

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations
Overview

Ubiquiti Networks develops high performance netvimgktechnology for service providers and entergrisdur technology platforms focus on
delivering highly-advanced and easily deployabletians that appeal to a global customer base detserved and underpenetrated markets.
Our differentiated business model has enabled bseimk down traditional barriers such as high pevdnd network deployment costs and ¢
solutions with disruptive price-performance chagsstics. This differentiated business model, caradiwith our innovative proprietary
technologies, has resulted in an attractive alter@ao traditional high touch, high cost providemtfowing us to advance the market adoptio
our platforms for ubiquitous connectivity.

We offer a broad and expanding portfolio of netviregkproducts and solutions for service providerd enterprises. Our service provider
product platforms provide carrier-class networkasfructure for fixed wireless broadband, wireleaskhaul systems and routing. Our
enterprise product platforms provide wireless LAdftastructure, video surveillance products, UniBI¥? phones, switches and machine-to-
machine communication components. We believe thapmducts are highly differentiated due to owppietary software protocol innovatic
firmware expertise, and hardware design capaltslifidais differentiation allows our portfolio to ntehe demanding performance requirement:
of video, voice and data applications at prices &ne a fraction of those offered by our compegitor

As a core part of our strategy, we have developdifferentiated business model for marketing artingehigh volumes of carrier and
enterprise-class communications platforms. Ourrtassi model is driven by a large, growing and higimgaged community of service
providers, distributors, value added resellerstesys integrators and corporate IT professionalsclmive refer to as the Ubiquiti Community.
The Ubiquiti Community is a critical element of dussiness strategy as it enables us to drive:

* Rapid customer and community driven product devetamt.We have an active, loyal community built from oustomers that we
believe is a sustainable competitive advantage.sOlutions benefit from the active engagement beitbe Ubiquiti Community and
our development engineers throughout the produatldpment cycle, which eliminates long and expemsiultistep internal processes
and results in rapid introduction and adoption af products. This approach significantly reducesdayelopment costs and time to
market.

» Scalable sales and marketing modWe do not currently have, nor do we plan to hirdiract sales force, but instead utilize the
Ubiquiti Community to drive market awareness anchded for our products and solutions. This commupitypagated viral marketing
enables us to reach underserved and underpenetnat&éts far more efficiently and cost-effectivéian is possible through traditional
sales models. Leveraging the information transparefithe Internet allows customers to researchluate and validate our solutions
with the Ubiquiti Community and via third party weltes. This allows us to operate a scalable saidsnarketing model and
effectively create awareness of our brand and mtsdiVord of mouth referrals from the Ubiquiti Comnmity generate high quality
leads for our distributors at relatively little ¢os

» Selfsustaining product supportThe engaged members of the Ubiquiti Community henabled us to foster a large, cost efficient,
highly-scalable and, we believe, self-sustainingima@ism for rapid product support and disseminatfanformation.

By reducing the cost of development, sales, margeind support we are able to eliminate tradititmainess model inefficiencies and offer
innovative solutions with disruptive price performea characteristics to our customers.
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Key Components of Our Results of Operations and Fencial Condition
Revenue:

Our revenues are derived principally from the sdleetworking hardware and management tools. litiatd while we do not sell maintenan
and support separately, because we have histgrioallded it free of charge in many of our arramgeats, we attribute a portion of our
systems revenues to this implied post-contracioecost support (“PCS”).

We classify our revenues into two primary prodwtiegories, Service Provider Technology and EnteepFechnology.

e Service Provider Technologyincludes our airMAX, EdgeMAX and airFiber platfornas well as embedded radio products and othe
802.11 standard products including base stati@u$os, backhaul equipment and Customer PremisgBwuit (“CPE").Additionally,
Service Provider Technology includes antennas émel @roducts in the 0.9 to 6.0GHz spectrum andetisneous products such as
mounting brackets, cables and power over Ethetegitars. Service Provider Technology also includesnues that are attributable
to PCS.

e Enterprise Technologyincludes our UniFi and mFi platforms, including UfARxducts, Unifi Video products, Unifi VOIP phonaisd
Unifi switches.

We sell our products and solutions globally to &enproviders and enterprises primarily through extensive network of distributors, and, 1
lesser extent, direct customers. Sales to distibutccounted for 98% of our revenues in the yede@ June 30, 2015 . Other channel partner
such as resellers, largely accounted for the balahour revenues.

Cost of Revenues

Our cost of revenues is comprised primarily of¢bsts of procuring finished goods from our contraenufacturers and chipsets that we
consign to certain of our contract manufactureraddition, cost of revenues includes tooling, fedood other costs associated with enginee
testing and quality assurance, warranty costskdtased compensation, logistics related fees anessxand obsolete inventory.

In addition to utilizing contract manufacturers, agsource our logistics warehousing and ordeillfuként functions, which are located
primarily in China, and to a lesser extent, Taiwafe also evaluate and utilize other vendors foiouer portions of our supply chain from time
to time. Our operations organization consists opleyees and consultants engaged in the managereunt contract manufacturers, new
product introduction activities, logistical suppartd engineering.

Gross Profit

Our gross profit has been, and may in the futurérifilenced by several factors including changegroduct mix, target end markets for our
products, pricing due to competitive pressure, patidn costs and global demand for electronic camepts. Although we procure and sell our
products in U.S. dollars, our contract manufactunecur many costs, including labor costs, in otherencies. To the extent that the exchange
rates move unfavorably for our contract manufactyhiey may try to pass these additional cost® ars, which could have a material impact
on our future average selling prices and unit costs

Operating Expenses

We classify our operating expenses as researcdearelopment and sales, general and administratipenses.

» Research and development expeiconsist primarily of salary and benefit expensesiuiding stockbased compensation, for employ
and costs for contractors engaged in researctgrmlasid development activities, as well as costpifototypes, licensed or purchased
intellectual property, facilities and travel. Ovane, we expect our research and development togtsrease as we continue making
significant investments in developing new prodwtd developing new versions of our existing prosluct

e Sales, general and administrative expensekide salary and benefit expenses, includingkstised compensation, for employees anc
costs for contractors engaged in sales, marketidgganeral and administrative activities, as wellree costs of legal expenses, trade
shows, marketing programs, promotional materiasl, tlebt expense, professional services, faciligieseral liability insurance and
travel. As our product portfolio and targeted méslexpand, we may need to employ different saledefspsuch as building a direct
sales force. These sales models would likely irseaur costs. Over time, we expect our sales, geard administrative expenses to
increase in absolute dollars due to
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continued growth in headcount, expansion of owreffto register and defend trademarks and paset$o support our business and
operations.

e Business-mail compromise fraud losdn June 2015, we determined that we were thémwiof criminal fraud known to law
enforcement authorities as business e-mail comm®ifnaud which involved employee impersonation faaddulent requests targeting
our finance department. The fraud resulted in feraf funds aggregating $46.7 million held by@npany subsidiary incorporated in
Hong Kong to other overseas accounts held by farties, of which we have recovered $8.1 millios.aresult, we have recorded a
charge of $39.1 million in the fourth quarter ofi30including additional expenses consisting ofgssional service fees associated
with the fraud loss.

Deferred Revenue

We recognize revenues when persuasive evidenae arffangement exists, delivery has occurred, thes gaice is fixed or determinable and
the collectability of the resulting receivable éasonably assured. In cases where we lack evideatall of these criteria have been met, we
defer recognition of revenue. Included in our defdmrevenues is a portion related to PCS obligatibat we estimate we will perform in the
future. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , we had dedaevenues of $3.5 million and $2.8 million ,gestively, related to these obligations.

Critical Accounting Policies

We prepare our consolidated financial statemendé&@ordance with accounting principles generalgepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”). In many cases, the accounting treatmdrd particular transaction is specifically dictalsdGAAP and does not require
management’s judgment in its application. In otteses, management’s judgment is required in setpathong available alternative
accounting standards that provide for differenpacting treatment for similar transactions. Thepgration of consolidated financial statem
also requires us to make estimates and assumpiianaffect the amounts we report as assets,itiabjlrevenues, costs and expenses and
the related disclosures. We base our estimatesstoribal experience and other assumptions thételieve are reasonable under the
circumstances. In many instances, we could rea$puoab different accounting estimates, and in sorsgnces changes in the accounting
estimates are reasonably likely to occur from metoperiod. Accordingly, our actual results codiffer significantly from the estimates made
by our management. To the extent that there aferdifces between our estimates and actual result§yture financial statement presentation
financial condition, results of operations and ciels will be affected. We believe that the acciingp policies discussed below are critical to
understanding our historical and future performaasahese policies relate to the more signifieaeas involving managemesjudgments ar
estimates.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues consist primarily of revenues from the eihardware and management tools, as well aztated implied PCS. We recognize
revenues when persuasive evidence of an arrangeisig, delivery has occurred, the sales pri¢eésl or determinable and the collectabi
of the resulting receivable is reasonably assuredases where we lack evidence that collectallitthe resulting receivable is reasonably
assured, we defer recognition of revenue untiréoeipt of cash.

For our sales, evidence of the arrangement corwdists order from a customer. We consider deliteryave occurred once our products have
been shipped and title and risk of loss have bearsterred. For our sales, these criteria are ttbeaime the products are transferred to the
customer's shipping agent. Our arrangements wittooers do not include provisions for cancellatieturns, inventory swaps or refunds that
would significantly impact recognized revenues.

We record amounts billed to distributors for shigpand handling costs as revenues. We classifpsig@nd handling costs incurred by us as
cost of revenues. Deposit payments received fratniblitors in advance of recognition of revenuesiacluded in current liabilities on our
balance sheet and are recognized as revenues Witen exiteria for recognition of revenues are met

Our multi-element arrangements generally include deliverables. The first deliverable is the hambavand software essential to the
functionality of the hardware device deliveredhat time of sale. The second deliverable is theigdpight to PCS included with the purchase
of certain products. PCS is the right to receiveaavhen and if available basis, future unspec#igftivare upgrades and features relating tc
product’s essential software as well as bug firesail and telephone support.

We use a hierarchy to determine the allocatioreeénues to the deliverables. The hierarchy is l&sfs: (i) vendorspecific objective evidens
of fair value (“VSOE"), (ii) third-party evidencef selling price (“TPE”"), and (iii) best estimate thie selling price (‘BESP”).

(i) VSOE generally exists only when a companyssiile deliverable separately and is the price Hgtolaarged by the company for that
deliverable. Generally we do not sell the delivégalseparately and, as such, do not have VSOE.
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(i) TPE can be substantiated by determining tieegthat other parties sell similar or substahtisimilar offerings. We do not believe that
there is accessible TPE evidence for similar dedibles.

(iii) BESP reflects our best estimates of what the gefiiices of elements would be if they were soldifady on a stand-alone basis. We
believe that BESP is the most appropriate methagolor determining the allocation of revenues amthegmultiple elements.

We have allocated revenues between these two dailes using the relative selling price method Wwhicbased on the BESP for all
deliverables. Revenues allocated to the delivesedviiare and the related essential software argnéxed at the time of sale provided the o
conditions for recognition of revenues have beeh Revenues allocated to the PCS are deferredesmoginized on a straight-line basis over
the estimated life of each of these devices whighenitly is two years. All costs of revenues, inlthg estimated warranty costs, are recogn
at the time of sale. Costs for research and dewatop and sales and marketing are expensed asedclirthe estimated life of the hardware
product should change, the future rate of amoitinatf the revenues allocated to PCS would alsogba

Our process for determining BESP for deliverabfe®ives multiple factors that may vary dependingrughe unique facts and circumstances
related to each deliverable. For PCS, we believenetwork operators and service providers wouldghgctant to pay for such services
separately. This view is primarily based on the faat unspecified upgrade rights do not obligatéauprovide upgrades at a particular time or
at all, and do not specify to network operators sewice providers which upgrades or featureshéltielivered. We believe that the relatively
low prices of our products and our network opegtand service providers’ price sensitivity woutttido their reluctance to pay for PCS.
Therefore, we have concluded that if we were tbREB on a stand-alone basis, the selling pricddvioe relatively low.

Key factors considered by us in developing the BEBRPCS include reviewing the activities of specédmployees engaged in support and
software development to determine the amount of timat is allocated to the development of the uneedd elements, determining the cost of
this development effort, and then adding an appatgptevel of gross profit to these costs.

Inventory and Inventory Valuatior

Our inventories are primarily finished goods amdatiesser extent, raw materials. Our inventoniestated at the lower of actual cost
(computed on a first-in, first-out basis), or markalue. Market value is based upon an estimatedage selling price reduced by the estimate
costs of disposal. The determination of market&ahwolves numerous judgments including estimasingrage selling prices based upon re
sales, industry trends, existing customer orders,seasonal factors. Should actual market condititiifier from our estimates, our future
results of operations could be materially affecié. reduce the value of our inventory for estimaibslolescence or lack of marketability by
the difference between the cost of the affectedniary and the estimated market value. Write-doavesot reversed until the related
inventory has been subsequently sold or scrapped.

The valuation of inventory also requires us tomate excess and obsolete inventory. The deterramafiexcess or obsolete inventory is
estimated based on a comparison of the quantitycastdof inventory on hand to our forecast of costodemand. Customer demand is
dependent on many factors and requires us to ga#isant judgment in our forecasting process. e aake assumptions regarding the rate
at which new products will be accepted in the mgolkee and at which customers will transition frolder products to newer products. If
actual market conditions are less favorable thardlprojected by management, additional inventoitevdowns may be required, which
would have a negative impact on our gross marginelultimately sell inventory that we have prewsguwritten down, our gross margins in
future periods will be positively impacted.

Product Warranties

We offer warranties on certain products and reedidbility for the estimated future costs assamatwith potential warranty claims. These
warranty costs are reflected in our consolidatatestent of operations and comprehensive incomengthst of revenues. Our warranties are
in effect for 12 months from the date of purch&er estimates of future warranty costs are largalsed on historical experience of product
failure rates, material usage and service deligests incurred in correcting product failures. ©Operating results could be materially and
adversely affected if future warranty claims exchidorical experiences and we are not able toverteoosts from our contract manufacturers.
In the future, we may introduce certain productwanger warranty periods.
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Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We record an allowance for doubtful accounts feinested probable losses on uncollectible accowsivable. In estimating the allowance,
management considers, among other factors, thg afitne accounts receivable, our historical woitis, the credit worthiness of each
distributor based on payment history and genem@@mic conditions.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes by recognizing defetagdhssets and liabilities for the expected futakeconsequences of events that have bee
included in our financial statements or tax retubwferred tax assets and liabilities are deterchiveesed on the temporary difference between
the financial statement carrying amounts of exgsinsets and liabilities and their respective tseb. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to &payable income in the years in which those tenayodifferences are expected to be
recovered or settled. We establish valuation alfeea when necessary to reduce deferred tax asgbes amount we expect to realize. The
assessment of whether or not a valuation allowaneequired often requires significant judgmentuding current operating results, the
forecast of future taxable income and ongoing pntided feasible tax planning initiatives.

In addition, our calculation of our tax liabiliti@svolves dealing with uncertainties in the appiica of complex tax regulations. We may be
subject to income tax audits in each of the jucigdns in which we operate and, as a result, mastassess exposures to any potential issues
arising from current or future audits of currentigmior years’ tax returns. Accordingly, we mussess such potential exposures and, where
necessary, provide a reserve to cover any expéatedTo the extent that we establish a reservepmvision for income taxes would be
increased. We review our potential liabilities pelically and, if necessary, record an additionalrgk in our provision for taxes in the perioc
which we determine that tax liability is greateamhour original estimate. If we ultimately determihat payment of these amounts is
unnecessary, we reverse the liability and recogaitex benefit during the period in which we detemrthat the liability is no longer necess:

Stoclk-based Compensation

We record stock-based awards at fair value aseofjithnt date and recognize expense, net of forésitwatably on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period, which is generally thstivigy term of the awards. We estimate the fair #alfistock option awards on the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. Thédmination of the fair value of a stock-basedralvem the date of grant using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model is affected by oucktprice on the date of grant as well as assumptiegarding a number of complex and
subjective variables. These variables include apeeted stock price volatility over the expecteuntef the award, actual and projected
employee stock option exercise behaviors, thefrisiinterest rate for the expected term of therdvaad expected dividends. Restricted stock
units are valued based on the fair value of ourrmomstock on the date of grant. Since our initigdlfe offering on October 14, 2011, the fair
value of our common stock is determined using thsireg market price of our common stock as of theaf grant.
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Results of Operations

Comparison of Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014
(In thousands, except percentages)

Revenues $ 595,94° 10% $ 572,46¢ 10(%
Cost of revenue9® 333,76( 56% 318,99 56%
Gross profit 262,18 44% 253,46 44%
Operating expenses:

Research and developmént 54,56¢ 9% 33,96: 6%

Sales, general and administratiVé 21,607 4% 23,56( 4%

Business e-mail compromise ("BEC") fraud loss 39,13 6% — —%

Total operating expenses 115,30¢ 19% 57,52 10%

Income from operations 146,87¢ 25% 195,94! 34%
Interest expense and other, net (1,130 * (1,339 *
Income before provision for income taxes 145,74¢ 24% 194,61: 34%
Provision for income taxes 16,08t 3% 17,67+ 3%
Net income and comprehensive income $ 129,66: 21% $ 176,93 31%
* Less than 1%
(1) Includes stock-based compensation as follows

Cost of revenues $ 601 $ 59C

Research and development 2,85¢ 2,42:

Sales, general and administrative 1,537 1,89:

Total stock-based compensation $ 4,992 $ 4,90¢€

(2) Includes purchase commitment termination fee $ 5,50(
(3) Includes gain on reversal of charge for an expamiance matter $ = $ (1,127

Revenues

Revenues increased $23.5 million , or 4% , from2$5 illion in fiscal 2014 to $595.9 million in fial 2015 . We believe the overall increase
in revenues during fiscal 2015 was driven by insegbadoption of our enterprise technologies, ghriidfset by a decrease in sales of our
Service Provider Technologies due to lower demamith four service provider customers outside of Néutierica, including as a result of
political and economic instability in some of thasgions.

In fiscal 2014 , Flytec Computers Inc. represertéth of our revenues. No other distributor or costorepresented more than 10% of our
revenues in fiscal 2015 or fiscal 2014 .

Revenues by Product Ty

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014
(in thousands, except percentages)
Service Provider Technology $ 418,02: 7% $ 450,66: 79%
Enterprise Technology 177,92t 30% 121,80: 21%
Total revenues $ 595,94 10% $ 572,46« 100%

Service Provider Technology revenues decrease® $3ilion , or 7% , during fiscal 2015 . The dedim revenues from Service Provider
Technologies was primarily due to lower demand fam service provider customers outside of Northefiog, including as a result of
political and economic instability in some of thasgions and the strength of the U.S. Dollar duthegfiscal year compared to some of the
currencies in these regions.

Enterprise Technology revenues increased $56.Iomillor 46% , during fiscal 2015 , primarily dueproduct expansion and further adoption
of our UniFi technology platform.
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Revenues by Geograp

We have determined the geographical distributioawfproduct revenues based on our customerstshipstinations. A majority of our sales
are to distributors who in turn sell to resellerslmectly to end customers, which may be differemtntries than the initial ship-to destination.
The following are our revenues by geography fardi015 and fiscal 2014 (in thousands, exceptgugages):

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014

North America(1) $ 197,69: 33% $ 142,43t 25%
South America 97,11¢ 16% 109,58: 19%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa 234,38: 40% 247,00¢ 43%
Asia Pacific 66,75: 11% 73,43: 13%
Total revenues $ 595,94 10% $ 572,46 10C%

(1) Revenue for the United States v$187.3 million and $136.6 million in fiscal 2015dfiscal 2014, respectively

North Americe

Revenues in North America increased $55.3 million39% , from $142.4 million in fiscal 2014 to 19 million in fiscal 2015 . The increase
in revenues in North America in fiscal 2015 complaiefiscal 2014 was due to increased adoptioruofService Provider Technologies and
Enterprise Technologies.

South America

Revenues in South America decreased $12.5 mill@ri1l% , from $109.6 million in fiscal 2014 to $@million in fiscal 2015 . We believe
the decrease in revenues in South America in fd@hb compared to fiscal 2014 was primarily duddgoreased demand for our Service
Provider Technologies due in part to economic titg and partially as a result of a strong U.Sull@r.

Europe, the Middle East, and Africa ("EME/

Revenues in EMEA decreased $12.6 million , or 386m $247.0 million in fiscal 2014 to $234.4 miltian fiscal 2015 . The decrease in
revenues in EMEA in fiscal 2015 compared to fi2@l4 was primarily due to decreased demand foSeuwvice Provider Technologies, due in
part to economic instability in this region andtfly as a result of a strong U.S. Dollar. Therdase was partially offset by increased adoy
of our Enterprise Technology platforms.

Asia Pacific

Revenues in the Asia Pacific region decreasedélion , or 9% , from $73.4 million in fiscal 201 $66.8 million in fiscal 2015 . The
decrease in revenues in the Asia Pacific regidisaal 2015 compared to fiscal 2014 was primarilg do decreased demand for our Service
Provider Technologies, partially offset by increhseoption of our Enterprise Technology platforms.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Cost of revenues increased $14.8 million , or 386m $319.0 million in fiscal 2014 to $333.8 milfian fiscal 2015 . The increase in cost of
revenues in fiscal 2015 was primarily due to insezhrevenues and to a lesser extent, changesdoginmix. Gross profit as a percentage of
revenue remained flat at 44% in both fiscal 2016 festal 2014 .

Operating Expenses
Research and Developme

Research and development expenses increased $#ibé ror 61% , from $34.0 million in fiscal 201té $54.6 million in fiscal 2015 . As a
percentage of revenues, research and developmeshsss increased to 9% in fiscal 2015 , comparééati fiscal 2014 . The increase in
research and development expenses in absolutedaltid as a percentage of revenues was due tasesrén headcount to support our strateg
as we broadened our research and developmenttiastito new product areas and certain one-timeséostirred for intellectual property
licensed or purchased for use in our products. @, we expect our research and development tmstntinue to increase in absolute
dollars as we continue making investments in dgietpnew products and developing new versions oeaisting products.
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Sales, General and Administrative

Sales, general and administrative expenses dedrshghtly, from $23.6 million in fiscal 2014 to $& million in fiscal 2015 . As a percentage
of revenues, sales, general and administrativeresqseremained flat at 4% in both fiscal 2014 aschli 2015 .

Business -mail compromise fraud loss

In June 2015, we determined that we were the vioficriminal fraud known to law enforcement authies as business e-mail compromise
fraud which involved employee impersonation anddident requests targeting our finance departnidre.fraud resulted in transfers of funds
aggregating $46.7 million held by a Company subsydincorporated in Hong Kong to other overseasawts held by third parties, of which
we have recovered $8.1 million . As a result, weehecorded a charge of $39.1 million in the foutfarter of 2015, including additional
expenses consisting of professional service fesscated with the fraud loss.

An additional $6.8 million of the amounts transéstrare currently subject to legal injunction analstnably expected to be recovered by
due course. We are continuing to pursue the regoekthe remaining $31.8 million and are coopemgtimith U.S. federal and numerc
overseas law enforcement authorities who are dgtpugsuing a multi-agency criminal investigation.

Provision for Income Taxe:

Our provision for income taxes decreased $1.6 onillior 9% , from $17.7 million for fiscal 2014$46.1 million for fiscal 2015 . Our
effective tax rate increased to 11% for fiscal 28$Eompared to 9% for fiscal 2014 . The highezative tax rate in fiscal 2015 was primarily
attributable to increased sales in the United Statel the decreased profit before taxes of HongyKue to the $39.1 million BEC fraud loss,
which decreased the tax benefit from foreign tae differential.

Comparison of Years Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013
(In thousands, except percentages)

Revenues $ 572,46 10% $ 320,82: 100%
Cost of revenue® 318,99° 56% 185,48t 58%
Gross profit 253,46° 44% 135,33 42%
Operating expenses:

Research and developmént 33,96: 6% 20,95¢ 6%

Sales, general and administratiV@ 23,56( 4% 21,77¢ 7%

Total operating expenses 57,52: 10% 42,73( 13%

Income from operations 195,94! 34% 92,60¢ 29%
Interest expense and other, net (1,339 * (851) *
Income before provision for income taxes 194,61: 34% 91,75 29%
Provision for income taxes 17,67 3% 11,26: 4%
Net income and comprehensive income $ 176,93 31% $ 80,49( 25%
* Less than 1%
(1) Includes stock-based compensation as follows

Cost of revenues $ 59C $ 44€

Research and development 2,42 1,43%

Sales, general and administrative 1,897 1,497

Total stock-based compensation $ 4,90¢ $ 3,37¢

(2) Includes gain on reversal of charge for an expammiance matter $ (1,123 $ —

Revenues

Revenues increased $251.6 million, or 78%, from0&Banillion in fiscal 2013 to $572.5 million in ial 2014. We believe the overall increase
in revenues in fiscal 2014 was primarily drivenibgreased adoption of our service provider andrprige technologies. Additionally, during
fiscal 2013 we believe we experienced lost salestduhe proliferation of counterfeit versions of @roducts, which also created customer
uncertainty regarding the authenticity of theirgydtal purchases. We believe these factors conéibio a buildup in channel inventory with
our distributors, further impacting our revenuesmy our fiscal 2013.
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In both fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, Flytec Compsiiac. represented 13% of our revenues. No datistnibutor or customer represented more
than 10% of our revenues in fiscal 2014 or fis€l2

Revenues by Product Ty

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013
(in thousands, except percentages)
Service provider technology $ 450,66: 7% $ 285,39( 89%
Enterprise technology 121,80: 21% 35,43: 11%
Total revenues $ 572,46« 10(% $ 320,82 10(%

Service Provider Technology revenues increased.3I68lion, or 58%, primarily due to continued exg#n of core infrastructure build-outs
in our wireless markets. Additionally, we believe experienced significant lost sales during fi@Hl3 due to the proliferation of counterfeit
versions of our products as discussed above, vdigthcreated customer uncertainty regarding thieeatitity of their potential purchases.

Enterprise Technology revenues increased $86.4omilprimarily due to product expansion and furtagoption of our UniFi technology
platform.

Revenues by Geograp

We have determined the geographical distributioowfproduct revenues based on our customerstslupstinations. A majority of our sales
are to distributors who in turn sell to resellerglmectly to end customers, which may be differemtntries than the initial ship-to destination.
Revenues increased in all of our geographic regioming fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013 tuacreased adoption of our service
provider and enterprise technologies. Additionadiyring fiscal 2013, we believe we experienced $ad¢s due to the proliferation of
counterfeit versions of our products, which alseated customer uncertainty regarding the authgntiitheir potential purchases. The
following are our revenues by geography for fis2@l4 and fiscal 2013 (in thousands, except pergesja

Years Ended June 30,

2014 2013
North America(1) $ 142,43t 25% $ 84,82( 26%
South America 109,58: 19% 65,764 21%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa 247,00¢ 43% 127,86( 40%
Asia Pacific 73,43¢ 13% 42,37¢ 13%
Total revenues $ 572,46: 10% $ 320,82: 10C%

(1) Revenue for the United States was $136.6 milliah®&80.6 million in fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013, pestively.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit

Cost of revenues increased $133.5 million, or 728 $185.5 million in fiscal 2013 to $319.0 miltian fiscal 2014. The increase in cost of
revenues in fiscal 2014 was primarily due to inseshrevenues and to a lesser extent, changesdaginmix.

Gross profit as a percentage of revenue incre@séd% in fiscal 2014 compared to 42% in fiscal 20&8ecting increasing economies of
scale, a one-time benefit from a rebate prograrh wite of our vendors, and changes in product naitjglly offset by an increase in our
provision for inventory obsolescence.

Operating Expenses
Research and Developme

Research and development expenses increased $ill®a,or 62%, from $21.0 million in fiscal 2018 $34.0 million in fiscal 2014. As a
percentage of revenues, research and developmeenses remained flat at 6% in both fiscal 20142048B. The increase in research and
development expenses in absolute dollars was phntare to increases in headcount as we
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broadened our research and development activitis§grbduce new products and new versions of exgiroducts. Over time, we expect our
research and development costs to increase inubsiibllars as we continue making significant inents in developing new products and
developing new versions of our existing products.

Sales, General and Administrative

Sales, general and administrative expenses ina¢kis8 million, or 8%, from $21.8 million in fiscdD13 to $23.6 million in fiscal 2014. As a
percentage of revenues, sales, general and adraiivistexpenses decreased from 7% in fiscal 20434adn fiscal 2014. Sales, general and
administrative expenses increased in fiscal 20dpewed to fiscal 2013 primarily due to increasedkeigng activity, increased professional
fees, primarily related to the ancillary supporteftain management functions, and overall incieeasbeadcount to further expand our
marketing and administrative functions to suppait @venue growth, partially offset by decreasdggal fees from reduced spending on anti-
counterfeiting efforts, decreases to our allowdoceoubtful accounts and the partial reversalwfaccrual relating to the settlement
agreement with OFAC in March 2014. As a percentdgevenues, sales, general and administrativersgsedecreased primarily due to our
overall revenue increase. Over time, we expecsalas, general and administrative expenses toaseri@ absolute dollars due to continued
efforts to protect our intellectual property andwth in headcount to support the growth in busirsssoperations.

Interest Expense and Other, N

Interest expense and other, net was $1.3 milliofisoal 2014, representing an increase of $483faf $851,000 for fiscal 2013. The
increase in fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2048 primarily due a loss on extinguishment of d#t%458,000 associated with the retiremen
of our debt with East West Bank.

Provision for Income Taxe:

Our provision for income taxes increased $6.4 onillior 57%, from $11.3 million for fiscal 2013 t&%7 million for fiscal 2014. Our effective
tax rate decreased to 9% for fiscal 2014 as cordpar&2% fiscal 2013. The lower effective tax riatdiscal 2014 was primarily due to a larger
percentage of our overall profitability occurrimgforeign jurisdictions with lower income tax rates

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources and Uses of Cash

Since inception, our operations primarily have biewled through cash generated by operations. We&sh and cash equivalents of $446.4
million , $347.1 million and $227.8 million at JuB8, 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

Consolidated Cash Flow Data
The following table sets forth the major componeriteur consolidated statements of cash flows ftatthe periods presented:

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 134,54 $ 121,327 % 131,89:
Net cash used in investing activities (12,729 (4,045 (5,369
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (22,519 1,98¢ (20,767)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 99,30 $ 119,27: % 105,76t

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities in ttsedi2015 consisted primarily of net income of $129.Tiam partially offset by net changes in
operating assets and liabilities that resultedeincash outflows of $11.7 million . These changessisted primarily of a $22.0 million increase
in prepaid expenses and other current assets dimnitg of deposit payments with our suppliers$41i.3 million increase in accounts
receivable due to our overall increase in reveau#9.1 million increase in accounts payable anduactliabilities due to the timing of
payments with our vendors, a $7.0 million decreaseventory due to our efforts to optimize our @miory levels and a $5.8 million net
increase in taxes payable and prepaid income txeshe timing of federal tax payments. Additiopadiur net income included non-cash
adjustments due to stock-based compensation, dafloecand amortization, increases to our provig@rnventory obsolescence, increases tc
our provision
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for losses on deposits with our vendors, decreiasagr allowance for doubtful accounts and taxds fet of these non-cash adjustments
resulted in an increase of our net cash providedperating activities of $16.6 million .

Net cash provided by operating activities in tleedil 2014 consisted primarily of net income of $@#@illion partially offset by net changes
operating assets and liabilities that resultedeincash outflows of $62.9 million. These changessisted primarily of a $33.8 million increase
in inventory due to our efforts to build warehogseck levels and ultimately decrease lead time&§1&13 million increase in accounts
receivable due to our overall increase in reveauk9.6 million increase in prepaid expenses andrathirrent assets due to timing of deposit
payments with our suppliers, a $6.9 million decegasaccounts payable and accrued liabilities dube timing of payments with our vendors,
a $3.9 million net increase in taxes payable aeggid income taxes due the timing of federal taprpents, and a $1.9 million increase in
deferred revenues and related costs. Additionally net income included non-cash adjustments dstotk-based compensation, depreciatior
and amortization, increases to our provision farttful accounts and write-downs for inventory olesgckence and an excess tax benefit from
stock-based awards. The net of these non-cashtajots resulted in an increase of our net cashiggdvby operating activities of $7.3
million.

Net cash provided by operating activities in tleedil 2013 consisted primarily of net income of $8illion and net changes in operat

assets and liabilities that resulted in net cafibws of $45.9 million. These changes consistechprily of a $38.7 million decrease in accounts
receivable due to improved cash collections, aZtllion increase in accounts payable and acchaddities due to the timing of payments
with our vendors, a $9.0 million increase in inv@gtdue to increased inventory on hand as a re$altransition to a third-party logistics
provider during December 2012, a $6.6 million irmse in taxes payable due the timing of federaptasments, a $1.9 million increase in
prepaid expenses and other current assets dueroraase in overall business activity and a $lilRam increase in deferred revenues and
related costs. Additionally, our net income inclda®n-cash adjustments due to stock-based compmamsad¢preciation and amortization,
increases to our provision for doubtful accounts amite-downs for inventory obsolescence and arextax benefit from stock-based awards
The net of these non-cash adjustments resulted iimcaease of our net cash provided by operatitigiies of $5.5 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Our investing activities consist solely of capegapenditures and purchases of intangible assepstaCaxpenditures for fiscal 2015 , fis@014
and fiscal 2013 were $12.7 million , $3.8 millionda$4.1 million , respectively. Additionally, we dhaash outflows related to intangible assets
of $46,000 , $219,000 and $1.2 million during fis2@15 , fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 , respectivetynsisting primarily of legal costs
associated with trademark applications.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

We had $22.5 million of cash provided by financawivities during fiscal 2015 , primarily from casgtreived from our term loan with Wells
Fargo Bank of $100.0 million , offset by repaymesit®ur prior Original Credit Agreement with Welsrgo Bank of $74.8 million .
Additionally, during fiscal 2015 we paid $15.0 riah for dividends on our common stock, paid $34ilfion for repurchases of our common
stock and had tax withholdings related to net seatdements of restricted stock units of $1.8ioill. Other cash inflows from financing
activities included cash received for stock optamrrcises of $1.7 million and an excess tax befrefit employee stock-based awards of $2.1
million .

We had $2.0 million of cash provided by financirgivties during fiscal 2014 consisting of cash received from our Original @régreemer
with Wells Fargo Bank of $72.3 million , offset bgpayments on our Loan and Security Agreement RétstWest Bank of $76.3 million .
Additionally, during fiscal 2014 we had cash inflofvom an excess tax benefit from employee stodeth@wards of $5.9 million and cash
received for stock option exercises of $2.1 milliand cash outflows from tax withholdings relateaet share settlements of restricted stock
units of $2.0 million .

We used $20.8 million of cash in financing actestiduring fiscal 2013 . During fiscal 2013 , wedp®b4.4 million for repurchases of our
common stock, paid $15.7 million for dividends am common stock, and had aggregate repayments. ®h$iflion on our Loan and Security
Agreement with EastWest Bank. These payments waat@lly offset by additional debt borrowed under doan and Security Agreement w
EastWest Bank of $50.8 million and an excess tavefiiefrom employee stock-based awards of $2.3ionill

Liquidity
We believe our existing cash and cash equivaleats) provided by operations and the availabilitpaditional funds under our loan
agreements will be sufficient to meet our workimgital and capital expenditure needs for at ldssnhext twelve months. However, this

estimate is based on a number of assumptions #napnove to be wrong and we could exhaust our abkilcash and cash equivalents earlier
than presently anticipated. Our future capital iegnents may vary materially
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from those currently planned and will depend on yrfators, including our rate of revenue growtle timing and extent of spending to
support development efforts, the timing of new pradntroductions, market acceptance of our praslaod overall economic conditions. As of
June 30, 2015 , we held $397.0 million of our $44@illion of cash and cash equivalents in accoohtsur subsidiaries outside of the United
States and we will incur significant tax liabilii€f we decide to repatriate those amounts.

On June 18, 2013, we completed a secondary offerfiigd31,464 shares of common stock at an offguice of $16.00 per share, which
included 531,464 shares sold in connection withpmtial exercise of the option to purchase additichares granted to the underwriters. All
of the shares sold in the offering were sold byexisting stockholders, including entities affigdtwith Summit Partners, L.P., and our Chief
Executive Officer, Robert J. Pera. We did not aalf shares in the offering, and as such, we dideugtive any proceeds from the offering.

We believe that the combination of our existing tddiStates cash and cash equivalent balances tamd Einited States operating cash flows
are sufficient to meet our ongoing United Statesraping expenses and debt repayment obligatiorat fieast the next twelve months.

We earn a significant amount of our operating ineantside the United States, which is deemed iodefinitely reinvested in foreign
jurisdictions. As a result, a significant portiohowur cash and she-term investments are held by foreign subsidiaiés.currently do not

intend nor foresee a need to repatriate these fldsxpect existing domestic cash and short-tam@stments and cash flows from operation:
to continue to be sufficient to fund our domesgierting activities and cash commitments for inmgsand financing activities, such as regi
quarterly dividends, debt repayment, and capitpkexitures, for at least the next 12 months anck#iter for the foreseeable future.

If we should require more capital in the Unitedt&sahan is generated by our domestic operationgxample to fund significant discretionary
activities such as business acquisitions and gearechases, we could elect to repatriate futuneiregs from foreign jurisdictions or raise
capital in the United States through debt or eqgigsgéyances. These alternatives could result inenigffective tax rates, increased interest
expense, or dilution of our earnings. We could aleat to borrow funds domestically, which we hdeae in the past and continue to believe
we have the ability to do so at reasonable intesdss.

Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arragements

The following table summarizes our contractual géddions as of June 30, 2015 :

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 years Over 5 years Total
(In thousands)

Operating leases $ 4,03t % 4,162 $ 41 $ — $ 8,61(
Debt payment obligations 10,00( 26,25( 61,25( — 97,50(
Interest payments on debt payment

obligations 1,982 3,39¢ 2,12¢ — 7,507
Purchase obligations and vendor deposits 12,02¢ — — — 12,02¢
Other obligations 6,22¢ 43 — — 6,26¢
Total $ 34,26¢ % 33,85 $ 63,78¢ $ — 8 131,91.

Operating Leases

We lease our headquarters in San Jose, Califontiather locations worldwide under non-cancelalplerating leases that expire at various
dates through 2020.

Debt and Interest Payment Obligatiol

On March 3, 2015, we entered into the Amended €reglieement, that provides for a $200.0 millionisesecured revolving credit facility
and a $100.0 million senior secured term loan itgcilvith an option to request increases in the ant® of such credit facilities by up to an
additional $50.0 million in the aggregate (any simdrease to be in each lender's sole discretifflepse see Note 7 of the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for more informmadVe have calculated estimated interest paynfentsur debt based on the applicable
rates and payment dates. Although our interess$ @ieour debt obligations may vary, we have asswuedhterest rate of June 30, 2015 for all
years presented. Also included are estimated begkib be paid for unused portions of our revolreglit facility.
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Purchase Obligation:

We subcontract with other companies to manufaaiurgroducts. During the normal course of businesscontract manufacturers procure
components based upon orders placed by us. If meetall or part of the orders, we may still bél&to the contract manufacturers for the
of the components purchased by the subcontractearahufacture our products. We periodically revibespotential liability and to date no
significant liabilities for cancellations have beaegorded. Our consolidated financial position eegiilts of operations could be negatively
impacted if we were required to compensate theraonimanufacturers for any unrecorded liabilitisslirred. We had inventory purchase
obligations of $10.0 million as of June 30, 20¥gditionally, we have advanced outstanding paymgntsur contract manufacturers as of
June 30, 2015 of $2.0 million .

Other Obligations

We had other obligations of $6.3 million as of J@@¢ 2015 , which consisted primarily of commitneerglated to research and development
projects.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits

As of June 30, 2015 , we had $18.6 million andddiiteonal $1.2 million for gross interest classifias non-current liabilities. At this time, we
are unable to make a reasonably reliable estinfdteediming of payments in individual years in c@ction with these tax liabilities; therefore,
such amounts are not included in the above comimhobligation table.

Commitments and Contingencies

In May 2011, we filed a self-disclosure statemeithwthe U.S. Commerce Department, Bureau of Ingumtd Security’s (“BIS”) Office of
Export Enforcement (“OEE”") relating a review contketby us regarding certain export transactions 2008 through March 2011 in which
products may have been later resold into Iran byd frarties. In June 2011, we also filed a sk$iclosure statement with the U.S. Departme
the Treasury’s Office of Foreign Asset Control (“8&F") regarding these compliance issues. In Aug@dt12 we received a warning letter from
OEE stating that OEE had not referred the findiofgsur review for criminal or administrative proséion and closed the investigation of us
without penalty. Based upon its review of the nrai@d~AC identified certain apparent violations (‘#grent Violations”) of the Iranian
Transactions and Sanctions Regulations by us dtinm@eriod of in or about March 2008 through irabout February 2011. On March 4,
2014, we entered into a settlement agreement wiA®resolving this administrative matter. Pursuarthe terms of the settlement agreerr
we agreed to make a one-time payment to the U.Baifrment of the Treasury in the amount of $504j@0bnsideration of OFAC agreeing to
release and forever discharge us from any andvlliability in connection with the Apparent Viations. We previously accrued a reserve of
$1.6 million relating to this matter in fiscal 20&46d, accordingly, reversed the excess of the atofi$1.1 million as of the effective date of
the settlement agreement.

Warranties and Indemnifications

Our products are generally accompanied by a 12 meatranty, which covers both parts and labor. @Galyethe distributor is responsible for
the freight costs associated with warranty retuansl, we absorb the freight costs of replacing itander warranty. In accordance with the
Financial Accounting Standards Board’s (“FASB’sAicounting Standards Codification (“ASC”), 450-3@ss Contingencies, we record an
accrual when we believe it is estimable and pradbabked upon historical experience. We recorddgionm for estimated future warranty we
in cost of goods sold upon recognition of reverares we review the resulting accrual regularly aedqglically adjust it to reflect changes in
warranty estimates.

We may in the future enter into standard indematfan agreements with certain distributors as aglbther business partners in the ordinary
course of business. These agreements may inclogésjons for indemnifying the distributor, OEM other business partner against any claim
brought by a third party to the extent any sucintlalleges that a Ubiquiti product infringes a pateopyright or trademark or violates any
other proprietary rights of that third party. Theximum amount of potential future indemnificatieruinlimited. The maximum potential
amount of future payments we could be requireda&arunder these indemnification agreements isstohable.

We have agreed to indemnify our directors, offiard certain other employees for certain eventeourrences, subject to certain limits, w
such persons are or were serving at our requeasicin capacity. We may terminate the indemnificatigreements with these persons upon the
termination of their services with us but termioativill not affect claims for indemnification reéat to events occurring prior to the effective
date of termination. The maximum amount of potéritimure indemnification is unlimited. We have ar@itors and Officers insurance policy
that limits our potential exposure. We believe fdievalue of these indemnification agreements iisimal. We had not recorded any liabilities
for these agreements as of June 30, 2015 or 2014 .
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Based upon our historical experience and informaitimown as of the date of this report, we do ntiele it is likely that we will have
significant liability for the above indemnities asJune 30, 2015 .

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , we had no off-ba&aheet arrangements other than those indemnificagreements described above.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of recent accounting pronouncesnegiier to Note 2 to the Consolidated FinanciateShents.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

Regulation G, conditions for use of Non-Generallc@pted Accounting Principles (“Non-GAAP”) finankiaeasures, and other SEC
regulations define and prescribe the conditionsifa of certain Non-GAAP financial information. $opplement our consolidated financial
results presented in accordance with GAAP, we use GBAAP financial measures which are adjusted fthenmost directly comparable
GAAP financial measures to exclude certain iteragjescribed below. Management believes that these®RAP financial measures reflect
an additional and useful way of viewing aspectewfoperations that, when viewed in conjunctiorhvaitir GAAP results, provide a more
comprehensive understanding of the various faetndstrends affecting our business and operatioos-GIAAP financial measures used by us
include net income or loss and diluted net incomiss per share. Other companies may calculage thieasures differently than we do,
limiting the usefulness of these items of compaeatheasures.

Our Non-GAAP measures primarily exclude stdidsed compensation, net of taxes and other spEiages and credits. Additionally, in fise
2015 we had a BEC fraud loss of $39.1 millamd purchase commitment termination fee of $5.5aniband in fiscal 2014 we had a gain on
reversal of a charge for an export compliance maft§1.1 million. Management believes these NonARAinancial measures provide
meaningful supplemental information regarding duategic and business decision making, internagibtidg, forecasting and resource
allocation processes. In addition, these Non-GAisBrfcial measures facilitate management’s intezoaiparisons to our historical operating
results and comparisons to competitors’ operatisgits.

We use each of these NG@AAP financial measures for internal manageriappges, when providing our financial results andri®ss outlool

to the public and to facilitate period-to-periodrgmarisons. Management believes that these Non-Gia&sures provide meaningful
supplemental information regarding our operati@mal financial performance of current and historieaults. Management uses these Non-
GAAP measures for strategic and business decisaking, internal budgeting, forecasting and resoailoeation processes. In addition, these
Non-GAAP financial measures facilitate managementsrimal comparisons to our historical operating ltssand comparisons to competitors’
operating results.

The following table shows our Non-GAAP financial aseres:

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Non-GAAP net income and comprehensive income $ 176,63t $ 179,20¢ $ 82,51
Non-GAAP diluted net income per share of commoglsto $ 197 % 20C $ 0.91

We believe that providing these Non-GAAP financieasures, in addition to the GAAP financial resute useful to investors because they
allow investors to see our results “through theséyé management as these Non-GAAP financial meastaflect our internal measurement
processes. Management believes that these Non-GiAARcial measures enable investors to better ast@siges in each key element of our
operating results across different reporting peviod a consistent basis and provides investorsamitither method for assessing our operating
results in a manner that is focused on the perfoomaf our ongoing operations.
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The following table shows a reconciliation of GAABt income and comprehensive income to non-GAARNteime and comprehensive

income:
Years Ended June 30,
2015 2014 2013
(In thousands, except per
share amounts)

Net income and comprehensive income $ 129,66. $ 176,93 $ 80,49(
Stock-based compensation:

Cost of revenues 601 59C 44¢

Research and development 2,85¢ 2,42: 1,43

Sales, general and administrative 1,53 1,89: 1,49
Gain on reversal of charge for an export complianegter — (1,12)) —
Purchase commitment termination fee 5,50( — —
Business e-mail compromise ("BEC") fraud loss 39,131 — —
Tax effect of non-GAAP adjustments (2,65€) (1,519 (1,35))
Non-GAAP net income and comprehensive income $ 176,63t $ 179,20¢ $ 82,51t
Non-GAAP diluted net income per share of commoglsto $ 197 $ 200 $ 0.91
Weighted-average shares used in computing non-Gaéilsied net income per share of
common stocld 89,56¢ 89,71t 90,25¢

Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

Interest Rate Sensitivit

Our revolving and term loans bear interest, atoption, at either (i) a floating rate per annumada the base rate plus a margin of between
0.50% and 1.25%, depending on our leverage ratad e most recently ended fiscal quarter orgiffoating per annum rate equal to the
applicable LIBOR rate for a specified period, ptusargin of between 1.50% and 2.25%, dependingiofegerage ratio as of the most
recently ended fiscal quarter. Swingline loans lierest at a floating rate per annum equal tdote® rate plus a margin of between 0.50%
and 1.25%, depending on our leverage ratio aseoffitbst recently ended fiscal quarter. Base radefised as the greatest of (A) Wells Fargo's
prime rate, (B) the federal funds rate plus 0.50%) the applicable LIBOR rate for a period of anenth plus 1.00%. A default interest rate
shall apply on all obligations during certain eweot default under the Amended Credit Agreemeatratte per annum equal to 2.00% abov
applicable interest rate. The Company will paydolelender a facility fee on a quarterly basis dasethe unused amount of each lender's
commitment to make revolving loans, of between @2hd 0.35%, depending on the Company's leverdigeasof the most recently ended
fiscal quarter. The Company will also pay to thelagable lenders on a quarterly basis certain Eeesed on the daily amount available to be
drawn under each outstanding letter of creditudilg aggregate letter of credit commissions ofvieen 1.50% and 2.25%, depending on the
Company's leverage ratio as of the most recentig@fiscal quarter, and issuance fees of 0.125%mmaum. The Company is also obligate:
pay Wells Fargo, as agent, fees customary forditdeility of this size and type. Based on a ##rig/ analysis, as of June 30, 2015, an
instantaneous and sustained 200-basis-point ireiaasterest rates affecting our floating ratetdsfigations, and assuming that we take no
counteractive measures, would result in a chargaitancome before income taxes of approximatel $illion over the next 12 months.

We had cash and cash equivalents of $446.4 miélimh$347.1 million as of June 30, 2015 and 20&4pectively. These amounts were held
primarily in cash deposit accounts. The fair vadfieur cash equivalents would not be significaafiected by either a 10% increase or
decrease in interest rates due mainly to the ghort-nature of these instruments.

Foreign Currency Risk

Our sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, anethies, our revenues are not directly subject teifpr currency risk. Certain of our operating
expenses are denominated in the currencies obilngtries in which our operations are located, aagt be subject to fluctuations due to
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, p&atlgichanges in the Chinese Yuan, Euro, and Taidaltar. A 10% appreciation or
depreciation in the value of the U.S. dollar refatio the other currencies in which our expenseslanominated would result in a charge to
income before income taxes of approximately $2 Hiani

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The response to this Item is submitted as a sepsaeation of this Form 10-K. See Item 15.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedur

Management, with the participation of the Compar@fsef Executive Officer and Interim Chief Accourgi Officer, evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and pracesias of June 30, 2015 . The term “disclosuréralsrand procedures,” as defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exgshawnt of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”amsecontrols and other procedures of
a company that are designed to ensure that infamegquired to be disclosed by a company in tipents that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegated, within the time periods specified in 8&C'’s rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitatioantrols and procedures designed to ensurertfatation required to be disclosed by a
company in the reports that it files or submitsemitie Exchange Act is accumulated and communidatéte company’s management,
including its principal executive and principaldimcial officers, as appropriate to allow timely idemns regarding required disclosure.
Management recognizes that any controls and proesdno matter how well designed and operatedpoaride only reasonable assurance of
achieving their objectives. Based on the evaluatioour disclosure controls and procedures as ioé B0, 2015 , our Chief Executive Officer
and Interim Chief Accounting Officer concluded thes of such date, as a result of the material mesges in internal control over financial
reporting that are described below in Managem®&sfsort on Internal Control Over Financial Reportiogr disclosure controls and procedt
were not effective.

Managemen's Report on Internal Control over Financial Repdrtg

Management is responsible for establishing and taiaimg adequate internal control over financigaring, as such term is defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). A conypainternal control over financial reporting igpeocess designed by, or under the
supervision of, its Chief Executive Officer and €hiccounting Officer, and effected by such compsutwpard of directors, management and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anlet preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles and includes those fesdiand procedures that:

0] pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettransactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactoa recorded as necessary to permit prepardtiomaacial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipfes; and that receipts and expenditures of thepemy are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of manageraed directors of the company; and

(iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding priéme or timely detection of unauthorized acqusitiuse, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @etaisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjet to the risk that controls may become inadegibecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdouces may deteriorate. A material weakness isiaidaty, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control over financial reporting, suttiat there is a reasonable possibility that a nedterisstatement of a company's annual or
interim financial statements will not be preventedietected on a timely basis.

Management, with the participation of our Chief Eixéve Officer and Interim Chief Accounting Offigdras conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over finahceporting as of June 30, 2015, based on the frnarieset forth innternal Controlintegratec
Framework(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Omgitins of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Baseithisrassessment,
management has concluded that the Company did aiotam effective internal control over financiaporting as of June 30, 2015 due to the
material weaknesses described below.

Material Weaknesses in Internal Control over Finah&eporting

Management has determined that the Company dithattain an effective control environment, attrdtle to a lack of sufficient, competent
personnel necessary for effective financial repgrtiThis resulted in the lack of comprehensive @mdo-date accounting policies and
procedures, skepticism on the part of key accogmigrsonnel, internal control training, leadersdnipl adequate communication of roles and
responsibilities. Growth in the complexity of thesiness in fiscal year
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2015 without commensurate growth in the capahiliéthe finance and accounting organization cbuated to this deficiency.

The Company'’s failure to maintain an effective cohénvironment contributed to a second deficieimcthe form of ineffectively designed and
maintained controls required for safeguarding ef@mmpany’s funds and timely detection of imprapansactions in the general ledger.
Specifically, the Company’s disbursement authoigzapolicies were not updated timely for changepéansonnel and positions, nor were
authorization requirements clearly stated, inclgdimse for non-routine transactions.

The Company'’s failure to maintain an effective cohénvironment also contributed to a third defiwg in the form of ineffectively designed
and maintained controls over user access and ttmsgrivileges to modify and post entries to ¢femeral ledger and subsidiary ledgers. In
particular, the scope of user access and transggativileges to the general ledger and subsidiadgérs is not sufficiently restricted to provide
reasonable assurance of effective process andwr@astrols over postings to the general ledger.i#atublly, recent general ledger changes
were completed without due consideration of cotkdtanpacts on segregation of duties controls.

These control deficiencies could result in misstegtets of accounts or disclosures that would eagiitran a material misstatement of the
interim or consolidated financial statements thatld not be prevented or detected and, therefoamagement has determined that these
control deficiencies constitute material weaknesdesvever, management has determined that thedorggnaterial weaknesses did not resul
in a material misstatement in the consolidatedniiel statements as of June 30, 2015. Managemsritdtarmined that the first two material
weaknesses resulted in the Company’s inabilityréw@nt and timely detect the business e-mail comjz® fraud discussed in Note 14 that
caused a material misappropriation of Company asbketight of these material weaknesses, the CaoyipaChief Executive Officer and

Interim Chief Accounting Officer concluded that tBempany did not maintain effective internal cohtreer financial reporting as of June 30,
2015.

The effectiveness of our internal control over fio@l reporting as of June 30, 2015 has been alibitePricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an
independent registered public accounting firm,tated in their report which appears herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportn

Since June 30, 2015, we have begun the implementatithe remedial measures described below. Howéwvere were no changes in our
internal control over financial reporting that oomd during the quarter ended June 30, 2015 theg traterially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controber financial reporting.

Remediation Plans and Other Informatio

Management has taken immediate action to begindiatieg the material weaknesses identified. Whidain remedial actions have been
completed, we continue to actively plan for andlenpent additional control procedures. These rentiedizfforts, outlined below, are
intended to further address the identified matevishknesses.

Since identifying the material weaknesses in irgkcontrol over financial reporting, the Company Ingade changes to management and
engaged an outside firm to perform an investigadibtihe business e-mail compromise fraud that thgenal weaknesses in internal control
over financial reporting failed to prevent or détec

To remediate the material weaknesses, managemenr r@ends to implement the following measures:

 The Company entered into an agreement for advisodyinterim management services with FTI Consulting., to provide an Interil
Chief Accounting Officer and other resources;

 The Company has accepted the resignation of théogemserving as Chief Accounting Officer at thediof the BEC fraud los

e« The Company is in the process of further stiegiging the finance organization by adding additiopalified and experienced
personnel;

e The Company is in the process of improving @xgstontrols and implementing additional procedumed controls including, but not
limited to, updating its accounting policies andqedures, clarifying roles and responsibilitiesjating and clarifying disbursement
authorities, and providing training on required goiping documentation; and

e« The Company is reviewing user access and tréinsgurivileges to general ledger and interfacesteasys and will make changes as
appropriate and will also improve controls to po®/reasonable assurance future system changes&oimpacts to segregation of
duties.

Remediation of the material weaknesses in interoatrols is among management’s highest prioritiégnagement will periodically assess the
progress and sufficiency of the ongoing initiatiaesl make adjustments as and when necessary. Maaagjgnderstands that improvement
and maintenance of internal controls is a contiguasponsibility.

49




Table of Contents

Item 9B. Other Information

Not applicable
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PART III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers and Corporate Gowance

The information required by this Item 10 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for Bb2Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2015 fiscal yerad) under the headings “Election of
Directors — Executive Officers and Directors,” “@orate Governance,” and “Section 16(a) Beneficiah@rship Reporting Compliance.”

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item 11 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for fb2Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissgiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2015 fiscal yaad) under the headings “Executive
Compensation,” “Election of Directors—Directors’ @pensation” and “Election of Directors—Compensat@mmmittee Interlocks and
Insider Participation.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item 12 with resp® security ownership of certain beneficial onmand management is incorporated by
reference to our Proxy Statement for the 28hAual Meeting of Stockholders (to be filed wittketS8ecurities and Exchange Commission wi
120 days of our June 30, 2015 fiscal year end) utideheadings “Security Ownership of Certain BanafOwners and Management Related
Stockholder Matters.”

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this Iltem 13 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for fb2Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissgiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2015 fiscal yaad) under the headings “Certain
Relationships and Related Party Transactions” &tection of Directors—Committees of the Board ofdaiors.”

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item 14 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for Bb2Annual Meeting of Stockholders (to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgiithin 120 days of our June 30, 2015 fiscal yeadf) under the headings “Ratification of

the Appointment of Independent Registered Publicodating Firm—Audit and Non-Audit Fees” and “—Audibmmittee Pre-Approval
Policies.”
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(& 1. Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this repee identified in the Index to Consolidated Ficial Statements on page 52 of this Form 10-

K.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 15(c) below.

3. Exhibits
See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfieth the Securities and Exchange

Commission. Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. (the “Registtgrshall furnish copies of exhibits for a reasoleatee (covering the expense of furnishing

copies) upon request.

Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed

3.1 Form of Third Amended and Restated Certificate of S-1 3.2 June 17, 2011
Incorporation of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ubiquiti S-1 3.4 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Ubiquiti S-1 4.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.2 Registration Agreement, dated March 2, 2010, betwee S-1 4.2 June 17, 2011
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holders of Ulpi
Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named therein.

4.3 Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of March 20201 S-1 4.3 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holdgfrs
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named thare

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ubiquiti S-1 10.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc. and its directors and officers.

10.2# Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.2 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.3# Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.3 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.4# Employment Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2011 S-1 10.5 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Benjamin Moore.

10.5# Executive Employment Agreement between the Company 8-K 10.1 March 8, 2013
and Craig Foster, effective March 4, 2013.

10.6# Employment Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2010, S-1 10.7 June 17, 2011

between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and John Sanford.
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Exhibit
Number Description

Incorporated by
Reference from Form

Incorporated by
Reference from
Exhibit Number

Date Filed

10.7 Non-Residential Property Lease Agreement, datexf as
May 28, 2009, between UAB “Devint” and Tomas
Gréblitnas, Tomas Skas, and Vygante Skiené.

10.8 Jinyong Ji Investment Taiwan Lease, dated as oEMar
16, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jmydi
Investment Co., Ltd.

10.9 Lease, dated as of July 9, 2010, between Ubiquiti
Networks, Inc. and The Welsh Office Center LLC.

10.10t Amended Technology License Agreement, dated as of
September 1, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, amal
Atheros Communications, Inc.

10.11 Taiwan Lease, dated as of July 20, 2011, between Ji
Yeoung Ji Co., Ltd. and Ubiquiti Networks Intermeial
Limited, Taiwan Branch.

10.12 Office Lease, dated as of December 8, 2011 anduée:c
on December 22, 2011, by and between Ubiquiti
Networks, Inc. and Carr NP Properties, L.L.C.

10.13 Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2014, by andray
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Ubiquiti International
Holding Company Limited, as Borrowers, the Lenders
referred to therein, as Lenders and Wells FargkBan
National Associate, as Administration Agent

10.14 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of
March 3, 2015, by and among Ubiquiti Networks, laad
Ubiquiti International Holding Company Limited, as
Borrowers, the Lenders referred to therein, as eend
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
Administrative Agent.

10.15 Aircraft Lease Agreement between Ubiquiti Networks,

Inc. and RJP Manageco LLP, dated November 13, 2013

21.1 List of subsidiaries of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.
23.1 Consent of independent registered public accourfiting

24.1 Power of Attorney (contained in the signature piagehis
Form 10-K)

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Reqeidt
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Reqait
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amend

S-1

S-1

S-1

S-1

10-Q

10-Q/A

10-Q

8-K

10-Q

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.15

10.16

10.1

10.1

10.1

June 17, 2011

June 17, 2011

June 17, 2011

June 17, 2011

November 14, 2011

March 20, 2012

May 9, 2014

March 6, 2015

February 7, 2014



32.1~ Certification of Principal Executive Officer andifgipal
Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(bjraf
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18
U.S.C. §1350.
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Incorporated by
Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed

101.INS(*)  XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH(*) XBRL Taxonomy Schema Linkbase Document
101.CAL(*) XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF(*) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document

101.LAB(*) XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE(*) XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document
# Management contracts or compensation plangangements in which directors or executive offi@es eligible to participate.

T Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purstmian order granted by the Securities and Exch@ugemission for confidential treatment.

~ In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-47086) Rule: Management's Reports on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting and CertificatmirDisclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports,dbsifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1 herete
deemed to accompany this Form 10-K and will nod&emed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of theliange Act. Such certifications will not be

deemed to be incorporated by reference into amgglunder the Securities Act or the Exchange éxtept to the extent that the registrant specijical
incorporates it by reference.

(*) XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languagddrmation is furnished and not filed or a pareafegistration statement or prospectus for purpoe
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 193%ragnded, is deemed not filed for purposes of @ed8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and is not otherwise subject to liabilitder these Sections.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules.

Schedules not listed above have been omitted bedhey are not applicable or required, or the imiion required to be set forth therein is
included in the Consolidated Financial Statementdaies thereto.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

Date: August 21, 2015

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

/s/ Robert J. Pera

Robert J. Pera
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

/sl Mark Spragg

Mark Spragg
Interim Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each personoat signature appears below constitutes and aggeotiert J. Pera and Mark
Spragg and each of them, his true and lawful agigs+in-fact and agents, each with full power ofsditbition and resubstitution, for him and in
his name, place and stead, in any and all capscitissign any and all amendments to this AnnugloReon Form 10-K, and to file the same,
with exhibits thereto and other documents in cotinedherewith, with the Securities and Exchangen@ission granting unto said attorneys-
in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power auldagity to do and perform each and every act aimjtrequisite and necessary to be di
as fully to all intents and purposes as he mightoad do in person, hereby ratifying and confirghall that each of said attorneys-in-fact and
agents, or his substitute or substitutes may ldyfld or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
registrant and in the capacities and on the datlisdted.

Signature Title Date
[s/__Robert J. Pera Chief Executive Officer and Director
Robert J. Pera (Principal Executive Officer) August 21, 2015
[s/ _Mark Spragg Interim Chief Accounting Officer
Mark Spragg (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer) dust 21, 2015

[s/ __Steven R. Altman
Steven R. Altman Director August 21, 2015

/sl _Ronald A. Sege
Ronald A. Sege Director August 21, 2015

[s/__Rafael Torres
Rafael Torres Director August 21, 2015
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated badasheets and the related consolidated statenmfeopei@ations and comprehensive income,
of stockholders’ equity and of cash flows presairtyf, in all material respects, the financial gmsi of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at June 30, 2015 and June 30, 20#@l4harresults of their operations and their cagiglfor each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2015 in conformity with accountiriggiples generally accepted in the United StafeSnoerica. Also in our opinion, the
Company did not maintain, in all material respeefgective internal control over financial repodias of June 30, 2015, based on criteria
established in Internal Control - Integrated Framew(2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@izations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) because material weaknesseteimai control over financial reporting relatecctmtrol environment, including
safeguarding of the Company’s funds and timelimésketecting improper transactions, and relatettiéomaintenance of user access and
transaction privileges to modify and post entreethe general ledger and subsidiary ledgers ekadeof that date. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, iteimal control over financial reporting, such ttiegre is a reasonable possibility that a materie
misstatement of the annual or interim financialesteents will not be prevented or detected on altifpasis. The material weaknesses referrec
to above are described in Management's Reporttemid Control over Financial Reporting appearinder Iltem 9A. We considered these
material weaknesses in determining the naturengmand extent of audit tests applied in our aoffihe 2015 consolidated financial
statements, and our opinion regarding the effeg@se of the Company's internal control over finalneporting does not affect our opinion on
those consolidated financial statements. The Cogipamanagement is responsible for these finant&sents, for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and ftg assessment of the effectiveness of internaralooter financial reporting, included in
management’s report referred to above. Our respibitsis to express opinions on these financiateients and on the Company's internal
control over financial reporting based on our iméégd audits. We conducted our audits in accordasittethe standards of the Public Comp
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Thdaedards require that we plan and perform the sidibbtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of maltarisstatement and whether effective internal mdmiver financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audits of the finahstatements included examining, on a test bagidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessagccounting principles used and significaninesties made by management, and evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. Quditeof internal control over financial reportingciuded obtaining an understanding of interna
control over financial reporting, assessing thk timt a material weakness exists, and testingeaatliating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on thesseskrisk. Our audits also included performing satbler procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe thaaadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableamesuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statets:iéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettitansactions and dispositions of the assetsofdmpany; (ii) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (iii) provide readnaassurance regarding prevention or timely detectf unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

San Jose, California
August 21, 2015
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Assets

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

respectively

Inventories

Current deferred tax assets
Prepaid income taxes

Property and equipment, net
Long-term deferred tax assets
Other long—term assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Income taxes payable

Debt -

short-term

Other current liabilities

Long-term taxes payable

Debt - long-term
Deferred revenues - long-term
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)

Stockholders’ equity:

respectively
Additional paid—in capital

2014, respectively
Retained earnings
Total stockholders’ equity

UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except share data)

June 30,
2015 2014
$ 446,40: $ 347,09
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubdftdounts of $1,071 and $1,395,
66,10 54,87
37,03: 46,34¢
1,53¢ 884
2,56¢ 3,25¢
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 27,70¢ 13,267
Total current assets 581,34t 465,72
15,60: 7,26(
1,51¢ 1,25¢
2,10¢ 1,91:
$ 600,57 $ 476,15:
$ 43,85¢ $ 33,93:
1,10¢ 2,49¢
10,00( —
15,17( 15,88
Total current liabilities 70,13¢ 52,31¢
19,81( 15,34¢
87,50( 72,25¢
974 972
178,41¢ 140,88
Preferred stock—$0.001 par value; 50,000,000 stearé®rized; none issued — —
Common stock—$0.001 par value; 500,000,000 sharboazed:
87,413,777 and 88,179,448 outstanding at June(®@® and June 30, 2014,

87 88
— 145,87.

Treasury stock—0 and 44,238,960 shares held isurgat June 30, 2015 and June 30,
— (123,869
422,06° 313,16¢
422,15. 335,26¢
$ 600,57 $ 476,15:

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehsive Income

Revenues

Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Operating expenses:
Research and development
Sales, general and administrative

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Business e-mail compromise ("BEC") fraud loss

Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest expense and other, net
Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Net income and comprehensive income
Net income per share of common stock:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares used in computing net iag@anshare of common stock:

Basic
Diluted

Cash dividends declared per common share

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
$ 59594 $ 57246 $ 320,82
333,76( 318,99° 185,48
262,18" 253,46° 135,33«
54,56¢ 33,96: 20,95¢
21,60’ 23,56( 21,77
39,13 — —
115,30¢ 57,52: 42,73(
146,87¢ 195,94! 92,60«
(1,130 (1,339 (851)
145,74¢ 194,61 91,75:
16,08t 17,67+ 11,26:
$ 12966. $ 17693 $  80,49(
$ 147 $ 20z $ 0.91
$ 145 $ 1.97 $ 0.8¢
88,00¢ 87,77: 88,31+
89,56¢ 89,71 90,25¢
$ 017 $ — 3 0.1€

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Balances at June 30, 2012

Net income and comprehensive income

Stock options exercised

Restricted stock units issued, net of tax withhudgi
Common stock repurchased

Cash dividend to common stock

Stock-based compensation expense

Tax impact of employee stock transactions
Balances at June 30, 2013

Net income and comprehensive income

Stock options exercised

Restricted stock units issued, net of tax withhaidi
Stock-based compensation expense

Tax impact of employee stock transactions
Balances at June 30, 2014

Net income and comprehensive income

Stock options exercised

Restricted stock units issued, net of tax withhaidi
Retirement of treasury shares

Payment of common stock cash dividends
Repurchases of common stock

Stock-based compensation expense

Tax impact of employee stock transactions
Balances at June 30, 2015

UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
In thousands, except share data

Additional
Paid-In
Common Stock Capital Treasury Stock Retained Stocl?wtc‘;ﬂllders’
Shares Amount Amount Shares Amount Earnings Equity
92,049,97 92 128,98: (39,079,91) (69,51%) 71,39¢ 130,95:
_ — — — — 80,49( 80,49(
266,55¢ — 63E — — — 63¢
56,31} — (214) = — — (214
(5,159,051 (5) —  (5,159,05) (54,349 — (54,359
— — — = — (15,652 (15,652
— — 3,37¢ — — — 3,37¢
— — 2,20¢ — — — 2,20¢
87,213,80 87 134,98: (44,238,96) (123,869 136,23: 147,43t
— — — — — 176,93 176,93°
849,63! 1 2,08¢ — — — 2,09(
116,01( — (2,019) = — — (2,019
— — 4,90¢ — — — 4,90¢
— — 5,90¢ — — — 5,90¢
88,179,44 % 88 $145,87. (44,238,96) $(123,86) $313,16( $ 335,26«
— — — — — 129,66: 129,66:
299,03 — 1,68¢ — — — 1,68¢
130,79: — (1,79¢) — — — (1,799
— — (138,86  44,768,73 138,86 — —
— — — = — (15,020 (15,020
(1,195,49) (1) (13,96 (529,779 (15,000 (5,744) (34,71%)
— — 4,99 — — — 4,99;
— — 2,07¢ — — — 2,07¢
87,413,777 $ 87 $ = — % — $422,06 $ 422,15

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In thousands)

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income and comprehensive income $ 129,66: $ 176,93 $ 80,49(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 4,971 2,81¢ 1,96¢
Provision for inventory obsolescence 2,28¢ 3,298 85(
Provision for loss on vendor deposits 5,827 — —
Deferred taxes 91) 2,081 371
Excess tax benefit from employee stock-based awards (2,079 (5,909 (2,329
Stock-based compensation 4,99: 4,90¢ 3,37¢
Other adjustments 1,52¢ 74 1,24¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (11,339 (18,329 38,66¢
Inventories 7,03( (33,769 (8,996
Deferred cost of revenues 1,27¢ (94) (1,185
Prepaid income taxes 69C (3,25€) —
Prepaid expenses and other assets (21,969 (9,644 (1,859
Accounts payable 9,73¢ (2,326 9,72t
Taxes payable 5,152 7,15( 6,64¢
Deferred revenues (1,67¢) 1,98¢ 2,39¢
Accrued liabilities and other (630) (4,609) 521
Net cash provided by operating activities 134,54 121,32 131,89:
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of property and equipment and other leng-assets (12,729 (4,045 (5,367)
Net cash used in investing activities (12,729 (4,045) (5,369)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Issuances of debt 100,00( 72,25¢ 50,83¢
Repayments of debt (74,75 (76,25() (4,339
Repurchases of common stock (34,71 — (54,359
Payment of common stock cash dividends (15,020 — (15,65:)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,68¢ 2,09( 63E
Excess tax benefit from employee stock-based awards 2,07¢ 5,90¢ 2,32¢
Tax withholdings related to net share settlemehtesiricted stock units (1,799 (2,019 (214)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (22,519 1,98¢ (20,76)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 99,30: 119,27: 105,76t
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 347,09 227,82t 122,06(
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 446,40 $ 347,090 $ 227,82
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Income taxes paid, net of refunds $ 12,797 $ 14,000 $ 4,09t
Interest paid $ 1,29C $ 165 $ 1,69¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

61




Table of Contents

UBIQUITI NETWORKS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Business— Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. was incorporated in th&at® of California in 2003 as Pera Networks, Imc2005 the Company changed
its name to Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and commendsdurrent operations. In June 2010, the Comparsyreséncorporated in Delaware.

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and its wholly owned sulisides (collectively, “Ubiquiti” or the “Company’is a product driven company that
leverages innovative proprietary technologies fivdenetworking solutions to both startup and bkshed network operators and service
providers.

On October 13, 2011, the Company entered into demnriting agreement for its initial public offegrof common stock at $15.00 per share.
The Company's initial public offering closed on @axtr 19, 2011. Immediately prior to the closinghef initial public offering, all outstanding
shares of the Company’s preferred stock convedemimon stock on a one for one basis.

On June 18, 2013, the Company completed a seconéfaring of 7,031,464 shares of common stock abféering price of $16.00 per share,
which included 531,464 shares sold in connectidh thie partial exercise of the option to purchadditional shares granted to the
underwriters. All of the shares sold in the offgrimere sold by existing stockholders of the Compamgiuding entities affiliated with Summit
Partners, L.P., and the Company's Chief Executifie€d, Robert J. Pera. No shares were sold byCthimpany in the offering, and as such, the
Company did not receive any proceeds from the ioffier

The Company operates on a fiscal year ending Jonk 3hese notes, Ubiquiti refers to the fiscadngeended June 30, 2015 , 2014 and 2013
fiscal 2015 , fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 , respety.

Basis of Presentation— The Companys consolidated financial statements and accompgmgies are prepared in accordance with accot
principles generally accepted in the United Stafedmerica (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of dbiti and its wholly owned subsidiaries.
The Company has wholly owned subsidiaries in LithaagHong Kong, China, Latvia, Poland, India anel @ayman Islands. The Company’s
Hong Kong subsidiary also operates a branch offideaiwan. All intercompany transactions and batenisave been eliminated. The Compan
has reclassified certain amounts reported in theipus period to conform to the current period en¢ation.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires management to make estimabesjudgments that affect the repol
amounts of assets and liabilities and the discsiicontingent assets and liabilities at the datae financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqririod. On an ongoing basis, the Company eweduthese estimates, including those
related to allowance for doubtful accounts, inventmluation, vendor deposits, warranty costs,lsteeised compensation and income taxes,
among others. The Company bases estimates onitésdtexperience and on various other assumpticatsatte believed to be reasonable undel
the circumstances. Actual results may differ matgrifrom these estimates.

Segment:

Management has determined that it operates asepoetable and operating segment as the Companigé Extecutive Officer, who is the
Company's chief operating decision maker, doesnadte decisions about resources to be allocatesisesa performance on a segment basis.
Furthermore, the Company does not organize or tégarosts on a segment basis. See Note 12.

Recognition of Revenue

Revenues consist primarily of revenues from the eéhardware and management tools, as well aethted implied post contract customer
support (“PCS”)The Company recognizes revenues when persuasidersd of an arrangement exists, delivery has cedutine sales price
fixed or determinable and the collectability of tiesulting receivable is reasonably assured. laxadere the Company lacks evidence that
collectability of the resulting receivable is reaably assured, it defers recognition of revenud the receipt of cash.
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For the Company'’s sales, evidence of the arrangecoesists of an order from a customer. The Compamgiders delivery to have occurred
once its products have been shipped and title iskadf loss have been transferred. For the Compasafes, these criteria are met at the time
the products are transferred to the customer. Tdmpany’s arrangements with customers do not, irt weses, include provisions for
cancellation, returns, inventory swaps or refum@s tvould significantly impact recognized revenues.

The Company records amounts billed to distributorshipping and handling costs as revenues. Thep@ay classifies shipping and handling
costs incurred by it as cost of revenues.

Deposit payments received from distributors in ambeaof recognition of revenues are included inenirfiabilities on the Company’s balance
sheet and are recognized as revenues when allitbigacfor recognition of revenues are met.

A portion of the Company's revenues related to B@Sleferred. This relates to the Company’s midtirent arrangements, which generally
include two deliverables. The first deliverabléhie hardware and software essential to the funalityrof the hardware device delivered at the
time of sale. The second deliverable is the impligdt to PCS included with the purchase of cerfamducts. PCS is this right to receive, on a
when and if available basis, future unspecifiedvearfe upgrades and features relating to the pr&lassential software as well as bug fixes,
email and telephone support.

The Company uses a hierarchy to determine theaditotof revenues to the deliverables. The hiesarglas follows: (i) vendor-specific
objective evidence of fair value (“VSOE"), (ii) thi-party evidence of selling price (“TPE"), and)(liest estimate of the selling price
(“BESP").

(i) VSOE generally exists only when a companyssiile deliverable separately and is the price Hgtolaarged by the company for that
deliverable. Generally the Company does not selldttliverables separately and, as such, does net\ffaOE.

(i) TPE can be substantiated by determining theegghat other parties sell similar or substahtiaimilar offerings. The Company does not
believe that there is accessible TPE evidenceifiufes deliverables.

(iiiy BESP reflects the Company'’s best estimates of wigaselling prices of elements would be if theyeveold regularly on a stand-alone
basis. The Company believes that BESP is the nppsbpriate methodology for determining the allogatof revenue among the
multiple elements.

The Company allocates revenues between these twemdbles using the relative selling price metiddch is based on the estimated selling
price for all deliverables. Revenues allocatechtodelivered hardware and the related essentilaa are recognized at the time of sale
provided the other conditions for recognition ofeeues have been met. Revenues allocated to thefeGigferred and recognized on a
straight-line basis over the estimated life of eafcthese devices, which currently is two yearfghé estimated life of the hardware product
should change, the future rate of amortizatiorhefrevenues allocated to PCS would also changeoatlof revenues for the delivered
hardware and the related essential software, ingjuestimated warranty costs, are recognized diirtheof sale. Costs for research and
development and sales and marketing are expensedwsired. Costs for PCS are recognized as theinavered.

The Company’s process for determining BESP fovéedibles involves multiple factors that may varpeteding upon the unique facts and
circumstances related to each deliverable. For B&SCompany believes its network operators andeproviders would be reluctant to pay
for such services separately. This view is prinydvdsed on the fact that unspecified upgrade rigbtsot obligate the Company to provide
upgrades at a particular time or at all, and dospectify to network operators and service provigdrEh upgrades or features will be delive
The Company believes that the relatively low priokis products and its network operators’ andriserproviders’ price sensitivity would add
to their reluctance to pay for PCS. Therefore,Gbenpany has concluded that if it were to sell P@% standalone basis, the selling price
would be relatively low.

Key factors considered by the Company in developfiegBESP for PCS include reviewing the activitéspecific employees engaged in
support and software development to determine iin@uat of time that is allocated to the developn@#rihe undelivered elements, determin
the cost of this development effort, and then agl@in appropriate level of gross profit to theseasoss of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , the
Company had deferred revenues of $3.5 million &h8 illion , respectively, related to these obfiigas.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers investments purchased withtarity period of three months or less at the datgurchase to be cash equivalents.
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost whmioximates fair value. The Company deposits aashcash equivalents with financial
institutions that management believes are of higdit quality. The Company’s cash and cash equmisleonsist primarily of cash deposited in
U.S. dollar denominated interest-bearing deposivawots.
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Concentration of Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@mmpany to concentrations of credit risk consistash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable. The Company limits its exposure by prity placing its cash in interest-bearing depasitounts with high credit quality financial
institutions.

The Company derives its accounts receivable froramaes earned from customers located worldwide Qdrapany bases credit decisions
primarily upon a customer’s past credit historyeT®ompany’s standard credit terms are net 30 wa§8.

The Company subcontracts with other companies toufaature most of its products. The Company ralieshe ability of these contract
manufacturers to produce the products sold tastsilblutors. A significant portion of the Companysoducts are manufactured by a few
contract manufacturers.

Inventory and Inventory Valuatior

The Company's inventories are primarily finisheddpand, to a lesser extent, raw materials, whisie lbeen either consigned to the
Company's contract manufacturers or are held bZtrpany. Inventories are stated at the lower tfadcost (computed on a first-in, firgtit
basis), or market value. Market value is based wgpoestimated average selling price reduced bgstimated costs of disposal. The
determination of market value involves numerougudnts including estimating average selling prlw&sed up recent sales, industry trends,
existing customer orders, and seasonal factoral8laatual market conditions differ from the Comyarestimates, future results of operation:
could be materially affected. The Company redubessalue of its inventory for estimated obsoleseemclack of marketability by the
difference between the cost of the affected inugnémd the estimated market value. Write-downsnataeversed until the related inventory
has been subsequently sold or scrapped.

The valuation of inventory also requires the Conypanestimate excess and obsolete inventory. Tterméation of excess or obsolete
inventory is estimated based on a comparison ofjtiaatity and cost of inventory on hand to the Canys forecast of customer demand.
Customer demand is dependent on many factors guites the Company to use significant judgmentinforecasting process. The Company
also makes assumptions regarding the rate at wigishproducts will be accepted in the marketplackatrwhich customers will transition

from older products to newer products. If actuatkeaconditions are less favorable than those ptejeby management, additional inventory
write-downs may be required, which would have aatigg impact on the Company's gross margin. [fGberpany ultimately sells inventory
that has been previously written down, the Comsagsdss margins in future periods will be positviehpacted.

Deferred Cost of Revenue

Deferred cost of revenues consist of the cost@fpet shipped to distributors for which the rigatsl obligations of ownership have passed to
the distributor but revenues have not yet beengmized primarily because the collectability criterifor revenue recognition has not been
fulfilled. The Company classifies these amountdefgrred cost of revenues. All deferred costs wénees are stated at cost. The Company
periodically assesses the recoverability of deteomst of revenues and writes down the deferretlafagvenues balances to establish a new
cost basis when recovery of deferred cost of regsminot reasonably assured. The Company evalustegerability based on various factors
including the length of time the product has beeld lat the distributor’s site and the financialbiidy of the distributor.

Product Warranties

The Company offers warranties on certain prodysaegrally for a period of one year , and recortistality for the estimated future costs
associated with potential warranty claims. The aaty costs are reflected in the Company’s conswitlatatement of operations and
comprehensive income within cost of revenues. Tagamties are typically in effect for 12 monthsnfr¢he distributor’s purchase date of the
product. The Company’s estimate of future warramists is largely based on historical experienctofadncluding product failure rates,
material usage, and service delivery cost incuimembrrecting product failures. In certain circuarstes, the Company may have recourse fror
its contract manufacturers for replacement costedéctive products, which it also factors intovitarranty liability assessment.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company records an allowance for doubtful actfor estimated probable losses on uncollecéibiounts receivable. In estimating the
allowance, management considers, among other fagtbthe aging of the accounts receivable, (i® €Company’s historical write offs, (iii) the
credit worthiness of each distributor based on paytrhistory and (iv) general economic conditiomscases where the Company is aware of
circumstances that may impair a specific distribatability to
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meet its obligations to the Company, the Compangnas a specific allowance against amounts due fhendistributor, and thereby reduces
the net recognized receivable to the amounts #tomably believes will be collected.

The allowance for doubtful accounts activity wagalews (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 1,39% ¢ 2,20C $ 1,26¢
Charged to (released from) expenses 10€ (65¢) 1,09¢
Bad debt write-offs (430 (147) (162)
Ending Balance $ 1,071 % 1,398 $ 2,20(

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s cash equivalestcounts receivable, accounts payable and otinemnt liabilities approximate fair value
due to their short maturities.

Pursuant to the accounting guidance for fair vah@g@asurements and its subsequent updates, fair igadieéined as the price that would be
received from selling an asset or paid to transfibility in an orderly transaction between manbarticipants at the measurement date. As
such, fair value is a market-based measuremensitivaild be determined based on assumptions th&etzarticipants would use in pricing an
asset or liability. The accounting guidance esshlgls a three-tier fair value hierarchy that reguihe Company to use observable market data
when available, and to minimize the use of unolatgerinputs when determining fair value. The fatue hierarchy prioritizes the inputs into
three levels that may be used in measuring fairevak follows:

Level 1—observable inputs which include quoted pricesctiva markets for identical assets of liabilities.

Level 2—inputs which include observable inputs other thawel 1, such as quoted prices for similar asselisloilities, quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in matkéhat are not active, or other inputs that areokable or can be corroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of Heset or liability.

Level 3—inputs which include unobservable inputs thatsangported by little or no market activity and the¢ significant to the fair value of
the underlying asset or liability. Level 3 assetd dabilities include those whose fair value meaasuents are determined using pricing models
discounted cash flow methodologies or similar viduatechniques, as well as significant managerjusilgment or estimation.

Long Lived Asset:

The Company evaluates its long lived assets inatugroperty and equipment for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of these assetsmabe recoverable. An impairment loss is recogghiwhen the net book value of such asset
exceeds the estimated future undiscounted casls tttibutable to the assets or asset group. laimpent is indicated, the asset is written
down to its estimated fair value. The Company ditirecognize any significant impairment lossedfitwal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 .

Property and Equipmen

Furniture, fixtures and equipment are recordedat.cThe Company also capitalizes certain costefifvare developed for internal use.
Capitalized costs primarily include payroll and palyrelated costs and facilities costs. Duringfis2015 , the Company capitalized $4.2
million of software development costs, respectiyelftich is included as property and equipment @Gbmpany's consolidated balance shee
as of June 30, 2015 .
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The Company computes depreciation or amortizatginguthe straight line method over estimated udafes, as follows:

Estimated Useful Life

Testing equipment 3to 5years

Computer and other equipment 3to 5 years

Furniture and fixtures 3to 5 years

Software up to 3 years

Leasehold improvements shorter of lease term or useful |

Upon retirement or disposition, the asset costratated accumulated depreciation are removed wighgain or loss recognized in the
statement of operations. Expenditures for mainte@amd repairs are charged to operations as imturre

Intangible Asset:

The Company’s intangible assets consist primafilegal costs associated with application for aggistration of the Company’s trademarks.
The Company amortizes all definite-lived intangibsets that are subject to amortization oversdtimated useful life based on economic
benefit, which is generally 5 years. All pateninfjj and defense costs are expensed as incurre@vieowo date these costs have not been
significant.

Leases

The Company leases its facilities under cancelabtenoncancelable operating leases. For leasesahtatin rent escalation or rent concess
provisions, the Company records the total rent egpaluring the lease term on a straight line liass the term of the lease. The Company
records the difference between the rent paid amdtitaight line rent as a deferred rent liabilitytbe consolidated balance sheets.

Advertising Cost:
The Company expenses all advertising costs asreaur

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeaccounting guidance which requires recognitid deferred tax assets and liabilit
for the expected future tax consequences of etkatdave been included in its financial statementsix returns. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are determined based on the temporé#fgrénce between the financial statement carrgingunts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax aasetfiabilities are measured using enacted ta@sraxpected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are eepleto be recovered or settled. The Company éstiaisl valuation allowances wh
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to theruih@xpects to realize. The assessment of whetheot a valuation allowance is required
often requires significant judgment including cutreperating results, the forecast of future tagahtome and ongoing prudent and feasible
tax planning initiatives. In addition, the Compasigalculation of its tax liabilities involves deadi with uncertainties in the application of
complex tax regulations. The Company may be suljeicicome tax audits in all of the jurisdictiomswhich it operates and, as a result, must
also assess exposures to any potential issuesgafieim current or future audits of current anapyiears’ tax returns. Accordingly, the
Company must assess such potential exposures et wecessary, provide a reserve to cover anycegiss. To the extent that the
Company establishes a reserve, its provision f@orite taxes would be increased. If the Company atgfg determines that payment of these
amounts is unnecessary, it reverses the liabilityrecognizes a tax benefit during the period iictvit determines that the liability is no lon
necessary. The Company records an additional claitgeprovision for taxes in the period in whithletermines that tax liability is greater
than its original estimate. The Company recognizessest and penalties related to unrecognizethésmefits on the income tax expense line in
the accompanying consolidated statement of op&stiiccrued interest and penalties are includethemelated tax liability line in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Stoclk-based Compensation

The Company records stock-based awards at faieadLof the grant date and recognize expensef f@fatures, ratably on a straight-line
basis over the requisite service period, whicheisegally the vesting term of the awards. The Comestimates the fair value of stock option
awards on the grant date using the Black-Schol@sropricing model. The determination of the
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fair value of a stock-based award on the date arfitgusing the Black-Scholes option-pricing modelffected by the Company's stock price on
the date of grant as well as assumptions regaalimgmber of complex and subjective variables. Thas@ables include the Company's
expected stock price volatility over the expectunt of the award, actual and projected employeskgiption exercise behaviors, the risk-free
interest rate for the expected term of the awariexpected dividends. Restricted stock units algedsbased on the fair value of the
Company's common stock on the date of grant. Shre€ompany's initial public offering on October, 2811, the fair value of our common
stock is determined using the closing market pofcne Company's common stock as of the date aftgra

Commitments and Contingencies

The Company periodically evaluates all pendinghoedtened contingencies and any commitments, ifthay are reasonably likely to have a
material adverse effect on its results of operatidinancial position or cash flows. The Compargeases the probability of an adverse outc
and determines if it is remote, reasonably posgiblerobable. If information available prior to tlssuance of the Company’s financial
statements indicates that it is probable that aatdsad been impaired or a liability had been ireniat the date of the Company'’s financial
statements, and the amount of the loss, or theerahgrobable loss can be reasonably estimated sieh loss is accrued and charged to
operating expenses. If no accrual is made for &.dostingency because one or both of the condipomsuant to the accounting guidance are
not met, but the probability of an adverse outcisre least reasonably possible, the Company disslthe nature of the contingency and
provides an estimate of the possible loss or rafidess, or states that such an estimate cannotdake.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement

The functional currency of the Company and its &liages is the U.S. dollar. For foreign operatidiesal currency denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are remeasured at the periddexchange rates, and revenues, costs and egpmesremeasured at the average exchang
rates during the fiscal year. Foreign exchangesgaird losses have been immaterial to the Compaaststs of operations to date.

Research and Development Co

Research and development expenses are expensediasd and consist primarily of payroll and palrelated costs and facilities costs.
Research and development expenses associatedoftittase development are expensed as incurred asofiware is typically released to end
customers immediately after technological feagiptias been established.

Earnings Per Share

The Company applies the two-class method for catimg and presenting earnings per share (“EPS"jledthe two-class method, net income
is allocated between shares of common stock arat ptrticipating securities based on their paréiting rights. Participating securities are
defined as securities that participate in dividewith common stock according to a pre-determingthtda or a contractual obligation to share
in the income of the entity. Basic EPS is computedlividing net income available to common stockleos by the weighted average numb
shares of common stock outstanding during the gebBduted EPS is computed by dividing the amoumet income available to common
stockholders outstanding plus income allocableattigipating securities, to the extent they aretdie, by the weighted average number of
shares of common stock and potential dilutive shatdstanding during the period if the effect isitilie. The Company’s potentially dilutive
common securities include outstanding stock optanrtrestricted stock units.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

In June 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsr@&cor FASB, issued a new accounting standardtegmarevenue from contracts with
customers. The core principle of the guidanceas &m entity should recognize revenue to depictrimesfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consider& which the entity expects to be entitled xeheange for those goods or services. To
achieve that core principle, an entity should appéy/following steps:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in ¢batract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the penénce obligations in the contract.
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the erdiisfies a performance obligation.

An entity should disclose sufficient informationgnable users of financial statements to undergtendature, amount, timing, and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from contractl wiistomers. Qualitative and quantitative infoliorats required about contracts with
customers, significant judgments and any assetgynézed from the costs to
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obtain or fulfill a contract. The guidance was todifective for annual and interim reporting pesidbginning after December 15, 2016.
However, in July 2015, the FASB deferred the effectlate by one year, to December 15, 2017, toigecadequate time to effectively
implement the new standard, though the early adots of the original effective date is allowedeTompany does not expect a material
impact on revenue recognition as a result of imgleting this new guidance.

In April 2015, the FASB issued an accounting staddgdate on simplifying the presentation of debtiance costs. The updated guidance
requires that debt issuance costs related to @néed debt liability be presented in the balarfeses as a direct deduction from the carrying
amount of that debt liability, consistent with deigcounts. The recognition and measurement guaforaebt issuance costs are not affectec
by the updated guidance. The guidance will be &ffedor the Company beginning July 1, 2016. Tha&lgace will result only in a
reclassification on the Company's balance sheetsamot expected to have any effect on the Comparperating results.

In July 2015, the FASB issued an accounting statedapdate on simplifying the measurement of inugnt®he updated guidance requires an
entity to measure inventory at the lower of cost nat realizable value. Net realizable value isetiimated selling prices in the ordinary cot
of business, less reasonably predictable costerapletion, disposal, and transportation. Subsegueatsurement is unchanged for inventory
measured using LIFO or the retail inventory method.

The guidance will be effective for the Company bagig July 1, 2017. The Company is currently assgsbe impact of this new guidance.

NOTE 3—FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

For certain of the Comparg/financial instruments, including cash, accouetgivable and accounts payable, the carrying arm@pproximat

fair value due to their short maturities, and aere¢fore excluded from the fair value tables beladditionally, as of June 30, 2015 , we held
$397.0 million of our $446.4 million of cash andshaquivalents in accounts of our subsidiariesidetsf the United States and we will incur
significant tax liabilities if we were to repatrathose amounts.

At June 30, 2015 and 2014 the Company had debtiassd with Amended Credit Agreement and Originaddit Agreement, respectively,
with Wells Fargo Bank (See Note 7). The fair vabfiche Company’s debt was estimated based on therduates offered to the Company for
debt with similar terms and remaining maturitied &mas Level 2 measurement.

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , the fair value hibrafor the Company’s financial liabilities wasfatiows (in thousands):

June 30, 2015 June 30, 2014
Fair Fair
Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Liabilities:
Debt® $ 97500 % — $ 97500 $ — $ 7225 % — $ 7225 $ —

(1) Debt is carried at historical cost on the Conymconsolidated balance sheet.

NOTE 4—EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share for the periatisated (in thousands, except per share
data):

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013

Numerator:
Net income and comprehensive income $ 129,66: $ 176,93 $ 80,49(
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares used in computing basiac@ne per share 88,00¢ 87,77: 88,31«
Add—dilutive potential common shares:

Stock options 1,392 1,69¢ 1,80:

Restricted stock units 16¢ 247 142
Weighted-average shares used in computing dilut¢ihnome per share 89,56¢ 89,71t 90,25¢
Net income per share of common stock:

Basic $ 147 $ 20z % 0.91

Diluted $ 148 $ 197 $ 0.8¢

68




Table of Contents

The Company excludes potentially dilutive secusifi®m its diluted net income per share calculatidren their effect would be antidilutive to
net income per share amounts. The following tablamarizes the total potential shares of commarkdtmat were excluded from the diluted
per share calculation, because to include themadvoave been anti-dilutive for the period (in thowss):

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Stock options — — 65€
Restricted stock units 2 36 364
2 36 1,022
NOTE 5—BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS
Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following (in thousand
June 30,
2015 2014
Finished goods $ 39,98t $ 49,90:
Raw materials 3,44t 1,16¢
Provision for inventory obsolescence (6,400 (4,720
$ 37,03 $ 46,34¢
Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Ass
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consfstesifollowing (in thousands):
June 30,
2015 2014
Vendor deposits, net of reserves of $5,827 andidbliscal 2015 and fiscal 2014,
respectively $ 19,99¢ $ 8,04:
Other current assets 7,711 5,22¢
$ 27,70¢  $ 13,26°
Property and Equipment, Ne
Property and equipment, net consisted of the fatigwin thousands):
June 30,
2015 2014
Testing equipment $ 481€¢ $ 3,78t
Computer and other equipment 4,45¢ 1,01¢
Tooling equipment 4,07: 2,89¢
Furniture and fixtures 1,23¢ 97<
Leasehold improvements 4,78¢ 3,17:
Software 3,26¢ 521
Software in development 2,70C —
25,34 12,36
Less: Accumulated depreciation (9,74)) (5,109
$ 15,60: $ 7,26(

Depreciation expense was $4.7 million , $2.6 millamd $1.8 million in fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2018spectively.
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Other Current Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following (inousands):

June 30,
2015 2014
Accrued compensation and benefits $ 2,14 % 3,43:
Warranty accrual 2,75( 2,85(
Deferred revenue - short term 2,53¢ 4,21¢
Customer deposits 63 1,83t
Reserve for sales returns 1,227 —
Other accruals 6,45( 3,54¢
$ 15,17  $ 15,88
NOTE 6—ACCRUED WARRANTY

Warranty obligations, included in other currenbliies, were as follows (in thousands):
Balance at June 30, 2013 $ 2,91:
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 4,15
Settlements made during the period (4,220
Balance at June 30, 2014 2,85(
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 3,64:
Settlements made during the period (3,749
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ 2,75(

NOTE 7—DEBT

On August 7, 2012, the Company entered into a laosahSecurity Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) Witls. Bank, as syndication agent,
and East West Bank, as administrative agent foletheers party to the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agrent provided for (i) a $50.0 million
revolving credit facility, with a $5.0 million subhit for the issuance of letters of credit and a0$&illion sublimit for the making of swingline
loan advances, and (ii) a $50.0 million term loagilfty.

On May 5, 2014, the Company and certain of its islidases entered into a credit agreement (the “@&abCredit Agreement”) with Wells

Fargo Bank, National Association (“Wells Fargohetfinancial institutions named as lenders theiinl, Wells Fargo as administrative agent
for the lenders, that provided for a $150.0 millgenior secured revolving credit facility, with aption to request an increase in the amount o
the credit facility by up to an additional $50.0lanh (any such increase to be in each lender’'s didcretion).

During fiscal 2014 , the Company made aggregatenpays of $5.0 million against the Loan Agreemgénthe time the Loan Agreement was
retired in May 2014, the Company paid the remaimrigcipal balance of $71.3 million .

On March 3, 2015, the Company and Ubiquiti Intdorel Holding Company Limited (the “Cayman BorrolWjeamended and restated the
Original Credit Agreement (the "Amended Credit Agreent") with Wells Fargo, the other financial itgiions named as lenders therein, and
Wells Fargo as administrative agent for the lendEine Amended Credit Agreement provides for a $20dillion senior secured revolving
credit facility and a $100.0 million senior secutedn loan facility (collectively, the "Facilitie"with an option to request increases in the
amounts of such credit facilities by up to an add#l $50.0 million in the aggregate (any suchéase to be in each lender's sole discretion),
and matures on March 3, 2020. The term loan fgaiis fully drawn at closing, $72.3 million of whievas used to repay the outstanding
balance under the Original Credit Agreement.

The revolving credit facility includes a sub-linait $10.0 million for letters of credit and a subnaii of $25.0 million for swingline loans. The
Facilities replaced the Company's $150.0 millionisesecured revolving credit facility under theigimal Credit Agreement. The Facilities are
available for working capital and general corpofaieposes that comply with the terms of the Amen@estit Agreement. Under the Amenc
Credit Agreement, revolving loans and swinglinenanay be borrowed, repaid and reborrowed untildi&; 2020, at which time all amounts
borrowed must be repaid. The term loan is payabtpiarterly installments of 2.50% of the originahgipal amount of the term loan until
March 31, 2017, thereafter
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increasing to 3.75% of the original principal ambafthe term loan, in each case plus accrued apdid interest. Revolving, swingline and
term loans may be prepaid at any time without ggnBlevolving and term loans bear interest, atGbepany's option, at either (i) a floating
rate per annum equal to the base rate plus a maffpetween 0.50% and 1.25% , depending on the @ayipleverage ratio as of the most
recently ended fiscal quarter or (ii) a floating panum rate equal to the applicable LIBOR rateafepecified period, plus a margin of betweel
1.50% and 2.25% , depending on the Company's lgeea&dio as of the most recently ended fiscal gnagwingline loans bear interest at a
floating rate per annum equal to the base rateglusirgin of between 0.50% and 1.25% , dependirtfQ@@ompany's leverage ratio as of the
most recently ended fiscal quarter. Base ratefiaetbas the greatest of (A) Wells Fargo's printe,réB) the federal funds rate plus 0.50% or
(C) the applicable LIBOR rate for a period of onerth plus 1.00% . A default interest rate shalllan all obligations during certain events
of default under the Amended Credit Agreementrati@ per annum equal to 2.00% above the appli¢atdeest rate. The Company will pay to
each lender a facility fee on a quarterly basigbam the unused amount of each lender's committoenéake revolving loans, of between
0.20% and 0.35% , depending on the Company's Igeeedio as of the most recently ended fiscal guafthe Company will also pay to the
applicable lenders on a quarterly basis certais fesed on the daily amount available to be dravdeiueach outstanding letter of credit,
including aggregate letter of credit commissionbetiveen 1.50% and 2.25% , depending on the Congpbawerage ratio as of the most
recently ended fiscal quarter, and issuance fe@sl@5% per annum. The Company is also obligatgdiyowells Fargo, as agent, fees
customary for a credit facility of this size angéy

The Amended Credit Agreement requires the Compamyaintain during the term of the Facilities (inaximum leverage ratio of 2.50 to 1.00
and (ii) minimum liquidity of $225.0 million , ineasing to $250.0 million in the event of an incratakincrease in the size of the Facilities,
which can be satisfied with unrestricted cash ash@quivalents and up to $50.0 million of avallgbunder the revolving credit facility. In
addition, the Amended Credit Agreement containsacuary affirmative and negative covenants, inclgdinvenants that limit or restrict the
ability of the Company and its subsidiaries to, amother things, grant liens or enter into agreamesstricting their ability to grant liens on
property, enter into mergers, dispose of assetsgatheir accounting or reporting policies, chathgér business and incur indebtedness, in
each case subject to customary exceptions fordit daeility of this size and type. The Amended diteAgreement includes customary events
of default that include, among other things, nogirpant of principal, interest or fees, inaccuracyegresentations and warranties, violation of
covenants, cross default to certain other indelggsirbankruptcy and insolvency events, materigimehts, change of control and certain
ERISA events. The occurrence of an event of defamltd result in the acceleration of the obligasiamder the Amended Credit Agreement.

The obligations of the Company and certain domesiizsidiaries, if any, under the Amended Credite&gnent are required to be guaranteed
by such domestic subsidiaries (the "Domestic Guara¥) and are collateralized by substantiallyaalets (excluding intellectual property) of
the Company and the Domestic Guarantors. The dldigmof the Cayman Borrower and certain foreignssdiaries under the Amended Credit
Agreement are required to be guaranteed by caftairestic and material foreign subsidiaries (thedi@otors") and are collateralized by
substantially all assets (excluding intellectuagarty) of the Company and the Guarantors.

During fiscal 2015 , the Company made aggregatenpays of $2.5 million against the Amended Creditefgnent. As of June 30, 2015, the
Company has classified $10.0 million and $87.5iarilbof short term and long-term debt, respectivelyjts consolidated balance sheet relatec
to the Amended Credit Agreement.

The following table summarizes our estimated debitiaterest payment obligations as of June 30, ZBlthousands):

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter Total
Debt payment obligations $ 10,00 $ 11,25 $ 15,000 $ 15,00 $  46,25( $ — 3 97,50(
Interest payments on debt
payment obligations 1,98: 1,81( 1,58¢ 1,337 78¢ — 7,507
Total $ 11,98: $ 13,06 $ 16,58¢ $ 16,337 $ 47,03¢ $ — $ 105,000

NOTE 8—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Leases

The Company leases its headquarters in San Joser@a and other locations worldwide under nomoalable operating leases that expire at
various dates through 2019 .
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At June 30, 2015, future minimum annual paymentieu operating leases are as follows (in thousands)

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 Thereafter Total
Operating leases $ 403 $ 285 $ 1311 $ 244 $ 16 $ — % 8,61(

Rent expense under operating leases was $3.6 mil$i@d.3 million and $1.7 million for fiscal 201%iscal 2014 and fiscal 2013 , respectively.

Purchase Obligation:

The Company primarily subcontracts with other com@s to manufacture its products. During the norooalrse of business, the Company’s
contract manufacturers procure components based anglers placed by the Company. If the Companyelaradl or part of the orders, it may
still be liable to the contract manufacturers fog tost of the components purchased by them to faetnue the Company’s products. The
Company periodically reviews the potential lialyiléind to date no significant accruals have beeorded. The Company had inventory
purchase obligations of $10.0 million as of JuneZJ15 . Additionally, the Company has advancedtantling payments to our contract
manufacturers as of June 30, 2015 of $2.0 million .

Indemnification Obligations

The Company enters into standard indemnificatioe@ments with many of its business partners irotb@ary course of business. These
agreements include provisions for indemnifying blnsiness partner against any claim brought byrd fiarty to the extent any such claim
alleges that a Company product infringes a patemyright or trademark, or violates any other pigtarry rights of that third party. The
maximum potential amount of future payments the gamy could be required to make under these indératidn agreements is not estimable
and the Company has not incurred any material ¢ostefend lawsuits or settle claims related ta¢h@demnification agreements to date.

Legal Matters

The Company may be involved, from time to timeaivariety of claims, lawsuits, investigations, gndceedings relating to contractual
disputes, intellectual property rights, employmeatiters, regulatory compliance matters and otkigation matters relating to various claims
that arise in the normal course of business. Thafgamy determines whether an estimated loss froomtingency should be accrued by
assessing whether a loss is deemed probable arzba@asonably estimated. The Company assesgegdtttial liability by analyzing specific
litigation and regulatory matters using availalitsimation. The Company develops its views on estih losses in consultation with inside
and outside counsel, which involves a subjectivadyais of potential results and outcomes, assuwamigpus combinations of appropriate
litigation and settlement strategies. Taking althaf above factors into account, the Company recandamount where it is probable that the
Company will incur a loss and where that loss cangasonably estimated. However, the Company’masts may be incorrect and the
Company could ultimately incur more or less thamdimounts initially recorded. The Company may aisar significant legal fees, which are
expensed as incurred, in defending against thesmsl The Company is not currently aware of anydpenor threatened litigation that would
have a material adverse effect on the Companysdial statements.

Shareholder Class Action Lawsui

Beginning on September 7, 2012, two class actiasuiés were filed in the United States District @dor the Northern District of California
against Ubiquiti Networks, Inc., certain of itsioffrs and directors, and the underwriters of iisalnpublic offering, alleging claims under U.S.
securities laws. On January 30, 2013, the plamtiléd an amended consolidated complaint. On Ma&014, the court issued an order
granting a motion to dismiss the complaint withvieéo amend. Following the plaintiffdecision not to file an amended complaint, on Ap@i
2014, the court ordered the dismissal of the latwsith prejudice, and entered judgment in favothef Company and the other defendants, an
against the plaintiffs. On May 15, 2014, the pldisfiled a notice of appeal from the judgmenttioé court. The appeal is ongoing before the
U.S. Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Thex@n be no assurance that the Company will prewdiié appeal proceeding. The Company
cannot currently estimate the possible loss orgarigpossible loss, if any, that it may experieimceonnection with this litigation.

Export Compliance Matter:

In May 2011, the Company filed a self-disclosuaestnent with the U.S. Commerce Department, Buré&udoistry and Security’s (“BIS”)
Office of Export Enforcement (“OEE”) relating taeview conducted by the Company regarding certgroet transactions from 2008 through
March 2011 in which products may have been laolceinto Iran by third parties. In
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June 2011, the Company also filed a self-disclostament with the U.S. Department of the Treds@ffice of Foreign Asset Control
(“OFAC”) regarding these compliance issues. In Agtd2011, the Company received a warning letter f@IBE stating that OEE had not
referred the findings of the Company’s review fdminal or administrative prosecution and closesl itiwvestigation of the Company without
penalty. Based upon its review of the matter, OFdéhtified certain apparent violations (“Apparenbhtions”) of the Iranian Transactions
and Sanctions Regulations by the Company duringéhied of in or about March 2008 through in or atieebruary 2011. On March 4, 2014,
the Company entered into a settlement agreemeht@HAC resolving this administrative matter. Purdua the terms of the settlement
agreement, the Company agreed to make a one-tiymegue to the U.S. Department of the Treasury inaiim@unt of $504,000 in consideration
of OFAC agreeing to release and forever dischdrge&Company from any and all civil liability in coaetion with the Apparent Violations. The
Company previously accrued a reserve of $1.6 millelating to this matter in fiscal 2010 and, adaugly, reversed the excess of the accrual
of $1.1 million as of the effective date of thetlsshent agreement.

NOTE 9—COMMON STOCK AND TREASURY STOCK

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , the authorized alagithe Company included 500,000,000 shares wingon stock. As of June 30, 2015 and
2014 , 87,413,777 and 88,179,448 shares of comitogk were outstanding, respectively.

Treasury Stock Retirement

In February 2015, we retired 44,768,739 shareBefompany's treasury stock. These retired shaeasoav included in the Comparsypool o
authorized but unissued shares. The retired stadlatcarrying value of $138.9 million . The Comparpolicy upon the formal retirement of
treasury stock is to reflect the excess over phrevas a deduction from Additional Paid-in Capitatil the balance is reduced to zero, then the
Company records any additional excess directletained earnings.

Common Stock Repurchases

On May 29, 2014, the Board of Directors authoriteelCompany to repurchase up to an additional $8l®n of its common stock. All
common stock repurchased by the Company is imneddisgtired, and is recorded consistent with tleasury stock policy discussed above.
The share repurchase program commenced on Juf&£2, Phe share repurchase program has been furatadekisting cash on hand. During
fiscal 2015 , the company repurchased 1,195,49%&std its common stock at an average price peesfe$29.02 for an aggregate amount of
$34.7 million . In December 2014, the Company repased 529,779 shares of its common stock atenage price per share of $28.29 for
an aggregate amount of $15.0 million . During N2&yt5, the Company repurchased 665,718 shaitsafmmon stock at an average price
per share of $29.59 for an aggregate amount & 7&hillion . The share repurchase program waniterted on June 8, 2015.

Effective August 7, 2015, the Board of Directorgttd Company approved a $100 million stock repwselmogram. Under the new stock
repurchase program, the Company may repurchase$400 million of its common stock. The plan expion June 30, 2016.

Dividend Distribution

On September 30, 2014, the Company announcedstBoard of Directors had approved an annual dndd&he Company declared the
dividend of $0.17 per share on September 30, 2Did aggregate amount of $15.0 million was pai@otober 28, 2014 to stockholders of
record on October 17, 2014. The Company currerdtyrto plans to pay a cash dividend at this tina any time in the foreseeable future.

Special Dividend

On December 14, 2012, the Board of Directors aithdra special cash dividend of $0.18 per sharedoh share of common stock
outstanding on December 24, 2012. The aggregaigedist payment of $15.7 million was paid on Decen#8r2012 to stockholders of record
on December 24, 2012. The dividend payment wasddising proceeds from the Loan Agreement as disdus Note 7.

Common Stock Offering

On June 18, 2013, the Company completed a seconéfaring of 7,031,464 shares of common stock avféering price of $16.00 per share,
which included 531,464 shares sold in connectidh thie partial exercise of the option to purchatditional shares granted to the
underwriters. All of the shares sold in the offgrimere sold by existing stockholders of the Compamgtuding entities affiliated with Summit
Partners, L.P., and the Company's Chief Executifieéd, Robert J. Pera. No shares were sold byCthmpany in the offering, and as such, the
Company did not receive any proceeds from the ioffier
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NOTE 10—STOCK BASED COMPENSATION
Stock-Based Compensation Plans
2010 Equity Incentive Plan

In March 2010, the Company’s Board of Directors atatkholders approved the 2010 Equity IncentiaRthe “2010 Plan”). The 2010 Plan
replaced the 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2B0&n”), and no further awards will be granted parguo the 2005 Plan. Under the terms of
the 2010 Plan, nonstatutory stock options, stogkepation rights, restricted stock, and restrictmtk units (“‘RSUs”) may be granted to
employees or non-employee service providers. Imngestock options may be granted only to employees.

The maximum aggregate number of shares that mayheded under the 2010 Plan as of June 30, 2018@&6,000 shares, plus any shares
subject to stock options or similar awards granteder the 2005 Plan that expire or otherwise teateinvithout having been exercised in full
and shares issued pursuant to awards granted thed2005 Plan that are forfeited to (but not repased by) the Company.

The 2010 Plan is administered by the Company'sdofbDirectors or a committee of the Company’s Bloafr Directors. Subject to the terms
and conditions of the 2010 Plan, the administrats the authority to select the persons to whonrdsnare to be made, to determine the
number of shares to be subject to awards and timess tend conditions of awards, and to make all afleégrminations and to take all other
actions necessary or advisable for the administraif the 2010 Plan. The administrator is also @ugld to adopt, amend or rescind rules
relating to administration of the 2010 Plan. Opsi@md RSUs generally vest over a four year peraa the date of grant and generally expire
five to ten years from the date of grant. The teofthe 2010 Plan provide that an option price Istia be less than 100% of fair market value
on the date of grant.

2005 Equity Incentive Plan

With the adoption of the 2010 Plan, no additioneaads may be granted under the 2005 Plan. In FepbA@®5, the Company’s Board of
Directors and the stockholders approved the 2086, RVhich was amended and restated in March 2062005 Plan provided for the
issuance of stock options, restricted stock anckdbonuses to employees, consultants, advisoestdiis and officers of the Company. The
terms of the options granted under the 2005 Plaw @etermined at the time of grant. The Companyemes# of different vesting schedules
through fiscal 2009, but subsequent new grantsrgipeested as to 25% on the first anniversarthefdate of grant and monthly thereafter
over the next three years and generally have a®édf years from the date of grant.

As of June 30, 2015 , the Company had 9,993,428&dued shares available for future issuance ualief its stock incentive plans.

Stoclk-based Compensation

The following table shows total stock-based comp#or expense included in the Consolidated StatesradrOperations and Comprehensive
Income for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 (in thousand

Years Ended Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013

Cost of sales $ 601 $ 50C $ 44¢€

Research and development 2,85¢ 2,42: 1,43:

Sales, general and administrative 1,537 1,89: 1,49
$ 499 % 4,90¢ $ 3,37¢
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Stock Options
The following is a summary of option activity fdre& Company’s stock incentive plans for fiscal 202814 and 2013 :

Common Stock Options Outstanding

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Number Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
of Shares Price Life (Years) Value
(In thousands)
Balance, June 30, 2012 3,347,441 % 1.4f 6.62 $ 42,92(
Granted 683,50( 11.2¢
Exercised (266,55) 2.3¢
Forfeitures and cancellations (150,12) 5.6¢
Balance, June 30, 2013 3,614,26; $ 3.07 6.17 $ 52,33(
Exercised (849,63 2.4¢€
Forfeitures and cancellations (107,48 10.5¢
Balance, June 30, 2014 2,657,14. $ 2.9¢ 511 $ 112,21!
Exercised (299,03) $ 5.6¢
Forfeitures and cancellations (56,964 $ 12.1¢
Balance, June 30, 2015 2,301,14. % 2.3¢ 382 % 67,96¢
Vested and expected to vest as of June 30, 2015 2,29581 $ 2 3¢ 381 $ 67,86(
Vested and exercisable as of June 30, 2015 2,167,48. ¢ 1.82 360 $ 65,22

Additional information regarding options outstarglias of June 30, 2015 is as follows (in thousaexsgpt weighted average exercise price
amounts and contractual life):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average
Number of Contractual Exercise Number of Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Options Life (Years) Price Options Price
$0.01 - $1.91 1,654,16! 276 $ 0.0t 1,654,16/ $ 0.0t
$1.92 - $10.76 292,35: 5.53 4.4¢ 291,82¢ 4.4¢
$10.77 - $11.74 260,25( 7.37 10.77 161,49¢ 10.77
$11.75 - $18.48 87,78¢ 7.32 13.15 54,37 13.2¢
$18.49 - $19.98 3,901 6.47 18.5¢ 3,301 18.5¢
$19.99 - $26.28 2,687 5.48 21.5¢ 2,32( 21.5¢
$0.01 — $26.28 2,301,14 3.82 $ 2.3¢ 2,167,48 g 1.82

During fiscal 2015 and 2014 and 2013 , the aggeegdtinsic value of options exercised under thenfany’s stock incentive plans was $9.2
million , $30.5 million , and $3.4 million , respgaely, as determined as of the date of option eser

As of June 30, 2015 , the Company had unrecogrmaetbensation cost of $695,000 related to stoclonptivhich the Company expects to
recognize over a weighted-average period of 1.4sy€aiture option grants will increase the amodiioonpensation expense to be recorded il
these periods.
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The Company estimates the fair value of employeeksbptions using the Black-Scholes option priaimgdel. The fair value of employee
stock options is being amortized on a straight-basis over the requisite service period of therdszarhe Company did not grant any stock
options during fiscal 2015 or fiscal 2014 . Foc&k2013 the fair value of employee stock optioas wstimated using the following weighted
average assumptions:

Year Ended June 30, 2013

Expected term 6.1 year
Expected volatility 52%
Risk-free interest rate 0.S%
Expected dividend yield —
Weighted average grant date fair value $ 5.57

Expected terrmr Expected term represents the period that the Coy'gpatock-based awards are expected to be outstanils the Company
has limited historical option exercise data, thpested term of the stock options granted to em@syeas calculated based on the simplified
method. Under the simplified method, the expectehtis equal to the average of an option’s weiglategtage vesting period and its
contractual term. The Company is permitted to cwgiusing the simplified method until sufficientdmation regarding exercise behavior,
such as historical exercise data or exercise irddion from external sources, becomes available.

Expected volatility The expected volatility was based on the histbstack volatilities of a group of publicly listesbmparable companies o
a period equal to the expected terms of the optamthe Company does not have any trading histouge the volatility of its common stock.

Expected dividend yiell Although the Company paid a special cash dividdumihg fiscal 2013, the Company does not currepitiy to pay
dividends on its common stock.

Risk-free interest rate.The risk-free interest rate is based on the Ur8agury yield curve in effect at the time of griontzero coupon U.S.
Treasury notes with maturities approximately eqoadhe option’s expected term.

Fair value of common stoc The Company’s common stock began trading on th&DAQ Global Select Market on October 14, 2011, upon
its initial public offering. The fair value of thHe@ompany’s common stock is determined using the atgrkice of the Company’s common stock
as of the date of grant. Prior to October 14, 2@4 fair value of the shares of common stock ugitgy the stock options has historically been
the responsibility of and determined by the CompmaByard of Directors. Because there had been btiqpmarket for the Company’s
common stock, its Board of Directors has determiiagdvalue of the common stock at the time of gm@frthe option by considering a number
of objective and subjective factors including indegent third-party valuations of its common staperating and financial performance, the
lack of liquidity of capital stock and general andustry specific economic outlook, amongst otlzetdrs.

Forfeiture rate. The Company estimates its forfeiture rate baseanoanalysis of its actual forfeitures and will tone to evaluate the
adequacy of the forfeiture rate based on actuéifare experience, analysis of employee turnoedralvior and other factors. The impact from
a forfeiture rate adjustment will be recognizedutin the period of adjustment, and if the actnamber of future forfeitures differs from that
estimated, the Company may be required to recqusstdents to stock-based compensation expenseéurefperiods.

Cash received from stock option exercises duriedisital 2015 , 2014 and 2013 was $1.7 million.1$8illion and $635,000 , respectively.
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Restricted Stock Unit¥RSUSs")
The following table summarizes the activity of fREUs made by the Company:

Weighted

Average Grant

Number of Shares Date Fair Value
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2012 453,62( $ 9.42
RSUs granted 656,50( 14.11
RSUs vested (70,517 14.1¢
RSUs canceled (294,70) 5.2¢
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2013 744,90t $ 14.7¢
RSUs granted 209,03: 37.8i
RSUs vested (170,19) 15.5¢
RSUs canceled (234,039 16.1¢
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2014 549,70: $ 22.65
RSUs granted 182,86! 32.4;
RSUs vested (182,50 21.2
RSUs canceled (149,42) 24.8¢
Non-vested RSUs, June 30, 2015 400,63! 26.9¢

The intrinsic value of RSUs vested in fiscal 202914 and 2013 was $6.4 million , $6.1 million &1d0 million , respectively. The total
intrinsic value of all outstanding RSUs was $12i8iom as of June 30, 2015 .

As of June 30, 2015, there was unrecognized cosapiem costs related to RSUs of $8.0 million whioh Company expects to recognize ovel
a weighted average period of 2.9 years.

NOTE 11—INCOME TAXES

For financial reporting purposes, the componenia@ime before provision for income taxes wereodlsws (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Domestic $ 44747 $ 4455, % 17,86(
Foreign 101,00! 150,06( 73,89
$ 145,74¢ $ 194,61: $ 91,75

The components of the Company’s provision for inedaxes consisted of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Current
Foreign $ 90¢ ¢ 2,451 % 1,79(
Federal 15,78¢ 16,51¢ 8,51¢
State 29¢ 10¢ 581
Current tax expense 16,99« 19,07¢ 10,88¢
Deferred
Foreign — — —
Federal (85€) (1,507 (130)
State (53 10t 507
Deferred tax expense (909) (1,4072) 371

Provision for income taxes $ 16,08 $ 17,67: $ 11,26:
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Significant components of the Company’s deferredassets and liabilities consisted of the follow{imgthousands):

June 30,
2015 2014

Deferred tax assets
Reserves and Allowances $ 83€ $ 20C
Stock-based compensation 1,16¢ 1,03¢
Accrued expenses 44¢ 45F
Research and development credits 59t 34t
State tax 824 57C
Other 39¢ 352

Total deferred tax assets 4,26¢ 2,961
Deferred tax liabilities
Basis difference for fixed assets (623 (477)
Other — —

Total deferred tax liabilities (629) (477)
Valuation allowance (595) (34%)
Net deferred tax assets $ 3,05C % 2,13¢

As of June 30, 2015 , the Company had Californégaiech tax credit carry-forwards, net of ASC 740Q4fiecognized tax benefits, of
approximately $1.4 million . The California resdacredits can be carried forward indefinitely.

Management assesses the available positive antiveegaidence to estimate if sufficient future thlaincome will be generated to use the
existing deferred tax assets. In the fourth quartdiscal 2014, the Company determined that ihare likely than not that our deferred tax a
for California research credits will not be reatizzs for the foreseeable future the Company isaipeto generate credits in excess of its
ability to use such attributes. As a result, thenPany has provided a valuation allowance of $595f00the amount of California deferred tax
assets that may not be realized as of June 30,.2015

As a result of certain realization requirement&8fC 718,Compensation - Stock Compensatjoine table of deferred tax assets and liabilities
shown above does not include certain deferreddagta as of June 30, 2015 , that arose directty (oo the use of which was postponed by)
tax deductions related to equity compensationdahagreater than the compensation recognizedrfanéial reporting. Equity will be increased
by approximately $495,000and when such deferred tax assets are ultimagglljzed. The Company uses ASC 740 ordering wleggrichining
when excess tax benefits have been realized.

The effective tax rate differs from the applicablé. statutory federal income tax rate as follows:

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Statutory rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
Stock-based compensation 0.€ 0.4 0.€
State tax expense 0.1 — 0.7
Tax rate differential, foreign income (23.2) (25.9 (24.2)
Federal research and development credits (1.2 (0.3 (0.9
Other permanent items (0.9 (0.7) 0.4
Effective tax rate 11.C% 9.1% 12.2%

The Company’s effective tax rate increased to 1f@2fiscal 2015 as compared to 9.1% for fiscal20The higher effective tax rate in fiscal
2015 was primarily attributable to increased saldbe United States and the decreased profit befotes of Hong Kong due to the $39.1
million BEC fraud loss, which decreased the taxdfiéfrom foreign tax rate differential. The Compyamad increased foreign operations in
fiscal 2014 as compared to fiscal 2013 , whichltedun the generation more income on a compargteas over year basis in foreign
jurisdictions that have lower tax rates than th8.!

It is the practice and intention of the Companydiovest the earnings of its non-U.S. subsidiarighose operations. As of June 30, 2015, the
Company has not made a provision for U.S. or aalufiti foreign withholding taxes on approximately
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$443.0 million of the excess of the amount for ficial reporting over the tax basis of investment®ieign subsidiaries that are essentially
permanent in duration. Generally, such amountsroecgubject to U.S. taxation upon the remittancdivilends and under certain other
circumstances. It is not practicable to estimageaimount of deferred tax liability related to inweents in these foreign subsidiaries.

While management believes that the Company hasuatidy provided for all tax positions, amounts asgkby tax authorities could be greatel
or less than the recorded position. Accordinglg, @ompany's provisions on federal, state and foreig-related matters to be recorded in the
future may change as revised estimates are matie anderlying matters are settled or otherwiselvesl.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakmof the unrecognized tax benefits during thesyeaded June 30, 2015 2014 and 2013
consists of the following (in thousands):

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
(In thousands)
Unrecognized benefit—beginning of period $ 1491 $ 11,45 $ 7,82¢
Gross increases—current year tax positions 4,96( 3,871 3,80¢
Gross increases (decreases)—prior year tax position — (219) (17¢)
Gross decreases - prior year tax positions dugatoeslapse (2849 (199 —
Unrecognized benefit—end of period $ 19,59 $ 1491 $ 11,45¢

Included in the gross unrecognized tax benefitarad as of June 30, 2015 are $18.6 million of @sitipns which would affect income tax
expense if recognized. The Company recognizesaisitand penalties related to unrecognized tax liemgthin the income tax expense line in
the accompanying Consolidated Statement of Op&imaod Comprehensive Income. Accrued interest andlfpes are included within the
related tax liability line in the Consolidated Bata Sheet. As of June 30, 2015 , the Company h&drillion accrued interest related to
uncertain tax matters. The Company does not exisaehrecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 20l 3naterially change within the next 12
months. The Company files income tax returns inhéed States, various states and certain forgidgsdictions. Tax years 2012 through 2!
are subject to examination by the U.S. federahiathorities. Tax years 2010 through 2014 are subjeexamination by the state tax
authorities. Tax years 2010 through 2015 are géiyesabject to examination by certain foreign tarteorities. There are no income tax
examinations currently in process.

NOTE 12—SEGMENT INFORMATION, REVENUES BY GEOGRAPHY AND SIGNIFICANT CUSTOMERS

Management has determined that the Company opesise reportable and operating segment as th@&uors Chief Executive Officer,
who is the Company's chief operating decision makees not make decisions about resources to teagdld or assess performance on a
segment basis. Furthermore, the Company does gahiae or report its costs on a segment basis.

Revenue
Revenues by product type were as follows (in thodsaexcept percentages):

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Service Provider Technology $ 418,02: 7C% $ 450,66: 79% $ 285,39( 8%%
Enterprise Technology 177,92¢ 3% 121,80: 21% 35,43: 11%
Total revenues $ 595,94° 10(% $ 572,46« 10(% $ 320,82 10C%
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Revenues by geography based on customer's shigstmaltions were as follows (in thousands, exceptentages):

Years Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
North America(1) $ 197,69: 33% $ 142,43t 25% $ 84,82( 26%
South America 97,11¢ 16% 109,58« 19% 65,76« 21%
Europe, the Middle East and Africa 234,38: 40% 247,00¢ 43% 127,86( 40%
Asia Pacific 66,75! 11% 73,43: 13% 42,37¢ 13%
Total revenues $ 595,94 10(% $ 572,46 10C% $ 320,82 10(%

(1) Revenue for the United States v$187.3 million , $136.6 million and $80.6 millicor fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013espectively

Customers with an accounts receivable balance %f dOgreater of total accounts receivable and coste with net revenues of 1086 greate
of total revenues are presented below for the gsriiadicated:

Percentage of Revenues Percentage of Accounts Receivable
Years Ended June 30, June 30,
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014
Flytec Computers, Inc. * 13% 12% * 13%
Streakwave Wireless, Inc. * * * 13% 12%
P.W. Batna Magdalena Mucha * * * 12% 12%

* denotes less than 10%

NOTE 13—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND CERTAIN OTHE R TRANSACTIONS

Aircraft Lease Agreeme

On November 13, 2013, the Company entered intdraraft lease agreement (the "Aircraft Lease Agresetf) with RJP Manageco LLC (the
"Lessor"), a limited liability company owned by tB®@mpany’s Chief Executive Officer, Robert J. P&arsuant to the Aircraft Lease
Agreement, the Company may lease an aircraft owgdatie Lessor for Company business purposes. Uhdehircraft Lease Agreement, the
aircraft may be leased at a rate of $5,000 pehntfligur. This hourly rate does not include the odslight crew or on-board services, which the
Company will purchase from a third-party providene Company recognized a total of approximately4$a@0 and $258,000 in expenses
pursuant to the Aircraft Lease Agreement duringdi®015 and fiscal 2014 , respectively. All expenpursuant to the Aircraft Lease
Agreement have been included in the Company's,sgdeeral and administrative expenses in the CaatbGonsolidated Statements of
Operations.

NOTE 14—BUSINESS EMAIL COMPROMISE FRAUD LOSS

In June 2015, the Company determined that it waitttim of criminal fraud known to law enforcemenithorities as business e-mail
compromise fraud which involved employee impersimma&nd fraudulent requests targeting our finaregadtment. The fraud resulted in
transfers of funds aggregating $46.7 million hefjdalCompany subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kongtteer overseas accounts held by third
parties. To date, the Company has recovered $8libmi As a result, the Company recorded a chafdg39.1 million in the fourth quarter of
2015, including additional expenses consistingrofgssional service fees associated with the flassl

An additional $6.8 million of the amounts transéetare currently subject to legal injunction arasmably expected to be recovered by the

Company in due course. The Company is continuirgutsue the recovery of the remaining $31.8 milkowl is cooperating with U.S. federal
and numerous overseas law enforcement authoritiesare actively pursuing a multi-agency criminaldstigation.
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NOTE 15—SUPPLEMENTARY DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table presents the Company’s unaudditensolidated statements of operations data fr ehthe eight quarters during fiscal
2015 and 2014 . In management’s opinion, this infdion has been presented on the same basis asdited consolidated financial
statements included in a separate section of ¢pisrt, and all necessary adjustments, consistiiygadmormal recurring adjustments, have
been included in the amounts below to state faliyunaudited quarterly results when read in cartjon with the audited consolidated

financial statements and related notes. The operatisults for any quarter should not be reliednup® necessarily indicative of results for any

future period.

In thousands, except per share data

Net revenue

Gross profit

Income from operation®

Net income and comprehensive income

Net income per share of common stock:

Basic
Diluted

Net revenue
Gross profit
Income from operations
Net income and comprehensive income
Net income per share of common stock:
Basic
Diluted

Fiscal 2015
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 150,08° $ 153,137 $ 147,45¢ 145,26
61,05! 69,02 65,971 66,13¢
43,63¢ 50,72: 45,231 7,29(
37,74 46,26¢ 41,13 4,51¢
$ 04z $ 05z $ 0.47 0.0t
$ 04z $ 05z $ 0.4¢ 0.0t
Fiscal 2014
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
$ 129,68° $ 138,43¢ $ 148,33: 156,00°
58,02: 60,97 65,61:- 68,86
45,89¢ 47,12( 50,13t 52,79¢
40,52¢ 41,79: 45,19¢ 49,41¢
$ 0.4€ $ 0.4t $ 0.51 0.5¢
$ 0.4t % 047 $ 0.5C 0.5t

(1) During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015, then@pany experienced a BEC fraud loss. For furthtilde see Note 14.
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Exhibit Index

The following exhibits are filed herewith or arearporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfiéth the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. (the “Registtgrshall furnish copies of exhibits for a reasoleatee (covering the expense of furnishing
copies) upon request.

Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed
3.1 Form of Third Amended and Restated Certificate of S-1 3.2 June 17, 2011

Incorporation of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.

3.2 Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of Ubiquiti S-1 3.4 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Ubiquiti S-1 4.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc.

4.2 Registration Agreement, dated March 2, 2010, betwee S-1 4.2 June 17, 2011

Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holders of Ulpik)
Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named therein.

4.3 Investor Rights Agreement, dated as of March 20201 S-1 4.3 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and certain holdgfrs
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.’s capital stock named thiare

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ubiquiti S-1 10.1 October 3, 2011
Networks, Inc. and its directors and officers.

10.2# Amended and Restated 2005 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.2 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.3# Amended and Restated 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and S-1 10.3 June 17, 2011
forms of agreement thereunder.

10.4# Employment Agreement, dated as of February 10, 2011 S-1 10.5 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Benjamin Moore.

10.5# Executive Employment Agreement between the Company 8-K 10.1 March 8, 2013
and Craig Foster, effective March 4, 2013.

10.6# Employment Agreement, dated as of May 1, 2010, S-1 10.7 June 17, 2011
between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and John Sanford.

10.7 Non-Residential Property Lease Agreement, dated as S-1 10.9 June 17, 2011
May 28, 2009, between UAB “Devint” and Tomas
Grébliunas, Tomas Skas, and Vygante Skiené.

10.8 Jinyong Ji Investment Taiwan Lease, dated as oEMar S-1 10.10 June 17, 2011
16, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Jimydi
Investment Co., Ltd.

10.9 Lease, dated as of July 9, 2010, between Ubiquiti S-1 10.11 June 17, 2011
Networks, Inc. and The Welsh Office Center LLC.

10.10% Amended Technology License Agreement, dated as of S-1 10.12 June 17, 2011
September 1, 2010, between Ubiquiti Networks, &ml
Atheros Communications, Inc.



10.11 Taiwan Lease, dated as of July 20, 2011, between Ji 10-Q 10.15 November 14, 2011
Yeoung Ji Co., Ltd. and Ubiquiti Networks Intericaual
Limited, Taiwan Branch.
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Incorporated by

Exhibit Incorporated by Reference from
Number Description Reference from Form Exhibit Number Date Filed
10.12 Office Lease, dated as of December 8, 2011 anduéeec 10-Q/A 10.16 March 20, 2012
on December 22, 2011, by and between Ubiquiti
Networks, Inc. and Carr NP Properties, L.L.C.
10.13 Credit Agreement, dated as of May 3, 2014, by andrgy 10-Q 10.1 May 9, 2014
Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. and Ubiquiti International
Holding Company Limited, as Borrowers, the Lenders
referred to therein, as Lenders and Wells FargkBan
National Associate, as Administration Agent
10.14 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of 8-K 10.1 March 6, 2015
March 3, 2015, by and among Ubiquiti Networks, laad
Ubiquiti International Holding Company Limited, as
Borrowers, the Lenders referred to therein, as eend
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
Administrative Agent.
10.15 Aircraft Lease Agreement between Ubiquiti Networks, 10-Q 10.1 February 7, 2014
Inc. and RJP Manageco LLP, dated November 13, 2013
21.1 List of subsidiaries of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.
23.1 Consent of independent registered public accourfiting
24.1 Power of Attorney (contained in the signature piagehis
Form 10-K)
31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer Reqeidt
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer Reqgait
Under Rule 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) of the Secaritie
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
32.1~ Certification of Principal Executive Officer andifgipal
Financial Officer Required Under Rule 13a-14(bjaf
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and 18
U.S.C. §1350.
101.INS(*)  XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH(*) XBRL Taxonomy Schema Linkbase Document
101.CAL(*) XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF(*) XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase
Document
101.LAB(*) XBRL Taxonomy Labels Linkbase Document
101.PRE(*) XBRL Taxonomy Presentation Linkbase Document

# Management contracts or compensation plansgangements in which directors or executive offi@es eligible to participate.



T Portions of the exhibit have been omitted purstmian order granted by the Securities and Exch@ugemission for confidential treatment.
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~ In accordance with Iltem 601(b)(32)(ii) of Redida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-47986) Rule: Management's Reports on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting and CertificatmirDisclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports,dbsifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1 herete
deemed to accompany this Form 10-K and will nod&emed “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of theliange Act. Such certifications will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into amg§lunder the Securities Act or the Exchange éxtept to the extent that the registrant speciical
incorporates it by reference.

(*) XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languaid®rmation is furnished and not filed or a partofegistration statement or prospectus for puipoe
Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 193%ragnded, is deemed not filed for purposes of @edi8 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, and is not otherwise subject to liabilitder these Sections.

84



Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc.*

Ubiquiti Networks International Limited

Hong Kong

Ubiquiti International Holding Company Limited

Cayman Islands

*Pursuant to Iltem 601(b)(21)(ii) of Regulation $-kKe names of other subsidiaries of Ubiquiti N&teg, Inc. are omitted because, considere
in the aggregate, they would not constitute a §icant subsidiary as of the end of the year covénethis report.



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by refeeemthe Registration Statement on Form S-8 (N8-837310, No. 333-185958 and No. 333

193793) of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. of our reporttdd August 21, 2015 relating to the consolidatedricial statements, which appears in this
Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Jose, California
August 21, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert J. Pera, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKIbiquiti Networks, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a—15(e) and 15d-15(e)) aednat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoidge designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

August 21, 2015

/s/ Robert J. Pera

Robert J. Pera
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS AMENDED,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Mark Spragg, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKIbiquiti Networks, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as definet
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) omantiial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Ralgs—15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedoidge designed under our supervisiol
ensure that material information relating to thgistrant, including its consolidated subsidiarissnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtis report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitigit occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antldve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedymanagement or other employees who have a sagmiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

August 21, 2015

/sl Mark Spragg

Mark Spragg
Interim Chief Accounting Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND PR INCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert J. Pera, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.&xtidn 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9@tteabarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. on Form-KOfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 fullyjnpties with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934, as amended, and that information coathin such Annual Report on Form KO-
fairly presents in all material respects the firiahcondition and results of operations of UbigiNgtworks, Inc.

Date: August 21, 2015

By: /sl Robert J. Pera
Name: Robert J. Pera
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Director

(Principal Executive Officer)

I, Mark Spragg, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 8350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 db#rbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the
Annual Report of Ubiquiti Networks, Inc. on Form-KOfor the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 fullyjnpdies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended, and that information coathin such Annual Report on Form KO-
fairly presents in all material respects the finahcondition and results of operations of Ubiqilgtworks, Inc.

Date: August 21, 2015

By: /sl Mark Spragg
Name: Mark Spragg
Title: Interim Chief Accounting Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)



